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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT

OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2013

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-36040

Fox Factory Holding Corp.
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(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
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915 Disc Drive
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(Registrant’'s Telephone Number, Including Area Codg

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:
Title of Each Clas: Name of Each Exchange on Which Register:

Common Stock, par value $0.001 per shai The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
(NASDAQ Global Select Market)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) diie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edb#turities Act.  Yed

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[d

No

No



Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti® or 15 (d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wejuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 days. Yek&l No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&ebsite, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted auntsio Rule 405 of Regulation5¢8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grbnths
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorKS8229.405 of this chapter) is not contail
herein, and will not be contained, to the beskgistrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or infeation statements incorporated by reference
in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthgstForm 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “large accelerated filaccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting coamp/” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated file [J Accelerated filel O
Non-accelerated file (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantstell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). YesO No

As of June 30, 2013 (the last business day ofégistrant’s most recently completed second fisoarigr), there was no established
public market for the registrant’'s common stocke Tagistrant's common stock began trading on th&NAQ Global Select Market on
August 8, 2013.

As of February 28, 2014, there were 36,433,658eshalr the Registrant’s common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Staént for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholderbédiled with the Securities and
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardlimg statements that involve substantial risks amckrtainties. The statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K the aot purely historical are forward-looking statents within the meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (theuf@@zs Act”), and Section 21E of the Securitiecange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), including, but not limited to, séaments regarding our expectations, beliefs, inb@st strategies, future operations, future
financial position, future revenue, projected exggEnand plans and objectives of management. In sag®s, you can identify forwelooking
statements by terms such as “anticipate,” “beliévestimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “might, plan,” “project,” “will,” “would,”
“should,” “could,” “can,” “predict,” “potential,” “  continue,” “objective,” or the negative of theseres, and similar expressions intended to
identify forward-looking statements. However, nbfaward-looking statements contain these idgimi§ words. These forward-looking
statements reflect our current views about futurengs and involve known risks, uncertainties ameotactors that may cause our actual
results, levels of activity, performance or achieeat to be materially different from those exprdsseimplied by the forward-looking
statements. Factors that could cause or contribatsuch differences include, but are not limitedthose identified below, and those discusse:
in the section titled “Risk Factors” included inithAnnual Report on Form 10-K. Furthermore, suatwird-looking statements speak only as
of the date of this report. Except as requireddw,Iwe undertake no obligation to update any fodwiamoking statements to reflect events or
circumstances after the date of such statementsjualy all of our forwardlooking statements by these cautionary statembentsidition, the
industry in which we operate is subject to a higlgre of uncertainty and risk due to a varietyamtdrs including those described in the
section entitled “Risk Factors.” These and othecttas could cause our results to differ materidtlym those expressed in this Annual Report
on Form 1(-K.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Our company, Fox Factory Holding Corp., designgimgers, manufactures and markets high-performsusgension products for customers
world-wide. Fox Factory Holding Corp. is the holgioompany of Fox Factory, Inc. As used herein, “Faxtory,” “FOX,” the “Company,”
“we,” “our,” and similar terms refer to Fox Factarplding Corp. and its subsidiaries, unless theedrindicates otherwise. Our premium
brand suspension products are used primarily omtagubikes, side-by-side vehicles (“Side-by-Sidesh-road vehicles with off-road
capabilities, off-road vehicles and trucks, allém vehicles, or ATVs, snowmobiles, specialty wids and applications, and motorcycles.
Some of our products are specifically designedraatketed to some of the leading original equipnmeamufacturers (“OEMs”), while others
are distributed directly to consumers through dglmetwork of dealers and distributors. We weomiporated in Delaware on December 28,
2007 by Compass Group Diversified Holdings LLC,r(tlponsor”). Our common stock is traded on the AR Global Select Market (the
“NASDAQ") under the symbol “FOXF.”

Our History

Robert C. Fox, Jr. began developing suspensioruptedn 1974 when, having participated in motocrasing, he sought to create a racing
suspension shock that performed better than egistiil spring shocks. Working in a friend’s garaljlr, Fox created the “Fox AirShox.” The
product was successful, and went into productiol®ins. The next year, in 1976, Fox AirShox was usethe rider who won the AMA 500cc
National Motocross Championsh

Sales of Fox AirShox grew rapidly and, in 1978, operating subsidiary, Fox Factory, Inc., was ipcoated in California. From 1978 to 19¢
FOX suspension users won numerous major racesdingb00cc Grand Prix races (motocross), Baja 1866s (off-road), AMA SuperBike
races (motorcycle road racing), and the Indianaf@ race (auto racing), generating greater maskateness of the FOX brand among
enthusiasts.

As FOX grew, we applied many of the same core suspe technologies developed for motocross ra@rgher categories. For example, in
1987 we started selling high-performance suspermioducts for snowmobiles. By 1991, we began supglthe mountain bike industry with
rear shocks and we entered the ATV and other @ttreehicle markets in the mid-1990s. Starting i8120ve began offering front fork
suspension products for mountain bikes.

Our Sponsor purchased a controlling interest inruganuary 4, 2008. As of December 31, 2013, tkegficially owned approximately 53.9%
of our outstanding common stock.

Description of our Business

We are a designer, manufacturer and marketer bfpégformance suspension products used primarilyjoantain bikes, Side-by-Sides, on-
road vehicles with off-road capabilities, off-roaehicles and trucks, all-terrain vehicles, or AT¥8pwmobiles, specialty vehicles and
applications, and motorcycles. We believe our peatgloffer innovative design, performance, durapaind reliability. Through our products
enhance ride dynamics, which we define as theptagbetween the rider, the vehicle and the tertarimproving performance and control.
Our brand is associated with high-performance anbrtologically advanced products, by which we galhemean products that provide users
with improved control and a smoother ride whilanglover rough terrain in varied environments. Véédve that the performance of our
products has been demonstrated by, and our brareditssfrom, the success of professional athletes wse our products in elite competitive
events, such as the Union Cycliste Internationadeiiain Bike World Cup and the X Games. We beligneeexposure our products receive
when used by successful professional athletesiypelgiinfluences the purchasing habits of enthusiasd other consumers seeking high-
performance products. We believe that our stratiegias on the performance and racing segmentsrimarkets influences many aspiring and
enthusiast consumers who we believe seek to enthiatgerformance of professional and other elitdetes. We believe our products are
generally sold at premium prices, which to us meaasufacturer suggested retail sale prices thagemerally in the upper quatrtile of their
respective product categories.

We design our products for, and market our prodiggtsome of the world’s leading OEMSs, in our maskand to consumers through the
aftermarket channel. Many of our OEM customerduitiog Giant, Scott, Specialized and Trek in moumtakes and BRP, Ford and Polaris in
powered vehicles, are among the market leaderginriespective product categories, and help stepeell as respond to, consumer trends ir
their respective categories. We believe that OEfitngrominently display and incorporate our praduo improve the marketability and
consumer demand for their high-performance moaéigh reinforces our brand image. In addition, eoners select our products in the
aftermarket channel where we market through a ¢loétavork of dealers and distributors.

We have experienced strong sales and profit growh the past few years. Our sales increased faproaimately $197.7 million in 2011 to
approximately $272.7 million in 2013. Over the sgmeiod, our net income increased from approxinge®&B.5 million to approximately
$24.1 million.

For clarification, we are not affiliated with Foxelld, Inc., an action sports apparel company.






Table of Contents

Recent Developments

On March 5, 2014, we entered into a definitive agrent to acquire the business of Sport Truck USPp@It Truck”) a full service, globally
recognized distributor, primarily of its own brawndaftermarket suspension solutions and reselleupproducts. Sport Truck also designs,
markets, and distributes high quality lift kit stuns through their wholly owned subsidiaries BD&@ension and Zone Offroad Products. The
acquisition of Sport Truck is well-aligned with omission of improving vehicle performance, delimgrthe best in-class service, and entering
into strategic adjacent markets. We will acquirerspruck in an asset purchase transaction foragmately $44 million due at closing. The
transaction is being financed with debt and inctud@otential earn-out opportunity of up to a maximof $29.3 million payable over the next
three years contingent upon the achievement adicgperformance based financial targets. The t@imsais subject to approval by the
employee stock ownership plan shareholders of Spak and is also subject to customary closingd@@mns. The transaction is expected to
close by the end of March 2014.

On February 24, 2014, we filed a Current Reporform 8-K announcing that our board of directorsraped the promotion of certain officers
in connection with our newly formed strategic besis development group.

Industry

We participate in the large global markets for ntaimbikes and powered vehicles used by recredtanhprofessional users. Today, our
products for powered vehicles are used primarilsate-by-Sides, on-road vehicles with off-road dalitées, off-road vehicles and trucks,
ATVs, snowmobiles, specialty vehicles and applaadi and motorcycles.

The markets in which we participate are diversegggohically and by product type. We focus on thengum priced products within each of
these categories, and consider these premium peroellicts to be in the high-end segment becautienfhigher retail sale prices. We believe
consumers in the high-end segment have a prefefeneell-designed, performance-oriented equipm@ére.believe that suspension systems
are critical to the performance of the mountairebiknd powered vehicles in the product categariadich we focus and that technical
features, component performance, product desigapdity, reliability and brand recognition strogghfluence the purchasing decisions of
consumers. Over the past decade, there have lggeficsint technological advances in materials aatires that have increased product
functionality and performance, allowing high-endsension products to be adapted for use in additiemd-markets, such as in the mountain
bike and powered vehicle categories.

We believe the high-end segments in which we ppdie are well positioned for growth due to sevéators, including:

e increasing average retail sales prices, which viiesmeare driven by differentiated and fea-rich products with advanced technologi

e continuing product cycle innovation, which wavk observed often motivates consumers to upgrradiparchase new products for
enhanced performanc

e branded auto OEMs introducing-road vehicles with o-road capabilities, such as the For150 SVT Raptor; an
* increased sales opportunities for I-end mountain bikes and powered vehicles in intesnat markets
As vehicles in our end-markets evolve and grow noagable, suspension products and components leaoenle, and we believe will continue

to become, increasingly more important for impropedformance and control. Additionally, we beligkiere are opportunities to continue to
leverage our technical know-how in suspension prtadto provide solutions beyond our current endketas:

Our Competitive Strengths
Broad offering of higk-performance products across multiple consumer mei

Our suspension products enhance ride dynamicssagrabiple consumer markets. Through the use afsddble suspension, position sensitive
damping, multiple air spring technologies, lightgigi and rigid materials, and other technologiesrapthods, our products improve the
performance and control of the vehicles used byconsumers. We believe our reputation for highqreniince products is reinforced by the
successful finishes in world class competitive ¢sday athletes incorporating our products in thehicles, including the following examples
2013:

» three out of four Union Cycliste Internationale Wdo€up Mountain Bike Series title
* World Off Road Championship Series Side x Side Betidn 1000 Class Championsh

* American Motorcyclist Association, or AMA, Pro AT&@hampionship and first place finishes in 10 out@fraces

2
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* International Series of Champions National Pro Opkeampionship for snowmobiles and first place fieisin 16 out of 16 races; a

* two out of two overall Pro 2 Championships &ingt place finishes in 21 out of 29 Pro 2 racethia TORC and LOORRS off-road short
course racing serie

Premium brand with strong consumer loyal

We believe that we have developed a reputatiohifgir--performance products and our trademarks, aadfFOX®, and FOX RACING SHOX
®  designate a premium brand, as our high-performanspension products are generally sold at premiigas. Our FOX® logo is
prominently displayed on our products used on mainrtiikes and powered vehicles sold by our OEMarusts, which helps further reinforce
our brand image. We believe that our brand haseaeHistrong loyalty from our consumers. To suppaortbrand, we introduce new products
that we believe feature innovative technologiesgiesi to improve vehicle performance and enhancd@and loyalty with consumers.

Track record of innovation and new product introdtions

Innovation, including new product development, kegt component of our growth strategy. Due to ogregience in suspension engineering
and design in multiple markets and with a varidtyehicles, we are able to bring unique ride dyre@nsiolutions to our customers, often
developed for use in one market and ultimately ayggrd across multiple markets. For example, ouresgm the high-end ATV category led to
the widespread adoption of our suspension techgafothe Side-bySide market, which became our second largest ptadtegory by sales
2012. Our innovative product development and spe@darket are supported by:

* ourracing culture, including on-site technicate support of professional athletes, which mhesius with unique real-time insights as to
the evolving ride dynamic needs of those parti@iggin worlc-class events

* ongoing research and development team of eagirend technicians focused on designing innovatiwducts, testing, and developing
engineerin-based solutions to enhance our product offeri

» feedback from professional athletes, race teantsusiasts and other consumers who use our proc

» strategic and collaborative relationships viBM customers, which furthers our ability to exteadhnologies and applications across
enc-markets; ant

e our integrated manufacturing facilities and perfane testing center, which allow us to quickly méeen concept to produc

During 2013, we launched more than 20 new prodartisgenerated more than 70% of our sales from ptsduiroduced by us during the last
three years, such as the:

» Podium RC3, which provides external adjustntkat allows the shock to easily be tuned for défemider skill, terrain, and racing type
without having to be disassembls

* Float X Evol, which allows the rider to tune theieg characteristics of the shock via an air punigheut having to remove the shoc

 ECS Shock, which has an external cooling systemsignificantly lowers shock temperatures,wwit@ powered vehicles to operate at
higher speeds for extended periods without sagrdidriver control, particularly in extreme enviraents; anc

» Float iCD, which provides riders the abilitydadjust modes for different skills, terrains anthéty levels on mountain bikes, resulting in
increased utilization of the modes and an overallerefficient ride dynamics experien:

Strategic brand for OEMs, dealers and distributc

Through our strategic relationships, we are oftmght out by our OEM customers and work closehhwliem to develop and design new
products and product enhancements. We believealaborative approach and product development s strengthen our relationships
with our OEM customers. We believe consumers valuebranded suspension products when selectinggegiormance mountain bikes and
powered vehicles, and as a result, OEMs purchad@anrporate our products in their mountain bi&ed powered vehicles in order to
increase the sales of their premium priced prodilictaddition, we believe the inclusion of our puots on high-end mountain bikes and
powered vehicles reinforces our premium brand imvalgieh helps to drive our sales in the aftermadtetnnel where dealers and distributors
sell our products to consumers.
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Experienced management tea

We have an experienced senior management teany learty L. Enterline, our Chief Executive OfficeZollectively, our eight member senior
management team has an average tenure at FOX iaxapately eight years per person. In addition, yna@mbers of our management team
and many of our employees are avid users of oudymts, which further extends their knowledge of] arpertise in, our products and end-
markets. We are able to attract and retain highinéd and specialized employees who enhance ouwpaay culture and serve as strong branc
advocates.

Our Strategy

Our goal is to expand our leadership position designer, manufacturer and marketer of high-perdmee products designed to enhance ride
dynamics. As part of our strategic goals to expamdl strengthen our position in the marketplaceregently formalized a business
development group to focus on inorganic and orgpatential growth opportunities, for example, idBnand assess possible acquisition
opportunities, aid the business in analyzing groaltérnatives and to manage select, critical ptsjand programs. We intend to focus on the
following key strategies in pursuit of this goal:

Continue to develop new and innovative productscirrent end-markets

We intend to continue to develop and introduce aad innovative products in our current end-markeimprove ride dynamics for our
consumers. For example, our patented position+tdemsiamping systems provide terrain optimized dHaracteristics across many of our
product lines. We believe that high-performance @mtrol are important to a large portion of ounsemer base, and that our frequent
introduction of products with innovative and impeaitechnologies increases both OEM and aftermadmind as consumers seek out
products for their vehicles that can deliver thelsaracteristics. We also believe evolving marlends, such as changing mountain bike whee
sizes and increasing adoption rates of Side-by-&tiécles, should increase demand for vehiclesimead-markets, which, in turn, should
increase demand for our suspension products.

Leverage technology and brand to expand into newegaries and en-markets

We believe that we have a reputation as a lead&dendynamics, and that our reputation combingth wur ability to improve the performance
of vehicles by incorporating high-performance susi@n products, results in us often being approditlyeOEM product development teams,
athletes and others looking to improve the perferreeof their vehicles, including in end-marketsvinich we have not previously offered
products. We believe that our ride dynamics teabgiek have applications in end-markets in whicrdevaot currently participate in a
meaningful way, and we intend to selectively depgdooducts for and forge relationships with custmie additional markets. These markets
may include military, recreational vehicles (RV@);road motorcycles, commercial trucks and “perfamoe street” cars. We also intend to
evaluate selective potential acquisition opportasifor highperformance products and technologies that we\meiMll help us extend our ric
dynamics platform.

Increase our aftermarket penetratio

We currently have a broad aftermarket distributietwork of more than 2,500 retail dealers and ithistors worldwide. We intend to further
penetrate the aftermarket channel by selectivelljraddealers and distributors in certain geograpiéckets, increasing our internal sales force
and strategically expanding aftermarket-specifmdpicts and services to existing vehicle platforms.

Accelerate international growt!

While a significant percentage of our current salesto OEMs and dealers and distributors locatgside the United States, we believe
international expansion represents a significapbapinity for us and we intend to selectively irage infrastructure investments and focus on
identified geographic regions. We believe thahgstonsumer discretionary income in a number oéliging markets and increasing
consumer preferences for premium, high-performamoentain bikes and powered vehicles, should cantgito increasing demand for our
products. In addition, we believe increasing in&ional viewership of racing and extreme sports@thér outdoor events, such as the X
Games, is contributing to growing internationaltjggpation in activities where our products aredis#&/'e intend to leverage our brand
recognition to capitalize on these trends by insiregpour sales to both OEMs and dealers and distrib globally, particularly in markets
where we perceive significant opportunities. Owaarof greatest interest include Asia-Pacific (paldrly China, South Korea and Australia)
and South America (particularly Brazil, ArgentinadaChile).

Improve operating and supply chain efficienci

We intend to improve operating margins in the medtarm by enhancing our design and production @ms&®to increase efficiencies, redu
new product time to market and lowering productosts. Specifically, we are in the process of mgwrmajority of the manufacturing of our
mountain bike products to Taiwan and intend to detegthis process in 2015. We believe this tramsito Taiwan, once completed, will
shorten production lead times to our mountain M customers, improve supply chain efficiencied sesduce manufacturing costs.

4
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Our Products

We design and manufacture higarformance suspension products that dissipaterteegy and force generated by mountain bikes ane@o
vehicles while they are in motion. A suspensiordpiet allows wheels or skis (in the case of snowmeghio move up and down to absorb
bumps and shocks while maintaining contact withgtmund for better control. Our products use adjoist suspension, position sensitive
damping, multiple air spring technologies, low weignd structural rigidity, all of which improvearscontrol for greater performance.

We use high-grade materials in our products ane kiaveloped a number of sophisticated assemblygses to maintain quality across all
product lines. Our suspension products are assemablzording to precise specifications throughoeatabsembly process to create consistentl
high performance levels and customer satisfaction.

Mountain bikes

In our mountain bike product category, we offer epmid-end and high-end front fork and rear susipansroducts designed for crossuntry,
trail, all-mountain, free-ride and downhill riding/e also offer a ride-height adjustable seat postyect, our D.O.S.S. remote adjustable seat
post, which we introduced in 2012 to allow a ritteadjust his or her seat position for uphill, irdl trail or downhill riding without having to
stop the mountain bike to adjust the seat. Our rronibike products are sold in three series: (f)BEwolution series, designed for demanding,
yet valueminded, enthusiasts; (ii) our Performance sedesigned for experienced enthusiasts and expeirtsridnd (iii) our Factory series,
which is designed for maximum performance at agssibnal level.

Powered vehicle

In our powered vehicle product category, we offighkend suspension products for Side-by-Sidespad-rehicles with off-road capabilities,
off-road vehicles and trucks, ATVs, snowmobilesd@plty vehicles and applications, and motorcydRrsducts for these vehicles are designe
for trail riding, racing and performance. Our protiuhave also been used on limited quantitiesfafoafd military vehicles and other small-
scale select military applications. Our productthie powered vehicle category range from two inaimamum bolt-on shocks to our patented
position sensitive internal bypass shocks.

Product Development

We are committed to the development and introdnatifctechnologically advanced products that featunevative designs and high-quality
materials. We strive to maintain our product leatlgr through the introduction of new and innovagiweducts and enhancements and
refinements to our existing products. In 2013, sauenched more than 20 new products, including comtRCD fork and rear shock, 34 Factory
FIT CTD fork, Dual Speed Compression module andBanitom Out Cup position-sensitive damping module.

Research and Development

Research and development is at the core of ounptadnovation and market leadership strategy. \teeha growing team of engineers and
technicians focused on designing innovative praguesting, and developing engineering-based soisitio enhance our product offerings. In
addition, a large number of our other employees)yntd whom use our products in their recreatiomdvities, contribute to our research and
development and product innovation initiatives. iffirevolvement in the development of new produetsges from participating in initial
brainstorming sessions to ride testing productievelopment. Product development also includeslgothting with OEM customers across
end-markets, field testing by professional athletes sponsored race teams and working with entsisséad other users of our products. This
feedback helps us to develop innovative productsiwimeet our demanding standards as well as thgirgaeeds of professional and
recreational end users and to quickly commercidliese products.

Our research and development activities are supgdny state-of-the-art engineering software desigts, integrated manufacturing facilities
and a performance testing center equipped to eehamoeciuct safety, durability and high-performar@ar testing center collects data and tests
products prior to and after commercial introductiSaspension products undergo a variety of rigopmrformance and accelerated life tests
before they are introduced into the market. Theassh and development portion of our total engingerosts totaled approximately $10.4
million, $9.7 million and $9.8 million in 2013, 2@Jand 2011, respectively.

Intellectual Property
Intellectual property is an important aspect of business. We rely upon a combination of paterademarks, trade names, licensing
arrangements, trade secrets, know-how and propyriegahnology in order to secure and protect otalliectual property rights.

Our infhouse counsel and external intellectual propeggueces diligently protect our new technologieqwpiitents and trademarks and de
against patent infringement allegations. As of Delger 31, 2013, we owned 37 patents on proprietanyriologies related to vehicle
suspension and other products and had approxim@2egbatent pending applications on file in the W&
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European Patent Offices. Our principal intellecpralperty also includes our trademarks. We haveertitan 50 pending or registered
trademarks in the U.S. and a number of internatipmesdictions, including the marks FOX, FOX RACING SHOX® and REDEFINE YOUF
LIMITS @. Although our intellectual property is importantdor business operations and in the aggregate tutesta valuable asset, we do
believe that any single patent, trademark or tssdeet is critical to the success of our business\ahole. We cannot be certain that our paten
applications will be issued or that any issued miatevill provide us with any competitive advantagesvill not be challenged by third parties.

In addition to the foregoing protections, we geligieontrol access to and use of our proprietany atiher confidential information through the
use of internal and external controls, includingtcactual protections with employees, OEMs, disttdlos and others. Despite these protection:
we may be unable to prevent third parties fromaisiar intellectual property without our authoripatj breaching any nondisclosure
agreements with us, or independently developindyxets that are similar to ours, particularly inga@ountries where the laws do not protect
our proprietary rights as fully as in the Unite@tss.

Seasonality

Our business is largely seasonal. In each of #taliaee fiscal years, our quarterly sales have telowest in the first quarter and the highes
during our third quarter of the year. For exampld, sales in our first and third quarters of 204@8resented 20% and 30% of our total sales fo
the year, respectively. We believe this seasonalitiue to the delivery of new products, includig suspension products related to the new
mountain bike season, during the late spring eaeln.y

Practices Related to Working Capital Items

Information about the Company’s working capitalgiiges is incorporated herein by reference to “Mgmaent’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition” and “Results of Operations™Hart Il, ltem 7 and the “Consolidated Statemer@agh Flows” in Part Il, Item 8 of this
Form 10-K.

Customers

Our OEM customers include market leaders in thesipective categories, and help define, as wekg®ond to, consumer trends in their
respective industries. These OEM customers inctugtgoroducts on a number of their high-performamoelels. We believe OEMs often use
our products to improve the marketability and dedhaftheir own products, which, in turn, strength@ur brand image. In addition,
consumers select our high-performance productsdraftermarket channel, where we market throudblzainetwork of dealers and
distributors. We currently sell to more than 150M3Eand distribute our products to more than 2,%88ilrdealers and distributors worldwide.
In 2013, 81% of our sales resulted from sales t&i@Estomers and 19% resulted from sales to deatedslistributors for resale in the
aftermarket channel. No material portion of ouribess is subject to renegotiation of profits ontieration of contracts or subcontracts at the
election of the U.S. government.

Sales attributable to our 10 largest OEM customeng;h can vary from year-to-year, collectively aanted for approximately 57%, 56% and
53% of our sales in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respdygtive

Although we refer to the branded mountain bike OEMs use our products throughout this documeftibascustomers,” “our OEM
customers” or “our mountain bike OEM customersdruted mountain bike OEMs often use contract matwfas to manufacture and
assemble their bikes. As a result, even thoughypiedlly negotiate price and volume requirementsatly with our mountain bike OEM
customers, it is the contract manufacturer that plage the purchase order and therefore assumesgpensible for paying us. Giant Bicycles,
(“Giant”) is an OEM and a contract manufacturerdubg certain of our mountain bike OEM customerdeS#o Giant accounted for
approximately 17%, 13% and 12% of our sales in 2@032 and 2011, respectively.

Our domestic sales totaled $96.1 million, $84.3iariland $65.8 million, or 35%, 36% and 33% of total sales in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Our international sales totaled $8 76illion, $151.6 million and $132.0 million or 65%4% and 67% of our total sales in 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively. Sales attributabt®tmtries outside the United States are basedipmeht location. Our international sales,
however, do not necessarily reflect the locatiothefend users of our products, as many of ourymtscare incorporated into mountain bikes
that are assembled at international locations led shipped back to the United States. Additiom@rimation about our product segment and
certain geographic information is available in NbteSegment and Geographic Arezghe “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeirts”
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Mountain bikes

We sell our mountain bike suspension products teertttan 150 domestic and international bike OEMduding Scott, Specialized and Trek.
We have long-standing relationships with many eftthp mountain bike OEMs. After incorporating oungucts on their mountain bikes,
OEMs typically sell their mountain bikes to indedent dealers, which then sell directly to consumers

In the aftermarket, we typically sell to dealerghie U.S. and through distributors internationalyr dealers sell directly to aftermarket
consumers. Our overseas distributors sell to indéget dealers, which then sell directly to consuwmer






Table of Contents

Powered vehicle

We sell our suspension products for the poweredtieshindustry to OEMSs, including BRP, Ford andd?@l. We are also currently developing
relationships with new OEMSs, as the powered vehiolarket continues to grow. After incorporating ptwducts on their powered vehicles,
OEMs typically sell their powered vehicles to indagent dealers, which then sell directly to congsme

In the aftermarket, we typically sell through desland distributors, both in the U.S. and inteoraily. Our dealers sell directly to aftermarket
consumers. When we sell to our distributors, thedlite independent dealers, which then sell diyeitlconsumers.

Our product offerings currently target high-perfamse suspension products for Side-by-Sides, onwehitles with off-road capabilities, off-
road vehicles and trucks, ATVs, snowmobiles, spgcieehicles and applications, and motorcycles. aducts have also been used on lirr
guantities of off-road military vehicles and ottsanall-scale select military applications.

Sales and Marketing

We employ a strong team of dedicated and specihfiates professionals. Each sales professionallyscommitted to servicing our customers
within our product categories, ensuring that owgtamers are in contact with capable and knowledgesstles professionals to address their
specific needs. We strongly believe that providartgigh level of service to our end customers is®sal to maintaining our reputational
excellence in the marketplace. Our sales profealsarceive training on the latest FOX productstastinologies and attend trade shows to
increase their market knowledge.

Our marketing strategy focuses on strengtheningoaoichoting the FOX brand in the marketplace. Watsgically focus our marketing efforts
on enthusiasts seeking high-end suspension systecugh promotions at destination riding locatiansl individual and team sponsorships.
We believe that the performance of our productsbees demonstrated by, and our brand benefits fiteensuccess of professional athletes
use our products in elite competitive events, aagthe Union Cycliste Internationale Mountain Bikerld Cup and the X Games. We also
believe these successes positively influence thehasing habits of enthusiasts and other consuseeldng high-performance products. We
believe that our strategic focus on the performamzkracing segments in our markets influences raapiring and enthusiast consumers and
enables our products to be sold at premium prigetgd-or example, we sponsor a number of professiathletes and professional race team:
In order to continue to enhance our brand imagewilaeed to maintain our position in the suspengproducts industry and to continue to
provide high quality products and services. We halse been able to develop long-term strategiciogiships with leading OEMs. Our
reputation for high-performance suspension prodpietgs a critical role in our aftermarket salesdémsumers.

In addition to our website and traditional markgtahannels, such as print advertising and tradesjwe maintain an active social media
presence, including a Facebook page, a YouTubeneham Vimeo page and a Twitter feed to increaaadawareness, foster loyalty and builc
a community of users. As strategies and marketiagspare developed for our products, our interreadketing and communications group w

to ensure brand cohesion and consistency.

Suppliers

The primary raw materials used in the productioowfproducts are aluminum, magnesium and steelg®terally use multiple suppliers for
our raw materials and believe that our raw materdaé in adequate supply and available from mappl&rs at competitive prices. Prices for
our raw materials fluctuate from time to time, bigtorically, price fluctuations have not had a ena impact on our business.

We work closely with our supply base, and depermhugertain suppliers to provide raw inputs, sucfoegings, castings and molded polymers
that have been optimized for weight, structuratgnity, wear and cost. In certain circumstancesdeend upon a limited number of suppliers
for such raw inputs. We typically have no firm a@awtual sourcing agreements with our suppliersrdtien purchase orders.

Miyaki is the exclusive producer of the Kashimatewgfor our suspension component tubes. As pasuofagreement with Miyaki, which we
entered into in 2009, or the (“Kashima Agreement/¢, have been granted the exclusive right to us¢réldemark “KASHIMACOAT” on
products comprising the aluminum finished partssiaggpension components (e.g., tubes) and on redatesl and marketing material worldw
subject to a minimum model year order and certthieroexclusions. The Kashima Agreement does nadagominimum purchase obligations.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately @f&ifne employees in the United States, Europe Baidvan. We also use part-time
employees at our manufacturing facilities to hedpmeet seasonal demands. None of our employessilgjext to collective bargaining
agreements. We have never experienced a materniklst@ppage or disruption to our business relatingmployee matters. We believe that
relationship with our employees is good.
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Facilities

The following sets forth our principal facilities af December 31, 2013. All of our principal fatds are leased.

Approximate

Location Principal uses sq. footage
Scotts Valley, California Corporate headquarters, sales, research and denesht 51,23¢
Scotts Valley, Californi Manufacturing 42,81
Watsonville, Californie Manufacturing and servic 86,00(
Watsonville, Californie Distribution and warehousir 12,941
El Cajon, Californie Manufacturing, sales, service, and research anelaiewment 30,15
Taichung, Taiwal Manufacturing and sale 28,00(
Rodalben, German Distribution and servic 10,05¢
Baxter, Minnesoti Sales and servic 9,33t

Manufacturing

We manufacture and complete final assembly on mayzts. By controlling the manufacturing processwr products, we are able to maini
our strict quality standards, customize our machenad processes for the specific requirements opmducts, and quickly respond to feedt
we receive on our products in development and waiiser Furthermore, manufacturing our own produntsbées us to adjust our labor and
production inputs to meet seasonal demands anclidtemized requirements of some of our customers.

Although we currently manufacture most of our sigpen products at our California facilities, we arehe process of transitioning the
majority of our mountain bike products manufactgreperations to our new facility in Taichung, Taiwavith the final completion of the
transition scheduled for 2015. In connection with ransition, we expect to utilize suppliers whe Bcated closer to our facility in Taichung,
Taiwan for a number of materials and componentscWeently have limited manufacturing operationsat Taiwan facility, where we
presently manufacture our adjustable seat posb#rad select mountain bike products. During thasit#éon period, we intend to manufacture
mountain bike suspension products at both ourifadil Watsonville, California and in Taichung, Wi&n, thereby providing us with dual
manufacturing facilities and reducing the riskmierruptions. In addition, during the transitiorripd, we intend to train certain of our Taicht
employees at our Watsonville facility as a way éfphus maintain our quality control. We believetttie orderly transition of the majority of
our mountain bike manufacturing operations fromifGalia to our new facility in Taiwan should enahis to maintain our strict quality control
standards, meet product demand requirements amchtelthe majority of the manufacturing of our pratd for mountain bikes to a location
that is geographically close to a number of our ntam bike OEMs, many of which are located in Taiwé/e estimate that our sales to
mountain bike OEMs located in Taiwan representga@pmately 50% of our total sales to mountain biéMs in the year ended

December 31, 2013.

Once the transition of the majority of our mounthike product manufacturing operations is complet anticipate converting the Watsonv
facility primarily to the manufacturing of powergdhicle suspension products. We believe that thiwersion process will help us to increase
our manufacturing capacity for our powered vehprieducts, which should help us to reduce our lead to our powered vehicle OEMs.

We had approximately $22.4 million and $30.6 miilia firm backlog orders at December 31, 2013 a&tP2respectively. The reduction in
2013 backlog, as compared to 2012, is largely dwhange in our year-end production shut down whizturred in late December of fiscal
2012 and resulted in higher backlog as of year-&ha shut down did not recur in 2013.
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Competition

The markets for suspension products are highly edithge. We compete with other companies that peedsuspension products for sale to
OEMs, dealers and distributors, as well as with GENat produce their own line of suspension pralfarttheir own use. Some of our
competitors may have greater financial, researchdawvelopment or marketing resources than we dmp@tition in the high-end segment of
the suspension products market revolves arounaitadfeatures, performance, product design, intiomareliability and durability, brand,
time to market, customer service and reliable oedercution. While the pricing of competing produstalways a factor, we believe the high-
performance of our products helps justify our pramipricing. We compete with several large suspengioviders and numerous small
manufacturers that provide branded and unbrandstupts across all of our product lines. These caape can be divided into the following
categories:

Mountain bikes

Within the market for mountain bike suspension pigid, we compete with several companies that maturiafront and rear suspension
products, including RockShox (a subsidiary of SREBFporation), X-Fusion Shox (a wholly-owned subaigiof A-Pro), Manitou (a
subsidiary of HB Performance Systems), SR SunfotirSwiss (a subsidiary of Vereinigte Drahtwerke A€BY Marzocchi (Tenneco), Cane
Creek Cycling, DVO Suspension and Bos-Moutain ESkispensions.

Powered vehicle

Within the market for powered vehicle suspensiadpcts, we compete with several companies in diffesubmarkets. We believe a
significant competitor for suspension productshi@ $nowmobile market is KYB (Kayaba Industry Cdd.). Other suppliers of suspension
products for snowmobiles include Ohlins Racing ABalker Evans Racing, Works Performance Products,dnd Penske Racing Shocks /
Custom Axis, Inc. In the ATV and Side-by-Side maskeutside of captive OEM suppliers, we competh &F Sachs (ZF Friedrichshafen
AG) and Walker Evans Racing for OEM business akeé Bluspension Inc., Ohlins Racing AB, Works Perforoe Products and Penske
Racing Shocks / Custom Axis, Inc. for aftermarkesibess. In the market for off-road and speciadtigislesuspension products, we believe
two biggest competitors are ThyssenKrupp Bilstaisggnsion GmbH (commonly known as Bilstein) andgkamock Technology, Inc.
(commonly known as King Shock). Other competitoidude Icon Vehicle Dynamics, Sway-A-Way, Pro CodfpA Suspension and Rancho
(Tenneco).

Government Regulation
Environmental

Our manufacturing operations, facilities and praipsrin the United States and Taiwan are subjeevtiving foreign, international, federal,
state and local environmental and occupationaltiheald safety laws and regulations, including thgeeerning air emissions, wastewater
discharge and the storage and handling of chemacmlhazardous substances. If we fail to compli sitch laws and regulations, we could be
subject to significant fines, penalties, costdjiliies or restrictions on operations, which coalhatively affect our financial condition.

We believe that our operations are in compliant@]limaterial respects, with applicable environtaband occupational health and safety |
and regulations, and our compliance with such lamgregulations has not had, nor is it expectdtate, a material impact on our earnings or
competitive position. However, new requirementsrergiringent application of existing requirementshe discovery of previously unknown
environmental conditions could result in material/ieonmental related expenditures in the future.

Employment

We are also subject to numerous foreign, fedetatie and local government laws and regulations iganveg our relationships with our
employees, including those relating to minimum wamertime, working conditions, hiring and firingon-discrimination, work permits and
employee benefits. We believe that our operatisacanducted in compliance, in all material respeeith such laws and regulations.

Consumer safety

We are subject to the jurisdiction of the Unitedt8$ Consumer Product Safety Commission, or theQCBSd other federal, state and foreign
regulatory bodies. Under CPSC regulations, a matwfar of consumer goods is obligated to notify@RSC, if, among other things, the
manufacturer becomes aware that one of its prodhast® defect that could create a substantiabfighjury. If the manufacturer has not alre
undertaken to do so, the CPSC may require a mamnwéado recall a product, which may involve prodegpair, replacement or refund. During
the past three years, we initiated one voluntaogpcet recall.

Government Contracts

No material portion of the business is subjecetmegotiation of profits or termination of contraotssubcontracts at the election of the |
government



Financial Information about Segments and Geographi@&reas

We operate in one reportable segment, high-perfoceauspension products. Additional informationutour product segment and certain
geographic information is available in Note S#gment and Geographic Areafthe “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtghis

Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Corporate and Available Information

Our principal executive offices are located at ®91&c Drive, Scotts Valley, CA 95066, and our telepé number is (831) 274-6500. Our
website address is www.ridefox.com. In addition,megintain a Facebook page at www.facebook.com/B¥X ouTube channel at
www.youtube.com/foxracingshox1 , a Vimeo page atwwimeo.com / foxracingshox and a Twitter feed atwtwitter.com/foxracingshox.
Information contained on, or that can be accedsexaifjh, our website, Facebook page, YouTube chakimako page or Twitter feed does not
constitute part of this Annual Report and inclusiof our website address, Facebook page addres3ube channel address, Vimeo page
address and Twitter feed address in this AnnuabRege inactive textual references only.

We file reports with the U.S. Securities and Exde@ommission (“SEC”), including Annual Reportskorm 10-K, Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and anyrditiegs required by the SEC. We make availableoan Investor Relations website, free
of charge, our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quérteeports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Forkq &nd all amendments to those
reports, as soon as reasonably practicable afteleetronically file such material with, or furnigtto, the SEC. The information on our weh
is not incorporated by reference into this AnnuapBrt on Form 10-K or in any other report or docotnee file with the SEC.

The public may read and copy any materials wexfith the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Roofr0atF Street, NE, Washington, DC
20549. The public may obtain information on theratien of the Public Reference Room by calling 8tC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC
maintains an Internet site (http://www.sec.gov} tiantains reports, proxy and information statememnd other information regarding issuers
that file electronically with the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, financial condition, operating ressattd prospects could be materially and adverstdgtad by various risks and uncertainties.
In addition to the risks and uncertainties discdsgeewhere in this Form 10-K, you should carefatipsider the risks and uncertainties
described below. If any of the risks actually o¢awur business, financial condition, operating ltssand prospects could be materially and
adversely affected. In that event, the tradingegpdatour common stock could decline.

Risks Related to Our Business

If we are unable to continue to enhance existingoptucts and develop and market new products thapoesl to consumer needs ai
preferences and achieve market acceptance, we mpgrence a decrease in demand for our productsd aur business and financie
results could suffer.

Our growth strategy involves the continuous dewvelept of innovative high-performance products. We mat be able to compete as
effectively with our competitors, and ultimatelytisy the needs and preferences of our custometdtenend users of our products, unless we
can continue to enhance existing products and dpvew, innovative products in the global marketa/hich we compete. In addition, we
must continuously compete not only for end users pirchase our products through the dealers atvibdi®rs who are our customers, but
also for the original equipment manufacturers, &M3, which incorporate our products into their miaim bikes and powered vehicles. These
OEMs regularly evaluate our products against tlodsmir competitors to determine if they are allogthe OEMs to achieve higher sales and
market share on a cost-effective basis. Shouldomeore of our OEM customers determine that thaydachieve overall better financial
results by incorporating a competitor's new or 8mgs product, they would likely do so, which coldrm our business, financial condition or
results of operations.

Product development requires significant finandethnological and other resources. While we exedragpproximately $10.4 million, $9.7
million and $9.8 million for our research and deyghent efforts in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectjibbre can be no assurance that this leve
of investment in research and development willdféicgent in the future to maintain our competitimdvantage in product innovation, which
could cause our business, financial condition eults of operations to suffer.

Product improvements and new product introductreqgiire significant planning, design, developmeamt esting at the technological, product
and manufacturing process levels, and we may expagiunanticipated delays in our introduction afdoict improvements or new products.
Our competitors’ new products may beat our prodtectaarket, be more effective and/or less expertsiaa our products, obtain better market
acceptance or render our products obsolete. Anypreducts that we develop may not receive market@ance or otherwise generate any
meaningful sales or profits for us relative to expectations. In addition, one of our competitarsld develop an unforeseen and entirely new
product or technology that renders our products desirable or obsolete, which could negativelgafour business, financial condition or
results of operations.

We face intense competition in all product linescluding from some competitors that may have gredteancial and marketing resources.
Failure to compete effectively against competitoveuld negatively impact our business and operatiegults.

The suspension industry is highly competitive. V@mpete with a number of other manufacturers thadiyce and sell suspension products to
OEMs and aftermarket dealers and distributorsputioly OEMs that produce their own line of suspemgimducts for their own use. Our
continued success depends on our ability to coatinilcompete effectively against our competitoose of which have significantly greater
financial, marketing and other resources than we halso, several of our competitors offer broagerduct lines to OEMs, which they may
sell in connection with suspension products as @faatpackage offering. In the future, our compesitmay be able to maintain and grow branc
strength and market share more effectively or duitkan we do by anticipating the course of madetelopments more accurately than we
developing products that are superior to our prtsjureating manufacturing or distribution capaiedi that are superior to ours, producing
similar products at a lower cost than we can optidg more quickly than we do to new technologieswwlving regulatory, industry or
customer requirements, among other possibilitiesiddition, we may encounter increased competitionr current competitors broaden their
product offerings by beginning to produce additidgpes of suspension products or through competidasolidations. We could also face
competition from well-capitalized entrants into thigh-performance suspension product market, akaselggressive pricing tactics by other
manufacturers trying to gain market share. As altesur products may not be able to compete ssfolyg with our competitors’ products,
which could negatively affect our business, finahcondition or results of operations.

Our business is sensitive to economic conditionattimpact consumer spending. Our suspension prodieind the mountain bikes and
powered vehicles into which they are incorporatede discretionary purchases and may be adverselpdnted by changes in the econon

Our business depends substantially on global ecanand market conditions. In particular, we beli¢hat currently a significant majority of
the end users of our products live in the Uniteatét and countries in Europe. These areas are #ittiee process of recovering from recessiol
or, in some cases, are still struggling with remesgisruption in banking and/or financial systemsonomic weakness and uncertainty. In
addition, our products are recreational in nature @e generally discretionary purchases by consur@®nsumers are usually more willing to
make discretionary purchases during periods ofrigble general economic conditions and high conswmefidence. Discretionary spending
may also be affected by many other factors, inclgdnterest rates,
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the availability of consumer credit, taxes and comsr confidence in future economic conditions. Bgmeriods of unfavorable economic
conditions, or periods when other negative marétetars exist, consumer discretionary spendingdeally reduced, which in turn could
reduce our product sales and have a negative effiestir business, financial condition or result®pérations.

There could also be a number of secondary effestdting from an economic downturn, such as insayef our suppliers resulting in prod
delays, an inability of our OEM and distributor ashehler customers to obtain credit to finance pageb of our products, customers delaying
payment to us for the purchase of our productstddi@ancial hardship or an increase in bad depeasge. Any of these effects could
negatively affect our business, financial conditimresults of operations.

If we are unable to maintain our premium brand imagour business may suffe

Our products are selected by both OEMs and dealetslistributors in part because of the premiumdraputation we hold with them and
end users. Therefore, our success depends on ilityr mbmaintain and build our brand image. We &dwocused on building our brand through
producing products that we believe are innovativgh in performance and highly reliable. In additiour brand benefits from our strong
relationships with our OEM customers and dealedsdistributors and through marketing programs aiestethountain bike and powered
vehicle enthusiasts in various media and othermblanFor example, we sponsor a number of profeabathletes and professional race team:
In order to continue to enhance our brand imagewiNaeed to maintain our position in the suspengbroducts industry and continue to
provide high quality products and services. Alse,will need to continue to invest in sponsorshiparketing and public relations.

There can be no assurance, however, that we wibbeto maintain or enhance the strength of camdbin the future. Our brand could be
adversely impacted by, among other things:

» failure to develop new products that are innovathigr-performance and reliabl

» internal product quality control issue

» product quality issues on the mountain bikes andgped vehicles on which our products are insta

e product recalls

» high profile component failures (such as a compofehure during a race on a mountain bike riddgrah athlete that we sponsc

e negative publicity regarding our sponsored athle

« high profile injury or death to one of our spongbathletes

e inconsistent uses of our brand and our other edglll property assets, as well as failure to ptatar intellectual property; ar

» changes in consumer trends and percept

Any adverse impact on our brand could in turn negt affect our business, financial condition esults of operations.

A significant portion of our sales are highly depdant on the demand for hic-end mountain bikes and their suspension componesmtsl a
material decline in the demand for these bikes beir suspension components could have a materiatede effect on our business or
results of operations.

Part of our success has been attributable to thetgrin the high-end mountain bike industry, in¢hglincreases in average retail sales prices
as better-performing product designs and technetolgave been incorporated into these productse Ipopularity of high-end or premium
priced mountain bikes does not increase or declthesnumber of mountain bike enthusiasts seekioh sountain bikes or premium priced
suspension products for their mountain bikes doténerease or declines, or the average price méititese bikes declines, we may fail to
achieve future growth or our sales could decremse our business, financial condition or resultsfdrations could be negatively affected. In
addition, if current mountain bike enthusiasts giapchasing our products due to changes in prefeerwe may fail to achieve future growth
or our sales could be decreased, and our busiitemscial condition or results of operations coblnegatively affected.

Our growth in the powered vehicle category is degent upon our continued ability to expand our prodiusales into powered vehicles that
require high-performance suspension and the contadiexpansion of the market for these powered vedscl

Our growth in the powered vehicle category is int péributable to the expansion of the marketdowered vehicles that require high-
performance suspension products. Such market griowfides the creation of new classes of vehidiasieed our products, such as Side-by-
Sides, and our ability to create products for thedgcles. In the event these markets stopped ebipguior
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contracted, or we are unsuccessful in creatingpreducts for these markets or other competitorsesssfully enter into these markets, we ma:
fail to achieve future growth or our sales couldréase, and our business, financial condition sulte of operations could be negatively
affected.

A disruption in the operations of our manufacturinéacilities, including any disruption in connectiomwith moving a majority of the
manufacturing of our mountain bike products to Taawn, could have a negative effect on our businessafcial condition or results of
operations.

We recently began to transfer a majority of the ufiacturing of our mountain bike products to Taiwdfe contemplate that this transition will
continue through 2015, at which time we anticightd the majority of the manufacturing of our maintbike products will be completed in
Taiwan. During our transition process, we will ine@me duplication of facilities, equipment andgoemel, the amount of which could vary
materially from our projections. Also, the transitiprocess could cause manufacturing problems iaedige to execution risks, including
disruptions to employees, negative impact on engdayorale and retention, delays in recognizingiefficies or increased costs of
manufacturing, and adverse impacts on our produgtity and delivery times. In addition, we coulcceanter unforeseen difficulties resulting
from the distance and time zone differences betveeemain operations in California and our new Taivwmanufacturing facility. Should any
of these problems occur, our business, financiatitmn or results of operations could be negayiwdfected.

Equipment failures, delays in deliveries or catgstic loss at any of our facilities could lead toguction or service disruptions, curtailments
or shutdowns. In the event of a stoppage in prodnicr a slowdown in production due to high emplyarnover or a labor dispute at any of
our facilities, even if only temporary, or if wegience delays as a result of events that arenldegar control, delivery times to our custom
could be severely affected. If there was a manufaxg disruption in any of our manufacturing fatds, we might be unable to meet product
delivery requirements and our business, finan@abion or results of operations could be negéfiedfected, even if the disruption was
covered in whole or in part by our business intetinn insurance. Any significant delay in deliveri® our customers could lead to increased
returns or cancellations, expose us to damage slfxom our customers or damage our brand andyim negatively affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Our business depends substantially on the contirpigfforts of our senior management, and our busisesay be severely disrupted if we
lose their services.

We are heavily dependent upon the contributionentand leadership of our senior management tparticularly our Chief Executive Office
Larry L. Enterline. We do not have a “key persadfe Insurance policy on Mr. Enterline or any otlkely employees. We believe that the top
eight members of our senior management team arekestablishing our focus and executing our caf@strategies as they have extensive
knowledge of our systems and processes. Givenemimrsmanagement team’s knowledge of the suspepsamucts industry and the limited
number of direct competitors in the industry, wéehwe that it could be difficult to find replacentsrshould any of the members of our senior
management team leave. Our inability to find su@abplacements for any of the members of our sananagement team could negatively
affect our business, financial condition or resoftsperations.

We depend on skilled engineers to develop and eeair products, and the failure to attract and rétasuch individuals could adversely
affect our business.

We rely on skilled and well-trained engineers foe tlesign and production of our products, as veeihaur research and development
functions. Competition for such individuals is inse, particularly in Silicon Valley near where txaladquarters are located. Our inability to
attract or retain qualified employees in our desfgoduction or research and development functisredsewhere in our company could result
in diminished quality of our products and delinqueroduction schedules, impede our ability to depalew products and harm our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

We may not be able to sustain our past growth oceessfully implement our growth strategy, which mlagve a negative effect on our
business, financial condition or results of operatis.

We grew our sales from approximately $197.7 millior2011 to approximately $272.7 million in 201313 growth rate may be unsustainable.
Our future growth will depend upon various factangjuding the strength of our brand image, oufighio continue to produce innovative
suspension products, consumer acceptance of oduqis) competitive conditions in the marketplabe,drowth in emerging markets for
products requiring high-end suspension products iangeneral, the continued growth of the high-emalintain bike and powered vehicle
markets into which we sell our products. Our bsliefgarding the future growth of markets for higittsuspension products are based largely
on qualitative judgments and limited sources ang n@ be reliable. If we are unable to sustainmast growth or successfully implement our
growth strategy, our business, financial condittomesults of operations could be negatively aéfdct

The professional athletes and race teams who usemoducts are an important aspect of our brand ige The loss of the support of
professional athletes for our products or the indiby to attract new professional athletes may haour business

If our products are not used by current or futinafgssional athletes and race teams, our brandl ¢os# value and our sales could decline.
While our sponsorship agreements typically restriistsponsored athletes and race teams from progi@ndorsing or using competitors’
products that compete directly within our produategories during the term of the sponsorship ageeésnwe do not typically have lc-term



contracts with any of the athletes or race teamsmvive sponsor.

13



Table of Contents

If we are unable to maintain our current relatiopsiwith these professional athletes and race tedithese professional athletes and race
teams are no longer popular, if our sponsored tathiend race teams fail to have success or if e@rable to continue to attract the
endorsement of new professional athletes and emeed in the future, the value of our brand andsales could decline.

We depend on our relationships with dealers andudisitors and their ability to sell and service ogroducts. Any disruption in these
relationships could harm our sales.

We sell our aftermarket products to dealers antibigors, and we depend on their willingness apititg to market and sell our products to
consumers and provide customer and product seagiceeded. We also rely on our dealers and digtribto be knowledgeable about our
products and their features. If we are not ablediecate our dealers and distributors so that they effectively sell our products as part of a
positive buying experience, or if they fail to irapient effective retail sales initiatives, focudisglefforts on our competitorgroducts, reduc
the quantity of our products that they sell or iegltheir operations due to financial difficultiesatherwise, our brand and business could
suffer.

We do not control our dealers or distributors arehynof our contracts allow these entities to offer competitors’ products. Our competitors
may incentivize our dealers and distributors tafaheir products. In addition, we do not have ldegn contracts with a majority of our
dealers and distributors, and our dealers andhlistrs are not obligated to purchase specifieduartsoof our products. In fact, the majority of
our dealers and distributors buy from us on a pasetorder basis. Consequently, with little or nticeg many of these dealers and distributors
may terminate their relationships with us or matérireduce their purchases of our products. Ifwege to lose one or more of our dealers or
distributors, we would need to obtain a new deatatistributor to cover the particular locationpsoduct line, which may not be possible on
favorable terms or at all. Alternatively, we coulske our own sales force to replace such a dealistibutor, but expanding our sales force
into new locations takes a significant amount wigtiand resources and may not be successful. Funthery of our international distribution
contracts contain exclusivity arrangements, whigy mprevent us from replacing or supplementing aurent distributors under certain
circumstances.

We are a supplier in the high-end mountain bike apdwered vehicles markets, and our business is ddpat in large part on the orders we
receive from our OEM customers and from their susse

As a supplier to OEM customers, we are dependdat@e part on the success of the business of &M €ustomers. Model year changes by
our OEM customers may adversely impact our salesase our sales to vary from quarter to quanteaddition, losses in market share
individually or a decline in the overall marketair OEM customers or the discontinuance by our Giastomers of their products which
incorporate our products could negatively impactlmusiness, financial condition or results of opierss. For example, if our mountain bike
producing OEM customers reduce production of thigih-end mountain bikes, their orders to us forgnaducts would in turn be reduced,
which could negatively affect our business, finahcondition or results of operations.

A relatively small number of customers account farsubstantial portion of our sales. The loss of all a substantial portion of our sales -
any of these customers or the loss of market sHayghese customers could have a material adversgaich on us and our results of
operations.

Sales attributable to our 10 largest OEM customeig;h can vary from year to year, collectively aanted for approximately 57%, 56% and
53% of our sales in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respédygtiVle loss of all or a substantial portion of sales to any of these OEM customers or the
loss of market share by these customers could daweterial adverse impact on our business, finhooradition or results of operations.

Although we refer to the branded mountain bike OEMsa use our products throughout this documeftibascustomers,” “our OEM
customers” or “our mountain bike OEM customersdrited mountain bike OEMs often use contract matwfes to manufacture and
assemble their bikes. As a result, even thoughypiedlly negotiate price and volume requirementsatly with our mountain bike OEM
customers, it is the contract manufacturers theiuently place the purchase orders with us andeaponsible for paying us (rather than the
branded mountain bike OEMs). Giant is an OEM anatrect manufacturer used by certain of our mourttidie OEM customers. Sales to
Giant accounted for approximately 17%, 13% and D2%ur sales in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelthe event Giant were to experience
manufacturing or other problems, or were to faib&y us, it could have a material adverse impaauwrbusiness, financial condition or results
of operations.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could result @ecreased gross margins.

Foreign currency fluctuations could in the futueé an adverse effect on our business, financraliion or results of operations. We sell our
products inside and outside of the United Statés$.$ Dollars. As the majority of our expensesas® in U.S. Dollars, we are somewhat
insulated from currency fluctuations. However, safithe OEMs purchasing products from us sell theaducts in Europe and other foreign
markets using the Euro and other foreign currenéiss result, as the U.S. Dollar appreciates agaliese foreign currencies, our products
become relatively more expensive for these OEMsoAdingly, competitive products that our OEM custwsican purchase in other currencie:
may become more attractive and we could lose sal¢isese OEMs seek to replace our products withpehelternatives. In addition, should
the U.S. Dollar depreciate significantly, this abbhlave the effect of decreasing our gross margidsadversely impact our business, financial
condition or results of operations. Furthermoreyadransfer a majority of our manufacturing opiera for our mountain bike products to
Taiwan, we anticipate that a growing percentageuofexpenses will be denominated in the New Tail@altar. Should the New Taiwan Doll



appreciate against the U.S. Dollar, this could haeeeffect of decreasing our gross margins.
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Our international operations are exposed to riskssaciated with conducting business globally.

As a result of our international presence, we apsed to increased risks inherent in conductirginass outside of the United States. In
addition to foreign currency risks, these riskdude:

» increased difficulty in protecting our intellectyabperty rights and trade secre

» changes in tax laws and the interpretation of thass;

e exposure to local economic conditio

e unexpected government action or changes in legaguriatory requirement

» geopolitical regional conflicts, terrorist activjtgolitical unrest, civil strife, acts of war anther political uncertainty
» changes in tariffs, quotas, trade barriers andrctingilar restrictions on sale

» the effects of any ar-American sentiments on our brands or sales of mdyzts;

» increased difficulty in ensuring compliancedmployees, agents and contractors with our polesesell as with the laws of
multiple jurisdictions, including but not limited the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, locatinational environmental, health
and safety laws, and increasingly complex reguiati@lating to the conduct of international comreg

» increased difficulty in controlling and monitog foreign operations from the United States,udahg increased difficulty in
identifying and recruiting qualified personnel four foreign operations; ar

» increased difficulty in staffing and managing fgreioperations or international sal

An adverse change in any of these conditions coal@ a negative effect upon our business, finagoiadlition or results of operations.

Our sales could be adversely impacted by the disampor cessation of sales by other bike componer@nufacturers or if other mountain
bike component manufacturers enter into the suspiensmarket.

Most of the mountain bikes incorporating our susj@m products also utilize products and componerasufactured by other mountain bike
component manufacturers. If such component marnuwferst were to cease selling their products and ocoes on a stand-alone basis, their
sales are disrupted, or their competitive marksitjpm or reputation is diminished, customers cauidrate to competitors that sell both
suspension and other complementary mountain bib@uats which we do not sell. Moreover, such mounigke component manufacturers
could begin manufacturing mountain bike suspenpioducts or bundle their bike components with sosfs products manufactured by
competitors. If any of the foregoing were to ocaur sales could decrease and our business, fadarmidition or results of operations could
suffer.

We have been and may become subject to intelleqiuaperty disputes that could cause us to incurrsfgcant costs or pay significant
damages or that could prohibit us from selling oproducts.

As we develop new products or attempt to utilize lmands in connection with new products, we seekvbid infringing the valid patents and
other intellectual property rights of our compatitoHowever, from time to time, third parties halleged, or may allege in the future, that our
products and/or trademarks infringe upon their gedary rights. We will evaluate any such claimslanhere appropriate, may obtain or seek
to obtain licenses or other business arrangemeatdate, there have been no significant interrustio our business as a result of any claims
of infringement, and we do not hold patent infringent insurance. Any claim, regardless of its meatld be expensive, time consuming to
defend and distract management from our businesse®er, if our products or brands are found tarngk third-party intellectual property
rights, we may be unable to obtain a license tosusé technology or associated intellectual propeghts on acceptable terms. A court
determination that our brands, products or manufagd processes infringe the intellectual propeigirts of others could result in significant
liability and/or require us to make material chageour products and/or manufacturing processesemtude our ability to use certain brands.
In most circumstances, we are not indemnified faruse of a licensor’s intellectual property, i€htintellectual property is found to be
infringing. Any of the foregoing results could causs to, and we could incur substantial costsetbesign our products or defend legal actions
and such costs could negatively affect our busijrfesncial condition or results of operations.
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If we are unable to enforce our intellectual propgrrights, our reputation and sales could be adwysaffected

Intellectual property is an important componendof business. As of December 31, 2013, we had &hfgand had approximately 82 patents
pending on file in the U.S. and European Patenmtedf Additionally, we have registered or have egoptor trademarks and service marks with
the United States Patent and Trademark Office amthzber of foreign countries, including the mark3® , FOX RACING SHOX® and
REDEFINE YOUR LIMITS®, to be utilized with certain goods and servicebeWappropriate, we may from time to time assertights
against those who infringe on our patents, tradksnand trade dress. We may not, however, be s'fatesenforcing our patents or asserting
trademark, trade name or trade dress protectidmnegtpect to our brand names and our product desagia third parties may seek to oppos
challenge our patents or trademark registrationghgr, these legal efforts may not be successfrdducing sales of suspension products by
those infringing. In addition, our pending patepplkcations may not result in the issuance of pateand even issued patents may be conte
circumvented or invalidated and may not providevith proprietary protection or competitive advargaglf our efforts to protect our
intellectual property are unsuccessful, or if adhgarty misappropriates our rights, this may asekraffect our business, financial condition or
results of operations. Additionally, intellectuaibperty protection may be unavailable or limitedame foreign countries where laws or law
enforcement practices may not protect our propwiaights as fully as in the United States, anuhdty be more difficult for us to successfully
challenge the use of our proprietary rights by offeties in these countries. Furthermore, otherpmtitors may be able to successfully
produce products which imitate certain of our prtdwvithout infringing upon any of our patentsdienarks or trade dress. The failure to
prevent or limit infringements and imitations, cdhlave a permanent negative impact on the pridirgioproducts or reduce our product sale:
and product margins, even if we are ultimately sgstul in limiting the distribution of a producgthinfringes our rights, which in turn may
affect our business, financial condition or resofteperations.

Although we enter into non-disclosure agreements ainployees, OEMs, distributors and others togatadur confidential information and
trade secrets, we may be unable to prevent sutiepfnom breaching these agreements with us aing asir intellectual property in an
unauthorized manner. If our efforts to protect imbellectual property are unsuccessful, or if adhwarty misappropriates our rights this may
adversely affect our business. Defending our ietélial property rights can be very expensive and tonsuming, and there is no assurance
that we will be successful.

If we inaccurately forecast demand for our productse may manufacture insufficient or excess quar@g or our manufacturing costs coul
increase, which could adversely affect our business

We plan our manufacturing capacity based upondtechsted demand for our products. In the OEM oblaonr forecasts are based in large
part on the number of our product specificationrsi@wv mountain bikes and powered vehicles and ojegtions from our OEM customers. In
the aftermarket channel, our forecasts are bastidlpaon discussions with our dealers and distiils as well as our own assessment of
markets. If we incorrectly forecast demand we nmeyii capacity issues in our manufacturing plantsuqply chain, increased material costs,
increased freight costs and additional overtimiepfalvhich in turn adversely impact our cost ofesabnd our gross margin. For example, due t
increased demand for our products beyond what erasdisted, our 2012 production exceeded our budigeteluction, which resulted in
increased expedited freight costs. The currentiwointy economic weakness and uncertainty in theddntates, Europe and other countries
has made, and may continue to make, accurate &ineggarticularly challenging.

In the future, if actual demand for our productseads forecasted demand, the margins on our inatahgales in excess of anticipated sales
may be lower due to temporary higher costs, whatliccresult in a decrease in our overall marginkil®ive generally manufacture our
products upon receipt of customer orders, if aafieahand is less than the forecasted demand fgoroducts and we have already
manufactured the products or committed to purchaeserials in support of forecasted demand, we cbeltbrced to hold excess inventories.
In short, either excess or insufficient productilue to inaccurate forecasting could have a negaffeet on our business, financial conditior
results of operations.

Product recalls, and significant product repair afal replacement due to product warranty costs at@ims have had, and in the futur
could have, a material adverse impact on our busiae

Unless otherwise required by law, we generally e limited warranty for our products for a oméwo year period beginning on: (i) in the
case of OEM sales, the date the mountain bike weped vehicle is purchased from an authorized OHire our product is incorporated as
original equipment on the purchased mountain bikeoavered vehicle; or (ii) in the case of aftern@rkales, the date the product is originally
purchased from an authorized dealer. From timarte,tour customers may negotiate for longer oreddiit warranty coverage. In the ordinary
course of business, we incur warranty costs argtvesagainst such costs in our financial statemétawever, there is a risk that we could
experience higher than expected warranty costeasrhe aware of an underperforming product. For @@nduring calendar year 2012, we
experienced warranty costs in connection with aedampers contained in our suspension productsitbat beyond the normal warranty
amounts for which we have typically reserved, aagisis to increase our reserves by approximateB illion. We also experienced other
warranty related costs in 2012 estimated to becxmately $1.0 million. Future unforeseen produersanty issues could be expensive and
could adversely affect our brand image, relatiopsh¥ith our sponsored athletes and race teamsamenegative effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

We may be required to or voluntarily participateecalls involving our products or components i anove to be defective. In addition to the
direct costs of any claim or product recall, angtsalaim or recall could adversely affect our bramdge and have a negative effect on our
relationships with our OEMs, sponsored athletesrand teams, or otherwise have a negative effeouobusiness, financial condition and
results of operations or have other negative caresees. For example, during calendar year 2
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we initiated a voluntary recall of certain modeay2013 32 and 34 Evolution Series suspension foeking 120mm - 160mm of travel with
certain open cartridge dampers manufactured byetwgden March 1, 2012 and November 30, 2012 (thedRg The total costs we incur as a
result of the Recall, including other related castslaims, could be higher than expected and cadigtrsely impact our financial performance
In addition, the warranty reserve we previoushabkshed regarding the dampers used in the forkshndre the subject of the Recall may be
insufficient to cover the repair related costs wrially incur as a result of the Recall

An adverse determination in any material producatiility claim against us could adversely affect oaperating results or financia
condition.

The use of our products by consumers, often undezrae conditions, exposes us to risks associattbdproduct liability claims. If our
products are defective or used incorrectly by aust@mers, bodily injury, property damage or otmgury, including death, may result and
could give rise to product liability claims against, which could adversely affect our brand imageeputation. We have encountered product
liability claims in the past and carry product liéh insurance to help protect us against the £e$tsuch claims, although our insurance may
not be sufficient to cover all losses. Any losdet tve may suffer from any liability claims, ane thffect that any product liability litigation
may have upon the reputation and marketabilitywfproducts, may have a negative impact on oumlegsi financial condition or results of
operations.

Our 2013 Credit Facility places operating restriotis on us and creates default risks.

Our revolving credit facility, dated August 7, 201dth SunTrust Bank and the other parties thefeto “ 2013 Credit Facility”), contains
covenants that place restrictions on our operatuiiyities. These covenants, among other thingst bur ability to:

e pay dividends and make distributions or redeenstatk;
e incur additional indebtedness or permit additimraumbrances on our assets;

» make acquisitions or complete mergers or saless#ta, or engage in new busines

These restrictions may interfere with our abiliyabtain financing or to engage in other businessities, which may have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or tesaf operations.

If we are unable to comply with the covenants cimithin our 2013 Credit Facility, it could constéwan event of default and our lenders coulc
declare all borrowings outstanding, together witbraed and unpaid interest, to be immediately dukpayable. If we are unable to repay or
otherwise refinance these borrowings when duelemders could sell the collateral securing our itifadilities, which constitutes substantially
all of our assets.

Our outstanding indebtedness under our secured d@réakility bears interest at a variable rate, whienakes us more vulnerable to increas
in interest rates and could cause our interest erpe to increase and decrease cash available foraj@ns and other purposes.

In connection with our initial public offering (tH&P0O”), we entered into the 2013 Credit Facilityhich consists of a $60.0 million revolving
line of credit, a $5.0 million sublimit for swingk loans and a $10.0 million sublimit for the isst&of letters of credit. Subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions precedent, weehthe ability to increase the aggregate revoldagn commitments under the 2013 Credit
Facility by an aggregate amount of up to $50.0iamll subject to the agreement of any existing lendad/or any additional lenders who are
providing such increased commitments. Borrowingdeurthe 2013 Credit Facility bear interest on dalde rate which increases and decrease
based upon changes in the underlying interestaradéor our leverage ratio. Any such increasesaeririterest rate or increases of our
borrowings under the 2013 Credit Facility will ieaise our interest expense.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $8.0 million ofelbédness, bearing interest at a variable ratstamding under the 2013 Credit Facility.
Recent interest rates in the United States have &igleistorically low levels, and any increasehiese rates would increase our interest expen:
and reduce our funds available for operations @hdrgurposes. Although from time to time we mateemto agreements to hedge a portion
of our interest rate exposure, these agreementdmaypstly and may not protect against all interats fluctuations. Accordingly, we may
experience material increases in our interest esgoan a result of increases in interest rate l@ezierally. Based on the $8.0 million of varie
interest rate indebtedness that was outstandinfiBecember 31, 2013, a hypothetical 100 basistpoinease or decrease in the interest rate
on our variable rate debt would have resulted iagproximately $0.1 million change to our interegpense for fiscal 2013.
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We are subject to certain risks in our manufactudrand in the testing of our products.

As of December 31, 2013, we employed approxima&@y full-time employees worldwide, a large percgetaf which work at our
manufacturing facilities. Our business involves ptew manufacturing processes that can be dangéwaus employees. Although we employ
safety procedures in the design and operation ofamilities, there is a risk that an accident eatth could occur in one of our facilities. Also,
prior to the introduction of new products, our eayaes test the products under rigorous conditiehgh involve the risk of injury or death.
Any accident could result in manufacturing or pratddelays, which could negatively affect our bussdinancial condition or results of
operations. The outcome of litigation is diffictdtassess or quantify and the cost to defend fitigaan be significant. As a result, the costs tc
defend any action or the potential liability regdtfrom any such accident or death or arisingafu#tny other litigation, and any negative
publicity associated therewith, could have a negatffect on our business, financial conditionesults of operations.

Our products are subject to extensive United Stdtsteral and state, foreign and international safeenvironmental, employment practices
and other government regulations that may requirs to incur expenses or modify product offeringsander to maintain compliance with
such regulation, which could have a negatieffect on our business and results of operations.

We are subject to extensive laws and regulatiolasimg to safety, environmental, and other laws seglilations promulgated by the United
States federal and state governments, as welkaigifoand international regulatory authorities.haligh we believe that our products, policies
and processes comply with applicable safety, enuental, and other standards and related regutatioture regulations may require
additional safety standards that would require tiaitil expenses and/or modification of product wifigs in order to maintain such compliar
Failure to comply with applicable regulations cotggult in fines, increased expenses to modifyppaducts and harm to our reputation, all of
which could have an adverse effect on our busiriggs)cial condition or results of operations.

Moreover, certain of our customer contracts requé¢o comply with the standards of voluntary stadesetting organizations, such as the
United States Consumer Product Safety CommissidrEamopean Committee for Standardization (CEN)uFaito comply with the voluntary
requirements of such organizations could resutiénloss of certain customer contracts, which cbalde an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

We are subject to employment practice laws and tagjans and as such are exposed to litigation risks

We are subject to extensive laws and regulatiolasimg employment practices, including wage andrhawongful termination and
discrimination. Complying with such laws and regiaas, and defending against allegations of oduffaito comply (including meritless
allegations), can be expensive and time consurififggbelieve that our policies and processes comiily applicable employment standards
and related regulations, however, we are subjegsks of litigation by employees and others whicight involve allegations of illegal, unfair
or inconsistent employment practices, including @&agd hour violations and employment discriminatioisclassification of independent
contractors as employees, wrongful termination@heér concerns, which could require additional ex{iteires.

We are subject to environmental laws and regulatiand potential exposure for environmental costs drabilities.

Our operations, facilities and properties are sttt a variety of foreign, federal, state and ldaavs and regulations relating to health, safety
and the protection of the environment. These enwvirental laws and regulations include those reldtirthe use, generation, storage, handling
transportation, treatment and disposal of solidleamhrdous materials and wastes, emissions tdiséharges to waters and the investigation
and remediation of contamination. Many of theseslawpose strict, retroactive, joint and severdlilisy upon owners and operators of
properties, including with respect to environmemtalters that occurred prior to the time the phegame an owner or operator. In addition
may have liability with respect to third party sit® which we send waste for disposal. Failureotofy with such laws and regulations can
result in significant fines, penalties, costs, iliibs or restrictions on operations that couldjagvely affect our business, financial condition o
results of operations. From time to time, we hagerbinvolved in administrative or legal proceedirgjating to environmental, health or safety
matters and have in the past incurred expenditetang to such matters.

We believe that our operations are in substantiaiiance with applicable environmental laws argltations. However, additional
environmental issues relating to presently knowanrdknown matters could give rise to currently ur@pated investigation, assessment or
expenditures. Compliance with more stringent lamsegulations, as well as different interpretatiohgxisting laws, more vigorous
enforcement by regulators or unanticipated evewtsld require additional expenditures that may mtg affect our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

Federal, state, local, foreign and international\s and regulations relating to land-use, noise aaid pollution may have a negative impact
on our future sales and results of operations.

The products in our powered vehicles line are useghicles which are subject to numerous fedstatg, local, foreign and international laws
and regulations relating to noise and air-pollutidowered vehicles, and even mountain bikes, higeeb@come
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subject to laws and regulations prohibiting thesie wn certain lands and trails. For example, inigateo County, California, mountain bikes
are not allowed on county trails, and ATV and SigeSide riding is not allowed in Zion National Pagtnong many other national and state
parks. In addition, recreational snowmobiling haerbrestricted in some national parks and fedanald in Canada, the United States and oth
countries. If more of these laws and regulatiomspassed and the users of our products lose cantdacations to ride their mountain bikes
and powered vehicles, our sales could decreaseartulsiness, financial condition or results ofragiens could suffer.

Fuel shortages, or high prices for fuel, could hagenegative effect on the use of powered vehidhes tise our products.

Gasoline or diesel fuel is required for the operatf the powered vehicles that use our produdterd can be no assurance that the supply of
these fuels will continue uninterrupted, that rating will not be imposed or that the price of ax tam these petroleum products will not
significantly increase in the future. Shortagegadoline and diesel fuel and substantial increimsee price of fuel could have a material
adverse effect on our powered vehicle product caeig the future, which could have a negative @ffen our business, financial condition or
results of operations.

We do not control our suppliers or OEMs, or requitbem to comply with a formal code of conduct, aactions that they might take could
harm our reputation and sales.

We do not control our suppliers or OEMs or thelrdg environmental or other practices. A violat@fiabor, environmental or other laws by
our suppliers or OEMs, or a failure of these partefollow generally accepted ethical businesstes, could create negative publicity and
harm our reputation. In addition, we may be requiteseek alternative suppliers or OEMs if thesdagions or failures were to occur. We do
not inspect or audit compliance by our supplier®&Ms with these laws or practices, and we do equire our suppliers or OEMs or licens
to comply with a formal code of conduct. Any condarcactions that our suppliers could take couttlo® demand for our products, harm our
ability to meet demand or harm our reputation, brimmage, business, financial condition or resuftsperations.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers for auaterials and component parts for some of our pratk and the loss of any of these
suppliers or an increase in cost of raw materialsutd harm our business

We depend on a limited number of suppliers foratertomponents. If our current suppliers, in pattc the minority of those which are
“single-source” suppliers, are unable to timelffiflubrders, or if we are required to transitiondther suppliers, we could experience significar
production delays or disruption to our business.d#fne a single-source supplier as a supplier fndrith we purchase all of a particular raw
material or input used in our manufacturing opersj although other suppliers are available frorickvto purchase the same raw material or
input or an equivalent substitute. We do not mainitang term supply contracts with any of our suigqs and instead purchase these
components on a purchase order basis. As a reguttannot force any supplier to sell us the necgszanponents we use in creating our
products and we could face significant supply gitans should they refuse to do so. In connectigh the transfer of a majority of the
manufacturing of our mountain bike products to Taiwwe could experience difficulties locating newalified suppliers geographically loca
closer to these facilities. Furthermore, such neppsers could experience difficulties in providing with some or all of the materials we
require, which could result in disruptions in ouanmifacturing operations. If we experience diffimgtwith our suppliers or manufacturing
delays caused by our suppliers, whether in conmeetith our manufacturing operations in the UniB#dtes or in Taiwan, our business,
financial condition and results of operations cdegdmaterially and adversely impacted.

In addition, we purchase various raw materialsrdeoto manufacture our products. The main comrgatlitns purchased for production
include aluminum, magnesium and steel. Histori¢glhce fluctuations for these components and ratenmls have not had a material impact
on our business. In the future, however, if we elgpee material increases in the price of compaentaw materials and are unable to pa:
those increases to our customers, or there ar¢éagjesrin the availability of such component parteaw materials, it could negatively affect
business, financial condition or results of operadi

In addition to our various single-source suppligrs,also rely on one “sole-source” supplier, Miy&kirporation, or Miyaki. We define a sole-
source supplier as a supplier of a raw materighut for which there is no other supplier of tlaene product or an equivalent substitute.
Miyaki is the exclusive producer of the Kashimatawgafor our suspension component tubes. As pasuofagreement with Miyaki, we have
been granted the exclusive right to use the tradeffASHIMACOAT"” on products comprising the aluminufinished parts for suspension
components (e.g., tubes) and on related sales areting material worldwide, subject to certainlasons. Although we believe we could
obtain other coatings of comparable utility frorhext sources if necessary, we could no longer oliigsnspecific Kashima coating or use the
trademark “KASHIMACOAT"if Miyaki were to stop supplying us with this caadi The need to replace the Kashima coating ceumgborarily
disrupt our business and harm our business, fiahnondition or results of operations.

New regulations related to conflict minerals mayrée us to incur additional expenses and otherwisbrarsely impact our busines

The SEC has promulgated final rules mandated byptiga-Frank Act regarding disclosure of the us@mftantalum, tungsten and gold,
known as conflict minerals, in products manufaaiurg public companies. These new rules require imggdue diligence to determine whet
such minerals originated from the Democratic Rejoutfl Congo (the DRC) or an adjoining country antether
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such minerals helped finance the armed conflithenDRC. Reporting obligations for the rule begiayM81, 2014 and are required annually
thereafter. As a new public company, we will beuisgd to comply with the reporting obligations baging with our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2016. There will be costs associatddoomplying with these disclosure requiremenis|uding costs to determine the origin
conflict minerals in our products. The implemeraatof these rules and their effect on customemplserpand/or consumer behavior could
adversely affect the sourcing, supply and pricifinaterials used in our products. As a result, veg mlso incur costs with respect to potential
changes to products, processes or sources of sipplynay face disqualification as a supplier fastomers and reputational challenges if the
due diligence procedures we implement do not enabte verify the origins for all conflict mineralsed in our products or to determine if
such conflict minerals are conflict-free. Accordinghe implementation of these rules could haveagerial adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and/or financial condition.

The transition of a majority of the manufacturingfaur mountain bike products to Taiwan may negatiyémpact our brand image and
consumer loyalty, which in turn could have a matatiadverse impact on our business and results oém@ions.

As we transition the majority of the manufacturisfgour mountain bike products to Taiwan, no asstearcan be given that consumers may
be adversely influenced by the fact that such petiwill no longer be manufactured in the Unitedt&$ or that consumers and OEM
customers may not otherwise perceive that the tyuafliour products is lowered as a result of thet faat they will be manufactured overseas.
Such perceptions could adversely impact our busjrfggncial condition or results of operations.

Federal health care reform legislation could increa our expenses and adversely impact our resultspefrations.

In March 2010, the Patient Protection and AfforéaBhre Act and the Health Care and Education Ré@diom Act of 2010 were signed into
law in the United States. These health care refams require employers such as us to provide h@adtirance for all qualifying employees or
pay penalties for not providing coverage. We argblmat this time to accurately predict the imphat these laws will have on our future
health care benefit and insurance premium cost®andosts for temporary employees that we obtaiough agencies. If these costs increase
and we are unable to raise the prices we chargeustiomers to cover these increased expensesirsuehses in costs could adversely impact
our business, financial condition or results ofragiens.

We rely on increasingly complex information systeifioes management of our manufacturing, distributiorsales and other functions. If our
information systems fail to perform these functioaslequately or if we experience an interruption @ur operations, our business could
suffer.

All of our major operations, including manufactgjristribution, sales and accounting, are depengsm our complex information systems.
Our information systems are vulnerable to damaggterruption from, among other things:

» earthquake, fire, flood, hurricane and other ntisasters
» power loss, computer systems failure, internettaletommunications or data network failure;

» hackers, computer viruses, software bugs or g«

Any damage or significant disruption in the opematof such systems or the failure of our informatsystems to perform as expected could
disrupt our operations, reduce our efficiency, daar fulfillment of customer orders or requirersificant unanticipated expenditures to
correct, and thereby have a negative effect orbasiness, financial condition or results of openagi
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We may grow in the future through acquisitions. Gmth by acquisitions involves risks and we may netdble to effectively integrate
businesses we acquire or we may not be able totiflear consummate any future acquisitions on fa\atsle terms, or at all.

In the fourth quarter of 2013 we acquired certaisets of our third party Germany-based distribatat service center, and we intend to
selectively evaluate additional acquisitions infilmeire. Any acquisitions that we might make arbjsct to various risks and uncertainties and
could have a negative impact on our business, éiahnondition or results of operations. Thesegisiclude the inability to integrate effectiv
the operations, products, technologies and persofitiee acquired companies (some of which maydread out in different geographic
regions), the inability to achieve anticipated cestings or operating synergies, and the risk wg maébe able to effectively manage our
operations at an increased scale of operation#tiresfrom such acquisitions. In the event we dmptete acquisitions in the future, such
acquisitions could affect our cash flows and nebine as we expend funds, increase indebtednese@mddditional expenses in connection
with pursuing acquisitions. We may also issue shaf@ur common stock or other securities from ttméme as consideration for future
acquisitions and investments. We may not be abigetatify or consummate any future acquisitiondarorable terms, or at all.

Our operating results are subject to quarterly vations in our sales, which could make our operatingsults difficult to predict and could
adversely affect the price of our common stock.

We have experienced, and expect to continue toriqoe, substantial quarterly variations in ouesand net income. Our quarterly results of
operations fluctuate, in some cases significaasya result of a variety of other factors, inclggiamong other things:

» the timing of new product releases or other sigaiit announcements by us or our competi

e new advertising initiatives

» fluctuations in raw materials and component ccats!

» changes in our practices with respect to buildmgentory.
As a result of these quarterly fluctuations, corgmars of our operating results between differemtrtprs within a single year are not necess
meaningful and may not be accurate indicators ofwiure performance. Any quarterly fluctuationattive report in the future may differ frc
the expectations of market analysts and investdrigh could cause the price of our common stodkutttuate significantly. We also believe

that the seasonal nature of our business may leare dvershadowed over each of the past few yeartodhe rapid growth in sales we have
experienced during the same period.

Our beliefs regarding the future growth of the higherformance suspension product market are suppdrby qualitative data and limited
sources and may not be reliable. A reduction orlaaf continued growth in the popularity of hic-end mountain bikes or powered vehicles
or in the number of consumers who are willing to p@remium prices for well-designed performance-aried equipment in the markets in
which we sell our products could adversely affear @roduct sales and profits, financial conditionr@esults of operations.

We generate virtually all of our revenues from sal&high-performance suspension products. Ouetsalegarding the outlook of the high-
performance suspension product market come froritafinze data and limited sources, which may notdd@able. If our beliefs regarding the
opportunities in the market for our products amimect or the number of consumers who we beliegandling to pay premium prices for
well-designed performance-oriented equipment imtlagkets in which we sell our products does nateiase, or declines, we may fail to
achieve future growth and our business, finan@abdion or results of operations could be neg#tiaéfected.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

The trading price of our common stock may be vdkatiand you might not be able to sell your shargéoaabove the price you pay for the
shares.

Prior to our IPO in August 2013, our common stoak ho prior trading history. The trading price af gommon stock could be volatile, and
you could lose all or part of your investment im cammon stock. Factors affecting the trading pateur common stock could incluc

» variations in our operating results or those of @ampetitors
* new product or other significant announcementsdbgrwour competitors

e changes in our product mi
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» changes in consumer preferenc

» fluctuations in currency exchange rat

» the gain or loss of significant custome

e recruitment or departure of key personi

» changes in the estimates of our operating t®sulchanges in recommendations by any secuatialysts that elect to follow our
common stock

» changes in general economic conditions as welbaditions affecting our industry in particul
» sales of our common stock by us, our significantigtolders or our directors or executive officensd

» the expiration of contractual lo-up agreement:

In addition, in recent years, the stock marketdwgmerienced significant price fluctuations. Flutioias in the stock market generally or with
respect to companies in our industry could causertding price of our common stock to fluctuaterfasons unrelated to our business,
operating results or financial condition. Some canips that have had volatile market prices forrtbecurities have had securities class act
filed against them. A suit filed against us, redesd of its merits or outcome, could cause usdarisubstantial costs and could divert
management’s attention.

A market for our securities may not be maintaineddour stock price may declin

Prior to our IPO in August 2013, there had beepuigic market for shares of our common stock. Ao we have completed our IPO and
shares of our common stock are listed and tradmtipe NASDAQ Global Select Market, an active tradimarket for our shares may not be
sustained. In addition, we cannot provide any guemas to the liquidity of such market. In theealze of an active trading market for our
common stock, stockholders may not be able talseit shares of our common stock at the time theyldlike to sell.

Future sales of our shares, or the perception ttsaich sales may occur, could cause our stock prizelécline.

If our existing stockholders sell substantial antswf our common stock in the public market, or@eeceived by the public market as
intending to sell, the trading price of our comnstock could decline below the IPO price. As of Daber 31, 2013, we had 36,317,087 share
of common stock outstanding, 9,857,143 of whichfeeely tradable, without restriction, in the pubtharket. As of December 31, 2013,
25,544,967 shares of common stock outstanding h&leby directors, executive officers and otheiliafés and are subject to volume and
manner of sale limitations under Rule 144 under3beurities Act. Certain of our existing stockhaotdkeave demand and piggyback rights to
require us to register with the SEC up to 27,748 $ttares of our common stock. If we register anthe$e shares of common stock, those
stockholders would be able to sell those sharetyfia the public market.

In addition, the shares that either are subjeoutstanding options or may be granted in the futunger our equity incentive plans will become
eligible for sale in the public market to the extparmitted by the provisions of various vestingeggnents and Rules 144 and 701 under the
Securities Act.

We are an “emerging growth company,” and the reddcdisclosure requirements applicable to emergingwgth companies could make our
common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definetth@nJumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 201RaEdong as we are an emerging
growth company, we may take advantage of certagmgstions from various reporting requirements thategoplicable to other public
companies that are not emerging growth companiekjding, but not limited to, not being requiredctamply with the auditor attestation
requirements of Section 404(b) of the SarbanesyOki of 2002, reduced disclosure obligations rd@ay executive compensation in our
periodic reports and proxy statements and exempfimm the requirements of holding advisory “saypay” and “say-when-on-pay” votes on
executive compensation and shareholder advisossvart golden parachute compensation. We will remaiemerging growth company until
the earliest of (i) the last day of the fiscal ydaring which we have total annual gross revendiéd dillion or more; (ii) the last day of the
fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of tkempletion of our IPO; (iii) the date on which wave, during the previous three-year period,
issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt(iv) the date on which we are deemed to blai@é accelerated filetinder the Securitie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchamge A

We cannot predict if investors will find our commstock less attractive to the extent we rely os¢hexemptions. If some investors find our
common stock less attractive as a result, therelmayless active trading market for our commoaokstmd our stock price may be more
volatile.
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If securities or industry analysts do not publisesearch or if they publish unfavorable research att@ur business, our stock price ar
trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will depémgart on the research and reports that secaigtiéndustry analysts publish about us or
our business. If one or more of the analysts wheimus downgrades our stock or publishes unfal®rakearch about our business or our
industry, our stock price would likely decline.difie or more of these analysts ceases coverage obmpany or fails to publish reports on us
regularly, demand for our stock could decreaseclwhould cause our stock price and trading volumaetline.

Our Sponsor and our directors and officers and idsirs have substantial control over us and are atdenfluence corporate matters.

As of December 31, 2013, our Sponsor, beneficialiyed approximately 53.9% of our outstanding comstock, and our directors and
executive officers and their affiliates (excludiogr Sponsor) beneficially owned, in the aggregapgroximately 13.0% of our outstanding
common stock. As a result, these stockholderslaeeta exercise significant influence and, in tasesof our Sponsor, control over all matters
requiring stockholder approval, including the dlectof directors, amendment of our Amended and&edtCertificate of Incorporation, and
approval of any merger, consolidation, or salellpba substantially all, of our assets or othgngiicant corporate transactions. In addition, our
Sponsor has input on all matters before our boadirectors because our director Elias Sabo idiatiid with our Sponsor. Our Sponsor may
also delay or prevent a change of control or otfendiscourage a potential acquirer from attemptngbtain control of us, even if such a
change of control would benefit our other stockleosd So long as our Sponsor or any of its affiiatentinue to indirectly own a significant
amount of our outstanding common stock, even ihsarmount drops below 50%, they will continue taabée to significantly influence our
decisions.

In addition, our Sponsor is in the business of mgknvestments in companies and may from timente tacquire and hold interests in
businesses that may compete directly or indiragiti us. Our Sponsor may also pursue acquisitiqggodpnities that are complementary to
business and, as a result, those acquisition qomties may not be available to us.

We will incur increased costs and demands upon mgemaent as a result of complying with the laws aredjulations affecting public
companies, which could adversely affect our opengtresults.

As a public company, we will incur significant légaccounting and other expenses that we did mairias a private company, including costs
associated with public company reporting and caf@governance requirements. These requirementglaeventual compliance with
Section 404 and other provisions of the SarbandeyOxct of 2002, as well as rules implemented lyy 8EC and The NASDAQ Stock Market
LLC. In addition, our management team will also é&vy adapt to the requirements of being a publiogamy. We expect complying with these
rules and regulations will substantially increaselegal and financial compliance costs and to n&ahae activities more time-consuming and
costly.

The increased costs associated with operatingpablec company will decrease our net income oréase our net loss, and may require us to
reduce costs in other areas of our business agaserthe prices of our products or services. Aaftitly, if these requirements divert our
management’s attention from other business conctireg could have a material adverse effect orbosmess, prospects, financial condition
and operating results.

As a public company, we also expect that it maynoee difficult and more expensive for us to obdiirector and officer liability insurance,
and we may be required to accept reduced policigdiand coverage or incur substantially highertsobtain the same or similar coverage.
As a result, it may be more difficult for us toratit and retain qualified individuals to serve am board of directors or as our executive
officers.
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Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents andl®eare law could discourage, delay or prevent a nga in control of our compan'

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorponaéind Amended and Restated Bylaws, or our ChBdeuments, as well as Delaware |
contain provisions that may discourage, delay ev@nt a change in our management or control ovéraistockholders may consider
favorable. Among other things, these provisions:

» authorize the issuance of “blank check” prefdrstock that could be issued by our board of thredo discourage a takeover
attempt;

» establish a classified board of directors, essalt of which the successors to the directorssghierms have expired will be elected
to serve from the time of election and qualificatimtil the third annual meeting following theieetion;

* require that directors be removed from office diolycause

» provide that vacancies on our board of direstimrcluding newly created directorships, may Bedionly by a majority vote of
directors then in office

« from and after the date that our Sponsor andfftliates no longer collectively beneficially avfas determined pursuant to Rule
13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indilygct least a majority of the voting power of #len outstanding shares of our
capital stock entitled to vote generally in thecéten of directors, or the Trigger Date, prohilitickholder action by written conse
requiring all actions to be taken at a meetinghefstockholders

» provide that special meetings of our stockhaddeay be called only by our board of directors, ©hairperson of the board of
directors, our Lead Director (if we do not havetemi@person or the Chairperson is disabled), ouefdakecutive Officer or our
President (in the absence of a Chief Executivec@ffior, until the Trigger Date, our Spons

» from and after the Trigger Date, require supgarity stockholder voting for our stockholdersetifect certain amendments to our
Charter Documents; ar

» establish advance notice requirements for natians for elections to our board of directorsargroposing other matters that can
be acted upon by stockholders at stockholder nmge

In addition, we are subject to Section 203 of tlem&al Corporation Law of the State of Delaward)GICL, which generally limits the ability
of a Delaware corporation to engage in any broadeaf business combinations with a stockholderiogvt5% or more of such corporation’s
outstanding voting stock for a period of three gdatlowing the date on which such stockholder beean “interested” stockholder. In order
for us to consummate a business combination witintenested stockholder within three years of taeadn which the stockholder became
interested, either (i) the business combinatiothertransaction that resulted in the stockholdephb®@ng interested must be approved by our
board of directors prior to the date the stockholEzame interested, (i) the interested stockhaidgst own at least 85% of our outstanding
voting stock at the time the transaction commeiffersiuding voting stock owned by directors who als®o officers and certain employee stock
plans) or (iii) the business combination must beraped by our board of directors and authorizeatdgast two-thirds of our stockholders
(excluding the interested stockholder) at a spexiainnual meeting (not by written consent). Thisvsion could have the effect of delaying or
preventing a change in control, whether or nat desired by or beneficial to our stockholders. Alelay or prevention of a change in control
transaction or changes in our board of directodsraanagement could deter potential acquirers argpitethe completion of a transaction in
which our stockholders could receive a substaptiaium over the then-current market price forrteares of our common stock.

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatidesignates the Court of Chancery of the Statdefaware as the sole and exclusive
forum for certain types of actions and proceedintjgt may be initiated by our stockholders, whichutd limit our stockholder’ ability to
obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes withs or our directors, officers or other employees.

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorponggirovides that, with certain limited exceptionsless we consent in writing to the
selection of an alternative forum, the Court of @tery of the State of Delaware will be the sole excusive forum for (i) any derivative
action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (il astion asserting a claim of breach of fiduciangydowed by any director, officer or other
employee of our company owed to us or our stocldrsidiii) any action asserting a claim againsantsing pursuant to any provision of the
DGCL or our Charter Documents, (iv) any actionrtterpret, apply, enforce or determine the validitpur Charter Documents, or (v) any
action asserting a claim governed by the interffalra doctrine. Any person or entity purchasingptiterwise acquiring any interest in share
our capital stock is deemed to have received nofi@ad consented to the foregoing provisions. Thi@ice of forum provision may limit a
stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a juditfarum that it finds favorable for disputes with ar our directors, officers or other employees,
which may discourage such lawsuits against us andicectors, officers and employees. Alternatiyéflya court were to find this choice of
forum provision inapplicable to, or
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unenforceable in respect of, one or more of theiipd types of actions or proceedings, we may irsmditional costs associated with resoh
such matters in other jurisdictions, which couldexdely affect our business, financial conditiomesults of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal offices and manufacturing facilitiesthe United States are located in Scotts Vallifornia and Watsonville, California, and
currently our international manufacturing facilisylocated in Taiwan. We believe that our propsrtiee otherwise generally suitable to meet
our needs for the foreseeable future. In additiothe extent we require additional space in thier& we believe that it would be readily
available on commercially reasonable terms. See 1te"Business—Facilities” for more information atb@ur facilities.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we are involved in legal proceedi incidental to our business, in particular Ietelial property related disputes, product
liability claims, as well as other litigation ofr@nmaterial nature in the ordinary course of bussnén connection with ASC 450,
Contingencies, we have not accrued for material tmmtingencies relating to any legal proceedirggmbse we believe that, although
unfavorable outcomes in proceedings may be possh#g are not considered by our management tadimple and reasonably estimable. We
believe that the outcome of any such pending ngt&ther individually or in the aggregate, willttave a material impact on our business or
financial condition.

ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEMS5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information
Our common stock has been listed on the NASDAQ uttdesymbol “FOXF’since August 8, 2013. Our IPO was priced at $1pdiGshare o
August 8, 2013. Prior to that date, there was rdiptrading market for our common stock.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, the high and low sales prices per shaceio€Eommon stock as reported on the
NASDAQ.

High Low
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2(
Quarter ended September 30, 2013 (beginning Awgy13) $20.7¢ $16.3¢
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $20.15 $15.6¢

On February 28, 2014, the closing price per shhogiocommon stock as reported on the NASDAQ wdak Bl per share.

Stockholders

As of February 28, 2014, there were approximatédlders of record of our common stock. The aatuahber of stockholders is greater thar
this number of record holders, and includes stoltdre who are beneficial owners, but whose sharebeld in street name by brokers and
other nominees. This number of holders of recosd dbes not include stockholders whose shares magld in trust by other entities.

Dividend Policy

In June 2012, in connection with our recapitalzatiwe paid a cash dividend to our stockholdersieiguan aggregate of $67.0 million. We
not declare or pay any dividends in the years efmmbmber 31, 2013 and 2011. Although we declaiash dividend on our common stock
in June 2012 in connection with our recapitalizatioe intend to retain any future earnings and @cempect to pay any dividends in the
foreseeable future. In addition, our 2013 Credilig contains covenants limiting our ability tay dividends to our stockholders. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations—Credit Faciligny future determination to
declare cash dividends will be made at the dismmeatf our board of directors, subject to applicdaies, and will depend on a number of
factors, including our financial condition, resulfsoperations, capital requirements, contractestrictions, general business conditions anc
other factors that our board of directors may deglevant.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

For equity compensation plan information refertear! 12 in Part IIl of this Annual Report on FormHK0
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Performance Graph

The following graph shows a comparison from Audgys2013 (the date our common stock commenced gaatithe NASDAQ) through
December 31, 2013 of the total cumulative returnwfcommon stock with the total cumulative retafithe NASDAQ Composite Index (the
“NASDAQ Composite”), and S&P 500 Index (“S&P 500The figures represented below assume an investi&ii00 in our common stock
at the closing price of $18.61 on August 8, 2018 iarthe NASDAQ Composite and S&P 500. Data forReSDAQ Composite and S&P 5(
assume reinvestment of dividends. The comparigotisi graph are historical and are not intendddrecast or be indicative of possible futi
performance of our common stock.
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This performance graph shall not be deemed to dleciting material” or “filed” or incorporated byeference in future filings with the SEC, or
subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Bange Act except as shall be expressly set fortsplgific reference in such filing.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

No shares of our common stock were repurchasedglthie three months ended December 31, 2013.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial atiteo data should be read in conjunction with, aredqaialified by reference to, Iltem 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations,” and our astldonsolidated financial statements
and the accompanying notes included elsewherasgmitimual Report. The consolidated statements efatfpns data for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and the consadidetiance sheet data as of December 31, 2013042ds2e derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements that are incluglseéwhere in this Annual Report. We have includedur opinion, all adjustments,
consisting only of normal recurring adjustmentg tha consider necessary for a fair presentatidh@financial information set forth in those
statements. The consolidated statements of opesadiata for the years ended December 31, 2009Gi&s well as the consolidated balance
sheet data as of December 31, 2009, 2010 and 264 tlerived from audited consolidated financiaiesteents that are not included in this
Annual Report. Our historical results are not neagly indicative of the results to be expectethia future.

For the years ended December 3.

(in thousands, except per share datz 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Sales $272,74¢ $235,86¢ $197,73¢ $170,98! $121,51¢
Cost of sales(1 192,61 173,04( 140,84¢ 122,37: 87,03¢

Gross profit 80,12¢ 62,82¢ 56,89( 48,61( 34,48:
Operating expense

Sales and marketing( 14,15: 12,57( 11,74¢ 10,29: 8,26¢

Research and development 10,40¢ 9,721 9,75( 7,321 5,54¢

General and administrative( 11,40¢ 9,06: 7,58¢ 6,20z 4,792

Amortization of purchased intangibl 5,37¢ 5,31f 5,211 5,211 5,21
Total operating expens: 41,34¢ 36,67¢ 34,30 29,03: 23,82:
Income from operation 38,78: 26,15« 22,58’ 19,57; 10,65¢
Other expense, ne

Interest expens (4,125 (3,480 (1,982 (2,639 (3,089

Other income (expense), r 12 (277) (13) 39 44
Total other expense, n (4,117 (3,769 (1,999 (2,599 (3,045
Income before income tax 34,66¢ 22,39: 20,59: 16,97¢ 7,61
Provision for income taxe 10,56¢ 8,181 7,05¢ 6,21( 2,58¢
Net income $ 24,10: $ 14,21 $ 13,53¢ $ 10,76¢ $ 5,02¢
Earnings per shan

Basic $ 07 $ 04 $ 04t $ 03€ $ 0.17

Diluted $ 068 $ 044 $ 042 $ 034 $ 0.1¢
Weighted average common shares used to compuiecoete per share

Basic 34,57: 32,05¢ 30,03( 30,11¢ 30,12:

Diluted 35,70¢ 32,51t 32,29t 31,82¢ 31,28¢

Dividends per shar $ — $ 2009%$ — $ — $ —
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(1) Includes stoc-based compensation (excluding tax effect) as falk

For the years ended December 3

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Cost of sale: $ 23 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Sales and marketir 15¢ 16C 78 40 27
Research and developmt 58 29 12 12 12
General and administrati 2,26¢ 1,95¢ 94( 472 38t
Total 2,50( 2,14¢ $ 1,03( $ 524 $ 42t
As of December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat¢
Cash and cash equivale $ 1,68: $ 15 $ 114 $ 50z $ 32€
Inventory 42,78: 34,25¢ 29,53 28,05¢ 16,96¢
Working capital 39,88 25,14 23,10¢ 23,60: 16,45
Property and equipment, r 13,41¢ 11,78¢ 9,00¢ 7,39: 5,90(
Total asset 157,72 142,12( 129,95¢ 130,82: 120,29.
Total debt, including current portic 8,00( 59,25((1) 15,29: 33,66( 40,53¢
Total stockholder equity 92,29: 29,5842) 67,29t 52,72 42,17:

(1) InJune 2012, we engaged in a recapitalizatigolving our debt, stock options and share purebak connection with the

recapitalization, we amended our 2008 credit figoiliith our Sponsor which provided a revolving liofecredit facility and a term loan
facility (“Prior Credit Facility”). See Note &ebt,in the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statetsiein Item 8 ‘Financial Statemen

and Supplementary D¢ for more information

(2) InJune 2012, we paid a $67.0 million cashd#wd as part of our recapitalization. See Noteeht,in the “Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statemer” in Item 8“Financial Statements and Supplementary ” for more information
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our firahcondition and results of operations should kad in conjunction with the section titled
“Selected Financial Data” and the consolidated firaal statements and related notes thereto inclugisewhere in this Annual Report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statements inadlve risks and uncertainties. Our actual resubuld differ materially from those
discussed below. You should review the “Risk Fattand “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking S®taients” sections of this Annual
Report for a discussion of important factors thatilcl cause actual results to differ materially froine results described in or implied by
forward-looking statements contained in the following désion and analysis.

Overview

We are a designer, manufacturer and marketer ofpégformance suspension products used primariljounntain bikes, side-by-side
vehicles, or Side-by-Sides, on-road vehicles witlraad capabilities, off-road vehicles and trucllisterrain vehicles, or ATVs, snowmaobiles,
specialty vehicles and applications, and motoreydiée currently sell to over 150 OEMs and distrbotir products to more than 2,500 retail
dealers and distributors worldwide. In each ofytears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, ap@ately 81%, 81% and 80%,
respectively, of our sales were attributable tesahade to our OEM customers. The remaining sates te our aftermarket customers.
Virtually all of our revenues were from our prodgetes; miscellaneous sources of revenue suctyaliyrincome and service related repair
work and the associated sale of components repezbtass than 1% of our sales in each of the yaated December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2

We have determined that we operate in one repersdgment, which is the manufacturing, sale andcgeof ride dynamics products. Our
products fall into the following two categories:

* mountain bikes; an

» powered vehicles, including Side-by-Sides, oaervehicles with off-road capabilities, off-roaghicles and trucks, ATVs, snowmobiles,
specialty vehicles and applications, and motorey:

A significant portion of our sales are dependentiendemand for high-end or premium priced mouriiéies and their suspension
components. In each of the years ended Decemb@033, 2012 and 2011, approximately 66%, 67% and, 88spectively, of our sales were
attributable to sales of suspension products fanmtain bikes and approximately 34%, 33% and 31%peetively, of our sales were
attributable to sales of suspension products fergued vehicles.

Our domestic sales totaled $96.1 million, $84.3iamland $65.8 million, or 35%, 36% and 33% of tatal sales in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Our international sales totaled $8 76illion, $151.6 million and $132.0 million, or 8§ 64% and 67% of our total sales in each
of the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2&ddectively. Sales attributable to countriesioetthe United States are based on
shipment location. Our international sales, howggtlemot necessarily reflect the location of thd asers of our products as many of our
products are incorporated into mountain bikes dénatassembled at international locations and thgaped back to the United States. We
estimate, based on our internal projections, thpt@aimately one-third of the end users of our pieid are located outside the United States.

Opportunities, Challenges and Risks

We intend to focus on generating sales of our Ipigfformance suspension products through OEMs atitkiaftermarket channel. To do this,
we intend to continue to develop and introduce aad innovative products in our current end-market$ we intend to selectively develop
products for applications and end-markets in whvehdo not currently participate. Currently, virlyadll of our sales are dependent on the
demand for high-performance suspension productsleWite have recently introduced a new non-suspern@oduct (our adjustable seat post
for mountain bikes), this product comprised lesth% of our sales in 2013. We may not achieveléisered level of sales for this product or
for other new products that we introduce in theifeit

Our aftermarket distribution network currently cists of more than 2,500 retail dealers and distatsworldwide. To further penetrate the
aftermarket channel, we intend to selectively adftitsonal dealers and distributors in certain gaphiic markets, expand our internal sales
force and strategically increase the number ofafeket specific products and services which werdiir existing vehicle platforms. In
addition, we believe international expansion repnés a significant opportunity for us and we intémdelectively increase infrastructure
investments and focus on identified geographicomsgi

As a supplier to OEM customers, we are largely ddpat on the success of the business of our OEkdmass. Model year changes by our
OEM customers may adversely impact our sales agecaur sales to vary from quarter to quarter. Logsenarket share or a decline in the
overall market of our OEM customers or the discurdince by our OEM customers of their products whichrporate our products could
negatively impact our business and our resultefations.
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We have begun the process of transitioning a ntgjofithe manufacturing of our mountain bike produo our facility in Taiwan and we
contemplate that this transition will continue thgh 2015. We anticipate that this transition, whempleted, will enable us to shorten
production lead times to our mountain bike OEM ouostrs, improve supply chain efficiencies and redugemanufacturing costs. We also
believe that this transition, once completed, wilprove operating margins in the medium to longntedowever, in the short term during this
transition process we expect to incur some dupdinaif facilities, equipment and personnel whicli wicrease our costs and could vary
materially from our projections. In addition, thiansition process could cause manufacturing prablend give rise to execution risks which
could negatively impact our business, financialditbon or results of operations.

From time to time we have experienced, and mayimoato experience, warranty costs and claimsingldd our products. In the ordinary
course of business we reserve against such casidams in our financial statements. There isk,fowever, that in the future we will
experience higher than expected warranty costelanus, as well as other related costs.

We intend to evaluate selective potential acquisitpportunities for high-performance products tewthnologies that we believe will help us
extend our ride dynamics product platform. Any asiions that we might make are subject to varigsiss and uncertainties and could have a
negative impact on our results of operations.

Basis of Presentation
Sales are comprised o
Sales from:

» Product salesconsists of sales of products sold primarily to @M and aftermarket customers. We recognize reyerhen products
are shipped, title has transferred, collectiorhefrieceivable is reasonably assured, persuasider@g of an arrangement exists, and the
sales price to our customers is fixed or determe:

e Service salesconsists of sales of service related repair worktAe associated sale of products. We recogniznte/when service
products are shipped, title has transferred, cidieof the receivable is reasonably assured, psige evidence of an arrangement exists
and the sales price to our customers is fixed terdenable;

* Royalty incomeconsists of licensing fees and royalties earnedsofyom contractual relationships we have withdhgarties that allow
them to use our intellectual property in returnfiss. We recognize royalty income when collectibthe receivable is reasonably
assured, persuasive evidence of an arrangemetd,extisl generally upon the reporting of royaltigghe licensee; an

» Shipping and handling feewe include shipping and handling fees billed toteoers in sales

Net of:

e Sales returns allowancesonsists of an estimate of our sales returns. dllogvance is based upon estimates of the projaetedns in
future periods based on our experience with retteosrded in previous periods; a

» Rebatesconsists of incentives we provide to customersdasesales of eligible produc
We attribute our past growth in sales predominaatiyncreases in the number of units sold to ouMQitstomers in both our mountain bike
and powered vehicle product categories. To a lek=gmee, increases in our average sales pricesallsveontributed to our past sales growth,

as we have introduced innovations to and improtaedunctionality of many of our products, which bleal us, in many cases, to increase our
sale prices for such products.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales includes the cost of manufactpreducts (raw materials consumed, the cost toyseomaterials, labor costs, including
wages, and employee benefits, and factory overteeprtbduce finished good products), including:

» the cost to inspect and repair produ

» shipping costs associated with inbound freighese costs are capitalized as part of inventodyicluded in cost of sales as the
inventory is sold

» royalty expenses, including payments to certaitiggafor our use of licensed technology incorpatateo our products

» freight expense incurred for certain shipmentsust@mers, excluding customers who pay for their &eight;
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* warranty costs associated with the repair or regtent of products under warranty; ¢

* reductions in the cost of inventory to its net izdble value, if required, for estimated excessotdscence or impaired balanc

Gross profit/gross margin

Our gross profit equals our sales minus cost @&ss&ur gross margin measures our gross profipascentage of sales.

Our gross margins fluctuate based on product, must@and channel mix as certain of our productsale at higher gross margins than others.
Generally, we earn higher gross margins on ourymrsdsold to the aftermarket channel and we tylyiearn lower gross margins on the
products we sell to OEMs. We are pursuing seveittives, which are designed to improve our opiegaefficiencies, and improve margins
the coming years as compared to our historicaltesdowever, some of this improvement will be [ly offset in the short term by
duplicative costs we expect to incur as a resuttunfplanned transition of a majority of the mamtifising of our mountain bike products to our
operations in Taiwan.

Operating expenses

Our operating expenses consist of the following:
» sales and marketin
e research and developme
e general and administrative; a

» amortization of purchased intangibl

Our sales and marketing expenses include costeddia our sales, customer service and marketirgppael, including their wages, employee
benefits and related stock-based compensationp@rupancy related expenses. Other significant salésnarketing expenses include race
support and sponsorships of events and athletesyteging and promotions related to trade shovesierand entertainment, and promotional
materials, products and our sales offices costs.

Our research and development expenses consistrilyimfsalaries and personnel costs, including @agmployee benefits and related stock
based compensation for our engineering, reseaitidevelopment teams, occupancy related expensssfdethird party consultants, service
fees, and expenses for prototype tooling and nadsetravel, and supplies. We expense researcidarelopment costs as incurred and such
costs are included as research and developmenigagen our consolidated statements of income.

Our general and administrative expenses includes cekated to our executive, finance, informatiechinology, human resources and
administrative personnel, including wages, empldyerefits and related stock-based compensatiomegpeWe record professional and
contract service expenses, occupancy related egp@ssociated with corporate locations and equipraad legal expenses in general and
administrative expenses.

Our amortization of intangibles includes amortiaatover their respective useful lives of our pusgthintangible assets, such as customer lis
and our core technology. Our intangible assetsstitstantial majority of which were establishe@d assult of our Sponsor’s acquisition of us
in 2008, are evaluated for impairment whenever svenchanges in circumstances indicate that tinging value of the assets may not be f
recoverable. No impairments of intangible asset®wdentified in the years ended December 31, 20Q382 and 2011, respectively.

In the near term, we anticipate that our generdladministrative expenses will increase both imgeof absolute dollars and when expresst

a percentage of sales as we incur additional exgemscluding those associated with being a puddiopany. In the long term, we generally
anticipate that our sales and marketing, and rekesard development expenses will increase in tefrapsolute dollars, but we anticipate th
expenses, excluding stock-based compensation exqestould remain relatively constant when expreasea percentage of our sales. We ca
give no assurance that these expectations wikakzed.

Income from operation:

We define income from operations as gross pradis leur operating expenses. We use income from tigresaas an indicator of the profitabil
of our business and our ability to manage costs.
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Other expense, net

Other expense, net consists of interest expensethndincome (expense), net. Interest expensdstsmd interest charged to us under our
credit facilities.

Other income (expense), net consists of gains@ssks on the disposal of fixed assets, foreigrenayrtransaction gains and losses,
forgiveness of indebtedness under our loan wittRibdevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonvilled ather miscellaneous items.

Income taxes

We are subject to income taxes in the United Statelsvarious other foreign jurisdictions in whick do business. Some of these foreign
jurisdictions have higher statutory tax rates ttiaose in the United States, and certain of ouratttonal earnings are also taxable in the Ui
States. Accordingly, our effective tax rates wiry depending on the relative proportion of foretigiJ.S. income and absorption of foreign
credits, changes in the valuation of our defereedatssets and liabilities and changes in tax lawaddition, we are subject to examination of
our income tax returns by the U.S. Internal Revebewice, or IRS, and other tax authorities. Wellady assess the likelihood of adverse
outcomes resulting from these examinations to deter the adequacy of our income tax liabilities ardense. Should actual events or result:
differ from our current expectations, charges edds to our income tax liabilities and income ¢éxpense may become necessary. Any such
adjustments could have a significant impact onresults of operations.

Under U.S. generally accepted accounting princjpde§AAP, an uncertain income tax position wilk h@ recognized unless it has a greater
than 50% likelihood (i.e., more-likely-than-not) lméing sustained and then, measured only to tgedaamount of benefit that is greater than
50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlem&\¥é established liabilities for uncertain tax piosis and deferred taxes associated with the
deductibility of certain amortization and depreiciatexpenses. The liability for uncertain income pasitions represents the amount of tax we
would be required to pay if certain tax deductipreviously claimed on tax returns were not allowpdn examination by the taxing
authorities. The liability for deferred taxes regets additional taxes that would be payable réuperiods because of the potential non-
deductibility of future amortization and depredatiexpenses.

As of December 31, 2013, our balance sheet refleect@bility for unrecognized tax benefits of $adllion. The unrecognized tax benefits are
primarily due to the uncertainty of the deductilyilbf amortization and depreciation expenses whiete incurred as a result of our Sponsor’s
acquisition of us in 2008. In addition, as of Debem31, 2013, our balance sheet reflected a retigtired tax liability of $10.6 million based
on the difference between the financial statemedttax basis of certain assets, which represeatartiount of tax we would be required to pay
in the future based on the current enacted tas rbtee tax deductions associated with this arratitbn and depreciation were not claimed anc
allowed on our income tax returns. This deferreditbility will decrease each year we expenseassociated amortization and depreciation
for accounting purposes. However, this reductiomoisanticipated to be associated with actual pastments. We expect to decrease our
liability for unrecognized tax benefits and recagma reduction in income tax expense (and an igerganet income) because of the expiratiol
of statutes of limitations in the amount of approately $1.6 million in the third quarter of 2014owever, reductions in the related deferrec
liability will over time be associated with offsietj increases to our liability for unrecognized teenefits. We generally expect to recognize a
reduction in income tax expense (and an increasetimcome) through the expiration of statutebnoitations in the amount of approximately
$1.4 to $1.5 million in each third quarter from 2Ghrough 2027 and approximately $0.1 to $0.3 orillin each fourth quarter from 2014
through 2028. These annual reductions in our incamexpense will cease if it is determined upoaneixation of the tax authorities that the
deductions are not valid and the liabilities fog tincertain income tax position and the associdééelred tax liability will have to be settled
cash. If we subsequently determine that we havettmeanore-likely-than-not threshold that these déidas will be sustained, the balance of
the liability for unrecognized tax benefits thatwa be recognized as a reduction of income tax msg@eexcept for approximately $1.0 million,
which would increase the deferred tax liabilitythe extent of taxes associated with tax amortipaticintangibles with indeterminate lives, and
the related unamortized deferred tax liabilitiell bé recognized as a one-time income tax benefit.

Income taxes are computed using the asset antitliabethod, under which deferred tax assets aatullities are determined based on the
difference between the financial statement and#ees of assets and liabilities using enactedatas in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to affect taxable incoraduation allowances are established when necessaegduce deferred tax assets to the
amount expected to be realized. As of Decembe2@13, we did not have any valuation allowancesrdam, as we expect to fully utilize all
our deferred tax assets, and we did not have angpeeating loss or tax credit carry-forwards. B@ years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, we had effective tax rates of 30.5%,%68d 34.3%, respectively. We anticipate that éfectve tax rate in 2014 will be slightly
more than our effective tax rate for 2013 and thahe medium term our effective annual tax ratesutd be approximately 34% to 36%,
however our actual effective annual tax rates valy based on several factors, including the ggagcamix of our sales, changes in future tax
rates, and the treatment of the unrecognized tagflie mentioned above.
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Results of operations

The table below summarizes our results of operationthe fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 201 2011.

Years Ended December 31

(in thousands 2013 2012 2011
Sales $272,74¢ $235,86¢ $197,73¢
Cost of sale: 192,61 173,04 140,84¢
Gross profit 80,12¢ 62,82¢ 56,89(
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 14,15 12,57( 11,74¢
Research and developm 10,40¢ 9,72 9,75(
General and administrati\ 11,40¢ 9,06: 7,58¢
Amortization of purchased intangibl 5,37¢ 5,31¢ 5,21
Total operating expens: 41,34¢ 36,67¢ 34,30:
Income from operation 38,78: 26,15¢ 22,58
Other expense, ne
Interest expens (4,125 (3,486 (1,989
Other income (expense), r 12 (277) (13)
Total other expense, n (4,119 (3,769 (1,995
Income before income tax 34,66¢ 22,39 20,59:
Provision for income taxe 10,56¢ 8,181 7,054
Net income $ 24,10: $ 14,21( $ 13,53¢

The following table sets forth our gross profitvesll as our operating and other income and expessgé®ther information for the periods
presented, expressed as a percentage of totalueven

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 70.€ 73.4 71.2
Gross profit 29.4 26.€ 28.¢
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 5.2 5.3 6.C
Research and developm 3.8 4.1 4.¢
General and administratiy 4.2 3.8 3.8
Amortization of purchased intangibl 2.C 2.3 2.€
Total operating expens: 15.2 15.5 17.2
Income from operation 14.2 11.1 11.t
Other expense, ne
Interest expens (1.5 (1.6) (1.0
Other income (expense), r * * *
Total other expense, n (1.5 (1.6) (1.0
Income before income tax 127 9.t 10.5
Provision for income taxe 3.¢ 3.t 3.€
Net income 8.8% 6.C% 6.€%

* Represents less than 0..
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Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ebséember 31, 2012
Sales

Sales for 2013 increased approximately $36.9 millar 15.6%, compared to 2012. Sales of mount&e &hd powered vehicle products
increased 14.4% and 18.2%, respectively, for 2@I8pared to 2012. Sales growth was primarily dribgrsales to OEMs which increased
$30.0 million to $219.9 million for 2013 compared%189.9 million for 2012. The increase in sale®KMs was largely driven by increased
specification, or spec, positions with our OEM omsérs. The remaining increase in sales totaling 86llion reflects increased sales to
aftermarket customers in 2013 compared to 2012.ifAdrease in sales to aftermarket customers isgsiiydue to higher end user demand for
our products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for 2013 increased by $19.6 millmnl 1.3% compared to the same period in 2012. itrease in cost of sales was primarily
to increased sales in 2013 when compared to 2@k202.3 our gross margin was 29.4% compared t®¥2608 the same period in 2012. We
attribute 1.6% of the improvement in our gross pmfrgin to our cost initiatives designed to imggamur operating efficiencies. The
remaining 1.2% of the improvement is largely duadditional warranty and other related costs in2@lupgrade certain dampers containe
our suspension products which costs did not rat@0i3.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses for 2013 increased by $4.7omjlbr 12.7 %, compared to 2012. When expressadhascentage of sales, operating
expenses declined to 15.2% of sales for 2013 caedparl5.5 % of sales in 2012.

Within operating expenses, our sales and marketpgnses increased by $1.6 million from $12.6 amilin 2012 to $14.2 million in 2013
primarily due to increases of personnel relateceaggures of $1.0 million and other marketing rethéxpenses of $0.6 million. Our sales and
marketing goal is to expand our brand image whachdly focuses on additional race sponsorshipsargbrate media.

Our research and development expenses increasi@l Dynillion from $9.7 million in 2012 to $10.4 didn in 2013. The primarily increase,
$0.6 million was due to bringing on board talerd@d innovative personnel, and other expenses afréillion, partially offset by a decrease in
other product development expenses of $0.1 million.

Our general and administrative expenses increag&@ 18 million from $9.1 million in 2012 to $11.4ilfion in 2013. The increase was
primarily related to employee compensation of $tillion due to an increase in personnel and thetatal costs we incurred as a result of
being a public company. Stock compensation expansesased by $0.4 million, $0.3 million of addital expenses related to the acquisition
and integration of our third party Germany-basedritiutor and service center and an increase & ®dlion of other general and
administrative expenses.

Amortization of purchased intangible assets inadds/ $0.1 million in 2013 compared to 2012 duthtwintangible assets from recently
acquired intellectual property.

Income from operations

Income from operations for 2013 increased $12.6anilor 48.3%, compared to income from operation2012. The increase in income from
operations was primarily the result of our increimsgross profit of $17.3 million, partially offséy our increases in operating expenses of $4.
million.
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Other expense, net

Other expense, net for 2013 increased by $0.3anitib $4.1 million in 2013 compared to $3.8 million2012. Within Other expense, net,
interest expense increased in 2013 by $0.6 mipi@marily due to a $1.4 million non-cash chargedoamortized loan origination costs in
connection with the termination of our Prior Crdelitcility, offset by decreased average borrowingsen our credit facilities. Other income
(expense), net for 2013 increased approximately Blllion from 2012 due to the loss on the disposiof fixed assets in 2012, which did not
reoccur in 2013.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for 2013 increased by $2.4anitid $10.6 million compared to income tax expesfsg8.2 million in 2012. Effective tax
rates were 30.5% and 36.5% for 2013 and 2012, césply. The decrease in the effective tax rate2fil 3 was caused by the expiration of
statute of limitations that allowed us to releasialaility for unrecognized tax benefits relatirggthe uncertainty of amortization and
depreciation expenses which were a result of Cog\pasjuisition of us in 2008 and also was resul ofinstatement of the federal research
and development credit that had lapsed in 2012.

Net income

As a result of the factors discussed above, ouingetme increased $9.9 million, or 69.6%, to $24illion in 2013 from $14.2 million in 2012.

Year ended December 31, 2012 compared to year eBadsgmber 31, 2011
Sales

Sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 ina&8&1 million, or 19.3%, compared to 2011. Safemountain bike and powered vehicle
products increased 16.2% and 26.1%, respectiveB012 compared to 2011. Sales growth was primdrilxen by sales to OEMs which
increased $32.0 million to $189.9 million durin@thear ended December 31, 2012 compared to $15fi@rfor the same period in 2011.
The increase in sales to OEMs was largely driveimbgeased specification, or spec, positions Wth@EM customers and, to a lesser degree
by increased sales on vehicle models where ourugtedhad previously been specified in prior yeihe remaining increase in sales totaling
$6.1 million reflects increased sales to aftermickistomers in the year ended December 31, 201paad to 2011. The increase in sales to
aftermarket customers is due to higher end useaddrfor our products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, R@t@ased $32.2 million, or 22.9% compared to 20k increase in cost of sales in
absolute dollars was primarily due to increasedssduring 2012 when compared to the prior yeartf®year ended December 31, 2012 our
gross margin was 26.6% compared to 28.8% for theegzeriod in 2011. Several factors contributedh&o2.2% decrease in gross margin in
2012, including an aggregate of $2.8 million in ytear for higher warranty related costs for upgsageour dampers contained in our
suspension products, which costs included a $lll®mincrease in our warranty reserve to repldesé dampers and $1.0 million in other
warranty related costs. In addition, due to incesdn customer orders above the amounts forecageethcurred $1.7 million of incremental
expedited in-bound freight costs related to proslgold to customers. The other material factorsrifmriing to the margin decrease in 2012
included increased overhead costs of $0.9 millesoeiated with consolidating our Watsonville opierat and increased costs of $1.1 million
associated with expanding our operations in Taiwan.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@032,increased $2.4 million, or 6.9%, over 2011 eWhxpressed as a percentage of sale
operating expenses declined to 15.5% of salehéoy¢ar ended December 31, 2012 compared to 17.3%es in 2011.

Within operating expenses, our sales and marketwpgnses increased in 2012 by $0.8 million to $dléon from $11.7 million in 2011
primarily due to increases of personnel relateceagiures for new hires of $0.6 million, and inged expenditures for marketing and busil
travel and supplies, equipment and services of Slbn.

Our research and development expenses were edlgantizhanged in 2012 compared to 2011 as incrdagesrsonnel related expenses for
additional employees of $0.2 million and additioegpenses for projects and prototypes and othezresgs of $0.3 million were offset by a
reduction of $0.5 million in third party consultifiees.

Our general and administrative expenses increas2dli2 by $1.5 million to $9.1 million from $7.6 lien in 2011, primarily due to increased
levels of personnel related expenses of $1.4 milkehich was primarily due to stock compensatiopemses of $1.0 million. In addition, there
were increases in general corporate overhead i @0%0.1 million.
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Amortization of purchased intangible assets in@éds/ $0.1 million due to the acquisition of inéeflual property.

Income from operations

Income from operations for the year ended Decer@be2012 increased $3.6 million, or 15.8%, compaoedcome from operations in 2011.
The increase in income from operations was primanié result of our increased sales in 2012 comtbr2011, which was partially offset by
the increases in cost of sales and operating erpatescribed above.

Other expense, net

Other expense, net for the year ended Decemb@03P2, increased by $1.8 million to $3.8 million iB12 compared to $2.0 million of other
expense, net in 2011. Within other income (expenst@rest expense increased in 2012 by $1.5 mitlioe primarily to increased average
borrowings under our Existing Credit Facility. lddition, other expenses, net increased in 20120 &illion primarily due to a loss on the
disposal of assets which were no longer needed.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the year ended Decemb&03®, increased by $1.1 million to $8.2 million caangd to income tax expense of $7.1
million in 2011. Effective tax rates were 36.5% &4d3% for 2012 and 2011, respectively. The in@éashe effective tax rates for 2012 was
primarily caused by the December 31, 2011 expinatiothe ability to generate additional federak@sh and development credit. As of
December 31, 2012, this credit had lapsed, althdtgges been subsequently extended.

Net income

As a result of the factors discussed above, ouingeme increased $0.7 million, or 5.2%, to $14ikiom in 2012 from $13.5 million for 2011.

Liquidity and capital resources

Our primary cash needs are to support working abpitd capital expenditures. We have generallynfied our historical needs with operating
cash flows and borrowings under our credit faeititiThese sources of liquidity may be impactedumtdations in various matters, including
demand for our products, investments made by ositiplant and equipment and other capital expera$ittand expenditures on general
infrastructure and intellectual technology. A sunynaf our operating, investing and financing adies are shown in the following table:

Years ended December 3.

(in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 22,61¢ $ 17,367 $ 21,03¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (5,042 (5,76)) (3,056
Net cash used in financing activiti (15,907 (12,705 (18,370)
Effect of exchange rate on ce (2) — —
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: $ 1,66¢ $ (99 $ (38¢)

We expect that cash on hand, cash flow from opmratand availability under our credit facilitiediMaie sufficient to fund our operations for at
least the next 18 months from the date of this AhReport.

Net cash provided by operating activiti

Cash provided by operating activities primarily sits of net income, adjusted for certain non-dshs including provision for doubtful
accounts receivable (including product returns @ash discounts), depreciation and amortizatiorkshased compensation, deferred income
taxes, amortization of loan costs and the effecthainges in working capital and other activities.

In 2013, cash provided by operating activities %28.6 million and consisted of net income of $24#illion plus non-cash items totaling $8.7
million less changes in operating assets and iisgsiland other adjustments totaling $10.2 millidien-cash items and other adjustments
consisted primarily of depreciation and amortizatid $7.8 million, stock-based compensation of $filion, a write off of unamortized loan
origination costs of $1.4 million, a $3.2 milliohange in deferred taxes and amortization of loas & $0.3 million. Cash used related to
operating assets and liabilities consisted primanfilan increase in accounts receivable of $8.5anilan increase in inventory of $7.4 million,
partially offset by an increase in accounts payabi3.6 million and an increase in accrued exper$&2.3 million, primarily due to the
increase level of business. Additionally, there wasncrease in prepaid expenses and other cussets of $0.4 million and $0.5 million in
income tax receivable.
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In 2012, cash provided by operating activities %48.4 million and consisted of net income of $I@ilion plus non-cash items totaling $1.1
million plus changes in operating assets and lt&sland other adjustments totaling $2.0 millidlon-cash items and other adjustments
consisted primarily of depreciation and amortizatid $7.2 million, stockeased compensation of $2.1 million, amortizatiotoah fees of $0.
million and loss on sale of assets of $0.3 millipartially offset by the excess tax benefit frora #xercise of stock options of $5.8 million and
a deferred income tax benefit of $3.2 million. Caskd in operating assets and liabilities consigtedarily of an increase in accounts
receivable of $7.0 million as a result of increasals volume, an increase in prepaid expensesthadcurrent assets of $0.5 million, and an
increase in inventory of $4.7 million related taiieased sales and components for new productgljyacffset by an increase in accounts
payable of $3.0 million, an increase in accruedeeses of $2.8 million, in each case largely relétettie increase in sales, and an increase in
income taxes receivable and deferred rent of $7ll®mand $0.7 million, respectively.

In 2011, cash provided by operating activities %2%.0 million and consisted of net income of $18iBion plus non-cash items totaling $5.5
million plus changes in operating assets and lt&sland other adjustments totaling $2.0 millidlon-cash items and other adjustments
consisted primarily of depreciation and amortizatid $6.6 million and stockased compensation of $1.0 million, and amortiratibloan fee
of $2.0 million, partially offset by a deferred omoe tax benefit of $2.4 million. Cash used in opegpassets and liabilities consisted primarily
of increases in accounts receivable of $1.2 millpmepaid expenses and other current assets oh@li@ and an increase in inventory of $.
million, partially offset by an increase in accaaiptiyable of $0.6 million, an increase in accrugztases of $2.1 million and an increase in
income taxes receivable of $2.7 million.

Net cash used in investing activitit

Cash used in investing activities primarily relaiepurchases by us of property and equipment mrestments in our manufacturing and
general infrastructure.

In 2013, 2012 and 2011, cash used in investingities was $5.0 million, $5.8 million and $3.1 riolh, respectively. In 2013, cash used in
investing activities consisted primarily of purcha®f property and equipment of $3.9 million anel ¢ash paid at closing of $1.1 million
related to our acquisition of our third party distitor. In 2012, cash used in investing activitessisted primarily of purchases of property an
equipment of $4.9 million, and an acquisition ofiatangible asset consisting of patents relatduidgcle suspension technology for $0.8
million. In 2011, cash used in investing activit@msisted primarily of purchases of property aqadigment. We estimate that our capital
expenditures for 2014 will be approximately $5.8iom to $6.8 million, primarily related to invesents in our manufacturing- and general
infrastructure and expenditures for our operatiarnBaiwan.

Net cash used in financing activitie

In 2013, net cash used in financing activities %&5.9 million, which consisted primarily of net pagnts on the Prior Credit Facility of $59.3
million partially offset by net proceeds from thHeQ of $36.1 million and net borrowings of $7.2 ioifl from the 2013 Credit Facility. Net cash
used in financing activities was $11.7 million i®12 compared to $18.4 million in 2011. The decréaseet cash used in financing activities
was partially attributable to our recapitalizatior2012.

Credit facility

Concurrently with the closing of our IPO in Aug2€t13 we used the net proceeds that we receivedtfreroffering to repay a portion of the
then outstanding indebtedness under our Prior Cedility. In addition, in connection with the IH®August 2013 we entered into our 2013
Credit Facility and borrowed $28.5 million thereendOf such borrowings, $21.6 million was usedepay the Company’s remaining
indebtedness that was then due under the PrioiitGracility and the Prior Credit Facility was temated, and the remaining amount of such
borrowings was used to pay IPO related fees andresgs and to provide additional working capital.

The 2013 Credit Facility consists of a $60.0 millievolving line of credit, including a $5.0 millicublimit for swingline loans, and a $10.0
million sublimit for the issuance of standby lestef credit. The maximum amount we are permittebldiwow under the revolving line of credit
is subject to certain borrowing limitations. Sulbjexthe satisfaction of certain conditions precedee have the ability to increase the
aggregate revolving loan commitments under the ZD¥E8lit Facility by an aggregate amount of up t6.85nillion, subject to the agreemen
any existing lenders and/or any additional lendérse are providing such increased commitments. Arteobarrowed under the 2013 Credit
Facility bear interest at a rate based on the Lordterbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, plus a marginging from 1.50% to 2.50%, or based on
the prime rate offered by SunTrust Bank plus a mamgnging from 0.50% to 1.50%. The lenders’ connmeiits to make revolving loans under
the 2013 Credit Facility terminate in August 2018.

The 2013 Credit Facility is secured, subject toxptted liens and other agreed upon exceptions, firgtapriority lien on and perfected security
interest in substantially all of our and our sulmigs assets including accounts receivable and a plefddpe equity in our operating subsidic
In addition, the 2013 Credit Facility requires that satisfy a maximum total leverage ratio andkedicharge coverage ratio. The 2013 Credit
Facility contains customary representations andamiies and customary events of default, as wedksasin affirmative and negative
covenants, including restrictions on: indebtednksss; mergers, consolidations
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and acquisitions; sales of assets; engaging imbssiother than our current business and thosernaaly related thereto; investments;
dividends; redemptions and distributions; affilirEnsactions; and other restrictions. As of Deaan®i, 2013, the outstanding borrowings
under our 2013 Credit Facility were $8.0 milliordame had $52.0 million available to borrow pursutanthe 2013 Credit Facility. As of
December 31, 2013, the Company was in compliantetive covenants contained in the 2013 Credit Facil

Contractual obligations and commitments
As of December 31, 2013, we had the following cactinal obligations (in thousands):

Less thar
1-3 4-5 After
Payments due by perio Total 1 year years years 5 years
Long-term borrowings $800C $ — $ — $ 8,000 $—
Operating lease obligatiol 10,99¢ 3,03( 5,31¢ 2,654 —
Purchase obligations and ot} 3,45¢ 3,45¢ — — —
Total $22,45° $ 6,48¢ $5,31f $10,65¢ $—

Seasonality

Our business is slightly seasonal. In each ofdlethree fiscal years, our quarterly sales haee bee lowest in the first quarter and the highes
during our third quarter of the year. For exampld, sales in our first and third quarters of 204@resented 20% and 30% of our total sales fo
the year, respectively. We believe this seasonalitue to the delivery of new products contaironig suspension products related to the new
mountain bike season for each year. We also bellatehe seasonal nature of our business may these overshadowed over each of the pas
few years due to the rapid growth in sales we lyerienced during the same periods.

Off-balance sheet arrangements

We have no material off-balance sheet arrangements.

Inflation

Historically, inflation has not had a material effen our results of operations. However, signifidacreases in inflation, particularly those
related to wages and increases in the cost of ratenmals could have an adverse impact on our bssjrfimancial condition and results of
operations.

Critical accounting policies and estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with GAAP. The preparation of thesgsolidated financial statements
requires us to make estimates, judgments, and g@$sun® that affect the reported amounts of asiatslities, sales, expenses and related
disclosures. We evaluate our estimates, judgmantsassumptions on an ongoing basis. Our estimatdsased on historical experience and
various other assumptions that we believe to beoregble under the circumstances. Our actual resulisl differ from these estimates.

We believe that the assumptions, judgments, anchatsts associated with the following have the gr&tgtotential impact on, and are critical tc
the understanding of, our results of operationgemee recognition, provision for doubtful accourgseivable, inventory, goodwill and
intangible assets, warranty, income taxes and dtaskd compensation. For further information om&dur significant accounting policies,
please see Note 1 of the accompanying notes t€ounsolidated Financial Statements.

We are an “emerging growth company” within the nmegrof the rules under the Securities Act, and vileutilize certain exemptions from
various reporting requirements that are applicétleublic companies that are not emerging growthganies. For example, we do not have tc
provide an auditor’s attestation report on ourrimié controls in our annual reports on FormKL8s otherwise required by Section 404(b) of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In addition, Section 107 of 3@8S Act provides that an emerging growth compzaryutilize the extended transition
period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Setiesi Act for complying with new or revised accougtistandards. Thus, an emerging growth
company can delay the adoption of certain accogrgiandards until those standards would otherwipé/do private companies. We have
irrevocably elected to opt out of the extendedditaon period for complying with new or revised aaating standards pursuant to Section 107
(b) of the JOBS Act. As a result, we will complytkvnew or revised accounting standards on the aaledates on which adoption of such
standards is required for non-emerging growth congsa
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Revenue recognitiol

We recognize sales when persuasive evidence afangement exists, title has transferred, the gaies is fixed or determinable, and
collectability of the receivable is reasonably asduProvisions for discounts, rebates, sales ihas) returns, and other adjustments are
provided for in the period the related sales acended based on management’s assessment of hastoeieds and projection of future results.
Sales are recorded net of sales tax.

Allowance for doubtful account:

We record a provision for doubtful accounts deematcollectable based on historical experienceaaddtailed assessment of the collectak
of our accounts receivable. In estimating the atloee for doubtful accounts, we consider, amongrd#wtors, the aging of the accounts
receivable, historical write-offs, and the crediwthiness of each customer. If circumstances chaagdh as higher-than-expected defaults or
an unexpected material adverse change in a magboroer's ability to meet its financial obligationge estimate if the recoverability of the
amounts due could be reduced by a material amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of standartl(@dsch generally approximates actual costs oinsé-ifh first-out basis) or market. Cost
includes raw materials, direct labor and manufaetuoverhead. Market value is based on currentogphent cost for raw materials and on a
net realizable value for finished goods. Adjustrsdntreduce the cost of inventory to its net redilie value are made, if required, for estimate
excess, obsolescence or impaired balances.

We regularly monitor inventory quantities on hamdl @n order and record write-downs for excess drstlete inventories based on our
estimate of the demand for our products, potentiablescence of technology, product life cyclesl, \ahen pricing trends or forecasts indicate
that the carrying value of inventory exceeds otinesied selling price. These factors are affectechbrket and economic conditions,
technology changes, and new product introductiogisraquire estimates that may include elementsatteatincertain. Actual demand may
differ from forecasted demand and may have a nadteffiect on our gross margin. If inventory is weit down, a new cost basis will be
established that cannot be increased in futur@geri

Goodwill, intangible assets and long-lived assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase priee the fair value of the net assets of businessgsired. Annually, we either make a
gualitative assessment prior to proceeding to atepof the annual goodwill impairment test or perf@ two-step impairment test. If we make
a qualitative assessment and it determines thdathealue of the reporting unit is less thand#srying amount, we would perform step one of
the annual goodwill impairment test and, if necasgaroceed to step two. Otherwise, no further eatbn is necessary. For the two-step
impairment test, in the first step, we comparef#tievalue of the reporting unit to its carryinglwe, including goodwill. We determine the fair
value of the reporting unit based on a weightingnobme and market approaches. If the fair valuga@freporting unit exceeds the carrying
value of the net assets assigned to that unit,wgitlad not impaired and no further testing is parhed. If the carrying value of the net assets
assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fauresaf the reporting unit, then we perform the selcstiep of the impairment test in order to
determine the implied fair value of the reportingtis goodwill. Impairments, if any, are chargededily to earnings. We have a single
reporting unit for purposes of assessing goodwipairment. We completed our most recent annualimmgaat test in the second quarter of
2013. No impairment charges have been incurrect®. d

Indefinite-lived intangible assets
Trademarks are considered to be indefinite lifangibles, and are not amortized but are subjeeisting for impairment annually.

Finite-lived intangible assets

We assess the impairment of identifiable finiteetiintangible assets whenever events or changa@sciimstances indicate that an asset graug
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Recovetybil certain finite-lived intangible assets, pewtarly customer relationships and core
technology, would be measured by a comparisoneo€#inrying amount of the asset group to which #sets are assigned to the sum of the
undiscounted estimated future cash flows the agsep is expected to generate. If the asset isidered to be impaired, the amount of such
impairment would be measured by the difference betwthe carrying amount of the asset and its &direr Recoverability and impairment of
other finite-lived intangible assets, particuladigveloped technology and patents, would be measyréte comparison of the carrying amount
of the asset to the sum of undiscounted estimaitedef product revenues offset by estimated futostscto dispose of the product to which the
asset relates. No impairment charges have beerréucto date.
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Warranty

Unless otherwise required by law, we generally evimited warranties on our products for onewio years. We accrue estimated costs
related to warranty activities as a component st ob sales upon product shipment or when inforomaltiecomes available indicating that an
adjustment to the warranty reserves is appropriaémagement estimates are based upon historicgbrafetted product failure rates and
historical costs incurred in correcting productuies. The warranty reserve is assessed from tintiee for adequacy and adjusted as
necessary. Actual warranty expenses are chargéasagar estimated warranty liability when incurr&ctors that affect our liability include
the number of units, historical and anticipateésaif warranty claims, and the cost per claim. #agréase in warranty claims or the related
costs associated with satisfying these warrantigatibns could increase our cost of sales and negtaffect our operating results.

Income taxes

We record our income tax expenses or benefitsdh &aderal, state and foreign jurisdiction in whiel operate using an asset and liability
approach. This process requires that we computeutient tax expense or benefit and deferred tperse or benefit, which result from
changes in temporary differences between the atioguand tax treatment of assets and liabilitiesluding items such as accruals and
allowances, which are recorded in different perifmidinancial statement and income tax return psgs. The income tax effects of these
differences we identify are classified as curraribangterm deferred tax assets and liabilities in oursotidated balance sheets. Our judgme
assumptions, and estimates relative to the cuprnision for income taxes take into account erdhtae laws, our interpretation of enacted ta
laws, and possible outcomes of current and futudéts conducted by tax authorities. Changes iraas or our interpretation of tax laws and
the resolution of current and future tax auditsld@ignificantly impact the amounts provided focéme taxes in our consolidated balance
sheets and consolidated statements of incomeebitand penalties associated with income taxeeaoeded as income tax expense in our
consolidated statements of income.

We account for uncertain tax positions on a tw@-stgproach to recognize and measure those positikas or expected to be taken in a tax
return. The first step is to determine if the weighavailable evidence indicates that it is makelyy than not that the tax position will be
sustained on audit, including resolution of anwtedl appeals or litigation processes. The secemisto measure the tax benefit as the large:
amount that is more than 50% likely to be realiapdn ultimate settlement. We adjust liabilities éoir uncertain tax positions due to changing
facts and circumstances, such as the closingaf audit, expiration of a statute of limitations &ssessment of income tax, the refinement of
estimates, or the realization of earnings or dednstthat differ from our estimates. To the exthat the final outcome of these matters is
different than the amounts recorded, such diffezsmeill impact our tax provision in our consoliddtgtatements of income in the period in
which such determination is made.

We must also assess the likelihood that deferpedgaets will be realized from future taxable inecamd, based on this assessment establish
valuation allowance, if required. The determinatiddrour valuation allowance involves assumptiondgments, and estimates, including
forecasted earnings, future taxable income, andella¢ive proportions of revenue and income befaxes in the various domestic and
international jurisdictions in which we operate. fhe extent we establish a valuation allowancehange the valuation allowance in a period,
we reflect the change with a corresponding increaskecrease of our income tax provision in oursotidated statements of income.

Stocl-based compensation

Compensation expense related to stock-based coatpEmnsncluding employee and nemployee director awards, is measured and recat
in the financial statements based on fair value a$sumptions we use in the valuation model aredbais future expectations regarding our
business, combined with management judgment. Whaefair value recognition provisions of this guida, stock-based compensation is
measured at the grant date based on the fair ehline award and is recognized as expense, netiofaed forfeitures, over the requisite
service period, which is generally the vesting pe:iof the award.

Determining the fair value of stock-based awardbaigrant date represents our board of direchmst estimates; however, the estimates
involve inherent uncertainties and the applicatbjudgment. We use the Black-Scholes option pgaimodel to determine the fair value of
stock options. The determination of the grant diaitevalue of options using an option pricing motdeffected by our estimated common st
fair value as well as assumptions regarding a numbether complex and subjective variables. Thes@&bles include the fair value of our
common stock, our expected stock price volatilingrothe expected term of the options, stock opgxercise and cancellation behaviors, risk-
free interest rates and expected dividends.

Prior to our IPO in August of 2013, our board akdiors considered numerous objective and subgédistors to determine the fair market
value of our common stock at each meeting at whiobk options were granted and approved.

Stock-based compensation expenses are classifted statements of income based on the departmevtiith the related employee reports.
Our stock-based awards are comprised principalstadk options and restricted stock unit awards.

41



Table of Contents

Recent accounting pronouncements
Comprehensive income: Reclassifications

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013*B2porting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumel&iOther Comprehensive
Income,” or ASU 2013-02, to supersede and replae@tesentation requirements for reclassificatmrtsof accumulated other comprehensive
income in ASU 2011-05, which were deferred indédilyi under ASU No. 2011-12, “Deferral of the Effeet Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out ofémulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accouritagdards Update No. 2011-05,” or
ASU 2011-12, issued in December 2011. The amendnie#tSU 2013-02 would require an entity to provadiglitional information about
reclassifications out of accumulated other compmeive income by the respective line items of nebime. For public entities, the amendment:
are effective for fiscal years, and interim periadthin those years, beginning after December 0322 The adoption of ASU 2013-02 did not
have an impact on our financial position or resofteperations.

Release of cumulative translation adjustme

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05r8atis Accounting for the Cumulative Translationjdstment upon Derecognition of
Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets withiroeelgn Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Bntior ASU 2013-05, which resolves
diversity in practice regarding the release ofdhmulative translation adjustment into net inconfeewa parent either sells a part or all of its
investment in a foreign entity or no longer holdsatrolling financial interest in a subsidiarygmoup of assets within a foreign entity. The
amendments in ASU 2013-05 are effective prospdgtiee fiscal years, and interim periods within seoyears, beginning after December 15,
2013. Early adoption is permitted. The adoptio8U 2013-05 did not have a material impact on @uarfcial position or results of
operations.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Sensitivity

We are exposed to market risk in the normal coafsr business operations due to our ongoing tmvgsind financing activities. The risk of
loss can be assessed from the perspective of adeleamges in fair values, cash flows and futureiegs. We have established policies and
procedures governing our management of market aiskishe use of financial instruments to managesx to such risks. We generally do
not hedge our interest rate exposure. We had $#i0nrof debt, bearing interest at a variable ratetstanding under our credit facilities as of
December 31, 2013. Based on the $8.0 million oiabée interest rate indebtedness that was outstgradi of December 31, 2013, a
hypothetical 100 basis point increase or decrea#igei interest rate on our interest rate variablat ould have resulted in an approximately
$0.1 million change to our interest expense fadi2013.

Exchange Rate Sensitivity

As of December 31, 2013, we were not exposed tufgignt foreign currency exchange rate risks timtld have a material effect on our
financial condition or results of operations. Fgrecurrency fluctuations could in the future hameadverse effect on our business and rest
operations. We primarily sell our products inside autside of the United States in U.S. Dollarstiesmajority of our expenses are also in
U.S. Dollars, we are somewhat insulated from cuydhuctuations. We do not currently hedge our ifgnecurrency exposure.

Credit and Other Risks

We are exposed to credit risk associated with egsiivalents, investments, and trade receivablesddeot believe that our cash equivalen
investments present significant credit risks beedhe counterparties to the instruments consistaybr financial institutions and we manage
the notional amount of contracts entered into &itlf one counterparty. Our cash and cash equivadsra$ December 31, 2013 consisted
principally of FDIC insured certificates of depaoaitd cash balances in non-interest bearing cheadogunts. Substantially all trade receivable
balances of our businesses are unsecured. Thertoatam of credit risk with respect to trade reeadiles is concentrated by the number of
significant customers that we have in our custoba@se and a prolonged economic downturn could iserear exposure to credit risk on our
trade receivables. We perform ongoing credit evadna of our customers and maintain an allowanc@tential credit losses.

We do not currently hedge our exposure to increste prices for our primary raw materials.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our financial statements and the report of our reehelent registered public accounting firm are idetliin this Annual Report beginning on
page F-1. The index to these reports and our finbstatements is included in Part IV, Item 15 belo
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ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures,defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeEttthange Act, that are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed bpmpany in the reports that it files or submaitger the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the piennds specified in the SE€Ctules and forms. Disclosure controls and proesiinclude
without limitation, controls and procedures desijteensure that information required to be disaiiosy a company in the reports that it files
or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulateédcammunicated to the company’s management, inaduidé principal executive and
principal financial officers, as appropriate tooalltimely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our Cliigécutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officexaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of Decenthe2®.3. Based on the evaluation of our disclosargrols and procedures as of
December 31, 2013, our Chief Executive Officer @ikf Financial Officer concluded that, as of sdele, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assitavel.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

This Annual Report does not include a report of agament’'s assessment regarding internal contralfonancial reporting or an attestation
report of our independent registered public acdagrfirm due to a transition period establishedhosy rules of the SEC for newly public
companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control éwamncial reporting identified in connection wittet evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(d)
and 15d-15(d) under the Exchange Act that occuttethg the three months ended December 31, 201 h#ve materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interantrol over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, believes that oisctbsure controls and procedures and
internal control over financial reporting are desd to provide reasonable assurance of achieveigdhjectives and are effective at the
reasonable assurance level. However, our managetnestnot expect that our disclosure controls andgulures or our internal control over
financial reporting will prevent all errors and &tud. A control system, no matter how well conediand operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the g the control system are met. Further, thegteof a control system must reflect the fact
that there are resource constraints, and the lteméftontrols must be considered relative to thests. Because of the inherent limitations i
control systems, no evaluation of controls can ®absolute assurance that all control issuesrestances of fraud, if any, have been
detected. These inherent limitations include ttadities that judgments in decision making can hatyaand that breakdowns can occur bec

of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, consa@an be circumvented by the individual acts of s@ersons, by collusion of two or more
people or by management override of the contrdige. design of any system of controls also is basgauit upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, and there can be rsuemce that any design will succeed in achiewmgtated goals under all potential future
conditions; over time, controls may become inadegjbacause of changes in conditions, or the degreempliance with policies or
procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inh&neitations in a cost-effective control systemsstatements due to error or fraud may occu
and not be detected.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

Information required by this Item regarding oureditiors and executive officers is incorporated ligremce to the sections of our proxy
statement to be filed with the SEC in connectiothwaur 2014 annual meeting of stockholders (th@xiStatement”) entitled “Election of
Class | Directors” and “Corporate Governance.”

Information required by this Item regarding ourpanate governance, including our audit committesd @de of business conduct and ethics, i
incorporated by reference to the sections of tlwxyPBtatement entitled “Corporate Governance” aoldrd of Directors.”

Information required by this Item regarding comptia with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requingdhis Item is incorporated by
reference to the section of the Proxy Statemeiritiesht Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporti@gmpliance.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this item regarding exeeettompensation is incorporated by reference tantloeemation set forth under the captions
“Executive Compensation,” “Director CompensationtdCorporate Governance” in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information regarding security ownership of certagmeficial owners and management is incorporage@ference to the section of the Proxy
Statement entitled “Security Ownership of Certaengficial Owners and Management.”

Information required by this item regarding seéesitauthorized for issuance under our equity corsgtan plans is incorporated by reference
to the information set forth under the caption “Extve Compensation” in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, DIR ECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information required by this Item is incorporatedrbference to the sections of the Proxy Stateraetitied “Certain Relationships and Relatec
Party Transactions and Director Independence.”

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by this Item is incorporatedrbference to the section of the Proxy Statemetitied “Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) (1) Financial Statemer

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2QiL3GkP F-2
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended December 31, 2013, 2012 and ; F-3
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéofiscal years ended December 31, 2013, 2012ahd F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the fiscal years ended December 31, 20032 and 201 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem: F-7
(2) Exhibits
See“Index to Exhibit” set forth on page 4 46
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdréport to be signed on its behalf
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Fox Factory Holding Corp.

s/ Zvi Glasmatr

Zvi Glasmar

Chief Financial Officel

(Principal Financial Officer and Duly Authorizeddsiatory)

Date: March 03, 201

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below constitutes anmirgpZvi Glasman and
Larry L. Enterline, and each of them, as his orth& and lawful attorneys-ifact and agents, with full power of substitutiom fém or her, an

in his or her name in any and all capacities, go siny and all amendments to this Annual Repoff@m 10-K, and to file the same, with
exhibits thereto and other documents in connedlierewith, with the U.S. Securities and Exchangm@dssion, granting unto said attorneys-
in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power @urthority to do and perform each and every adtthimg requisite and necessary to be don
therewith, as fully to all intents and purposeti@®r she might or could do in person, herebyyiatif and confirming all that said attorneys-in-
fact and agents, and either of them, his or hesttuke or substitutes, may lawfully do or causéeadone by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, as amended, this report has sigeed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in thea#pa and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Larry L. Enterline Chief Executive Officer and Director March 03, 2014
Larry L. Enterline (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Zvi Glasman Chief Financial Officer March 03, 2014
Zvi Glasmar (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/sl Elias Sabo Chairman March 03, 2014
Elias Sabc
/s/ Robert C. Fox, Jr. Director March 03, 2014
Robert C. Fox, Ji
/sl Joseph Hagin Director March 03, 2014
Joseph Hagil
/s/ Dudley Mendenhall Director March 03, 2014
Dudley Mendenhal
/s/ Carl Nichols Director March 03, 2014
Carl Nichols
/s/ Ted Waitman Director March 03, 2014
Ted Waitmar
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatme\iously filed on September 19, 2013 as Exhitittd the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. 00-36040) and incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Bylaws (previously filed opt&aber 19, 2013 as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’ar@uly Report on
Form 1(-Q (File No. 00-36040) and incorporated herein by referen

Form of Common Stock Certificate (previously filed July 8, 2013 as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’'siRegfion Statement on
Form &-1(File No. 33-189841) and incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreerdated May 12, 2013, by and among Fox Factory lgld@orp., Compass
Group Diversified Holdings LLC, Madison Capital Fling Co-Investment Fund LP and certain other stoldédrs listed on the
signature page thereto (previously filed on Jul2@l3 as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s RegistraStatement on Form S-1(File
No. 33:-189841) and incorporated herein by referen

Revolving Credit Facility dated August 7, 2013 mgamong Fox Factory Holding Corp., Fox Factorg, ISunTrust Bank and
the other parties thereto (previously filed on 8agier 19, 2013 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’srt@ts Report on Form 10-
Q (File No. 00-36040) and incorporated herein by referen

Employment Agreement, dated July 22, 2013, by atdiden Fox Factory Holding Corp. and Larry L. Elier (previously filec
on July 25, 2013 as Exhibit 10.7 to the CompanyegiRration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3338¥39 and incorporated
herein by reference

Employment Agreement, dated July 22, 2013, by atdiéen Fox Factory Holding Corp. and Zvi Glasmae\{jusly filed on
July 25, 2013 as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Begiion Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-189&4t incorporated
herein by reference

Employment Agreement, dated July 22, 2013, by atdiéen Fox Factory Holding Corp. and John Boulfme\iously filed on
July 25, 2013 as Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Reegiion Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-189&4H incorporated
herein by reference

Employment Agreement, dated July 22, 2013, by atdiéen Fox Factory Holding Corp. and Mario Galggseviously filed on
July 25, 2013 as Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’siRegtion Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-189&hd incorporated
herein by reference

Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy (previod#gd on July 25, 2013 as Exhibit 10.24 to the Camys Registration
Statement on Form-1 (File No. 33-189841) and incorporated herein by referen

Information Sharing and Cooperation Agreement daiegust 13, 2013 by and between Compass Diversiieldings, on its
behalf and on behalf of its wholly-owned subsidja@pmpass Group Diversified Holdings LLC, and Factéry Holding Corp.,
on its behalf and on behalf of its wholly-owned sidiary, Fox Factory, Inc. (previously filed on Newaber 6, 2013 as Exhibit
10.6 to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. 00-36040) and incorporated herein by referen

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Fox Factdolding Corp. and certain of its directors arfficers (previously filed
on July 8, 2013 as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’giReation Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-#39&nd incorporated
herein by reference

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Fox Factéolding Corp. and Elias Sabo and certain adsgigpreviously filed on
July 8, 2013 as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Regjion Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33841) and incorporated her
by reference)

2008 Stock Option Plan, as amended (previously file July 8, 2013 as Exhibit 10.3 to the Compar&gistration Statement
Form &1 (File No. 33-189841) and incorporated herein by referer

2008 Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan, as amendesliqusly filed on July 29, 2013 as Exhibit 10.4e Company’s
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (File No. 33-189841) and incorporated herein by refere

2013 Omnibus Plan (previously filed on July 29, 2@% Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registratiorte3teent on Form 3-(File
No. 33:-189841) and incorporated herein by referen
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Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement un2i@t3 Omnibus Plan (previously filed on July 2512@&s Exhibit 10.6 t
the Compan’s Registration Statement on Forr1 (File No. 33-189841) and incorporated herein by referen

Air Commercial Real Estate Association Standardistidal / Commercial Single-Tenant Lease — Groated October 31,
2011, by and between Fox Factory, Inc. and SammaeAbitbol, LLC (previously filed on July 8, 2018 Exhibit 10.11 to the
Compan’s Registration Statement on For-1(File No. 33-189841) and incorporated herein by referen

Air Commercial Real Estate Association Standardistidal / Commercial Single-Tenant-Gross, MarchZ,0, by and
between Fox Factory, Inc. and Scarborough Gilbartriers, and related addenda (previously fileduiyn 8, 2013 as Exhibit
10.12 to the Compar's Registration Statement on For-1(File No. 33-189841) and incorporated herein by referer

Lease Agreement, dated July 1, 2003, by and betweritactory, Inc. and Robert C. Fox, Jr. (previptiged on July 8, 2013
as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Registration&taant on Form S-1(File No. 333-189841) and incafzat herein by
reference)

Lease Agreement, dated June 13, 2006, by and beti@eFactory, Inc. and Freedom Associates, LL@, retated addenda
(previously filed on July 8, 2013 as Exhibit 10tb4he Company’s Registration Statement on FornfF#elNo. 333-189841)
and incorporated herein by referenc

Air Commercial Real Estate Association Standardisiidal/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease - Net, dafgudil 19, 2012, by
and between Fox Factory, Inc. and North Johnsom&eProperty, LLC, and related addendum (previofiyg on July 8,
2013 as Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s RegistraBtatement on Form S-1(File No. 333-189841) andrimarated herein by
reference)

Land and Factory Lease Agreement, dated April 2228y and among Fox Factory, Inc., Hong-Ming L&&:Ming Lee,
Qing-Yu Lee, Fu-Zhong Lu, Yu-Wei Lu and Guan-Lun (areviously filed on July 8, 2013 as Exhibit 10tb&he Company’s
Registration Statement on Forr-1(File No. 33-189841) and incorporated herein by referer

Sublease, dated January 1, 2012, by and betweeRrdetary, Inc. and Robert C. Fox, Jr., and relaigdiendum (previously
filed on July 8, 2013 as Exhibit 10.17 to the Comps Registration Statement on Form S-1(File N8-389841) and
incorporated herein by referenc

Services and Secondment Agreement, as amended,Mateh 10, 2011, by and among Fox Factory, Ingx, Factory Holdin
Corp. and Vulcan Holdings, Inc. (previously filed duly 8, 2013 as Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’'giBeation Statement on
Form $-1(File No. 33-189841) and incorporated herein by referer

Asset Purchase Agreement, by and between ST USdigpCorp. and Sport Truck USA, Inc., dated MarcB&L4
(previously filed on March 6, 2014 as Exhibit 1@0lthe Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File R01-36040) and
incorporated herein by referen:

List of Subsidiarie:
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
Power of Attorney (contained in signature pagéhte Annual Report on Form -K)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13a-14(a) and 13dKa) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193¢
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer purquao Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secsriirchange Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoa®éttion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Chief Financial Officeursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopte@d¢tdd 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Documen
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Scherr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba:
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101.DEF**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbas

101.PRE*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbe

t  Denotes management contracts and compensatorygiansangement

* Filed herewitr

** |n accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation Stfie information in these exhibits is furnished aeeémed not filed or part of a

registration statement or prospectus for purposeeaions 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1988amended, is deemed not filed for
purposes of section 18 of the Securities Exchangef1934, as amended, and otherwise is not sutgéiability under these sectior
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Fox Factory Holding Corp.
Scaotts Valley, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Fox Factory Holding Corp. and subsétigthe “Company”) as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related coasatidtatements of income, comprehensive incomeklslders’equity and cash flows fc
each of the three years in the period ended Dece®ih013. These consolidated financial statememetshe responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtwer financial reporting as a basis for desigrandit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audifudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stippdhe amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assgsbe accounting principles used and signifiemiimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@maWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial position
of Fox Factory Holding Corp. and subsidiaries aBetember 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results wfaperations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Dece®ih013, in conformity with accounting principlgenerally accepted in the United States
of America.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
March 11, 2014

F-1



Table of Contents

Fox Factory Holding Corp.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel

As of December 31

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubfatounts of $366 and $440 at December 31, 2013 and

2012, respectively
Inventory
Prepaids and other current as:
Deferred tax asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Loan fees, ne
Loan fees, n—related party
Goodwill
Intangibles, ne
Total asset

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Liability reserve for uncertain tax positio
Current portion of lon-term det—related party
Total current liabilities
Line of credit
Line of credi—related party
Long-term debt, less current port—related party
Deferred ren
Deferred tax liabilitie:
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder equity

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value—10,000,000 aizthddiand no shares issued or outstanding as of

December 31, 2013 and 20

Common stock, $0.001 par value—90,000,000 authd@zeof December 31, 2013 and 2012; 36,317,087
33,459,944 shares issued and outstanding as ohfibere31, 2013 and 2012, respectiv

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li
Retained earnings (defic

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofét@msolidated statements.
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2013 2012
$ 1,680 $ 15
33,781 25,22
42,78: 34,25t
2,64¢ 2,24;
3,49( 3,40
84,38t 65,14
13,41 11,78¢

717 —
— 1,66¢
31,92 31,37:
27,28 32,15
$157,72¢  $142,12(
$ 24,25: $ 19,55:
12,45 10,15¢
7,79¢€ 7,29:
— 3,00(
44,50: 39,99

8,00( —
— 75(
— 55,50
931 1,13
12,00¢ 15,158
65,437 11253
36 33
87,78 49,16
(15) 1
4,48: (19,619
92,29: 29,58
$157,72¢  $142,12(
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Fox Factory Holding Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(In thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011

Sales $272,74¢  $235,86¢  $197,73¢
Cost of sale: 192,61 173,041 140,84¢

Gross profit 80,12¢ 62,82¢ 56,89(
Operating expense

Sales and marketir 14,15t 12,57( 11,74¢

Research and developm 10,40¢ 9,72 9,75(

General and administrati\ 11,40¢ 9,06: 7,58¢

Amortization of purchased intangibl 5,37¢ 5,31¢ 5,21
Total operating expens 41,34¢ 36,67¢ 34,30
Income from operation 38,78! 26,15¢ 22,58
Other expense, ne

Interest expens (4,125 (3,486 (1,982

Other income (expense), r 12 (277) (13)
Other expense, n (4,119 (3,769 (1,999
Income before income tax 34,66¢ 22,39: 20,59:
Provision for income taxe 10,56¢ 8,181 7,05¢
Net income $ 24,10 $ 1421( $ 13,53¢
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 07¢ $ 04 $ 0.4F

Diluted $ 068 $ 04 $ 042
Weightedaverage shares used to compute earnings per

Basic 34,571 32,05¢ 30,03(

Diluted 35,70¢ 32,51t 32,29t

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofét@msolidated statements.
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Fox Factory Holding Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)

Comprehensive incorr
Net income

Other comprehensive income (lo:
Foreign currency translation adjustments, netx

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Total comprehensive incon

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofét@msolidated statements.
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For the years ended December 3.
2013 2012 2011

$24,10:  $14,21( $13,53¢

(16) 1 —
(16) 1 —
$24,08¢ $1421: $13,53¢
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Balance—December 31, 201!
Stocl-based compensation expel
Net income

Balance—December 31, 201
Repurchase of common sta

Fox Factory Holding Corp.
Consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity
for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012, and.20
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Issuance of common stock upon exercises of employee

stock option:

Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock opti

Proceeds from equity issuance,

Dividend distribution ($2.00 per shai

Stocl-based compensation expel

Foreign currency translation adjustm:

Net income

Balance—December 31, 201.
Stocl-based compensation expel

Foreign currency translation adjustm:

Issuance of common stock in connection with initial

public offering, net of offering cos

Net income

Balance—December 31, 2013

Common stock Additional other Total
comprehensive Retained stockholders’
paid-in earnings
Shares Amount capital income (loss) (deficit) equity

30,029,92 $ 3C $ 33,06¢ $ — $ 19,63 $ 52,72
— — 1,03( — — 1,03(
— — — — 13,53¢ 13,53¢
30,029,92 $ 3C $ 34,09¢ $ — $ 33,17 $ 67,29t
(4,645 — (29 — — (29

2,423,62 — — — — —
— — 5,75¢ — — 5,75¢
1,011,03i 3 7,201 — — 7,204
— — — — (67,000 (67,000
_ — 2,14¢ — — 2,14¢
— — — 1 — 1
— — — — 14,21( 14,21(
33,459,94 $ 33 $ 49,16¢ $ 1 $(19,619) $ 29,58¢
— — 2,50( — — 2,50(
— — — (16) — (16)
2,857,14. 3 36,11¢ — — 36,12:
— — — — 24,10 24,10:
36,317,08 $ 36 $87,78 $ (15 $ 4,48° $ 92,29

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofet@msolidated statements.
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Fox Factory Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision (benefit) for doubtful accour
Stocl-based compensatic
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock opti
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipn
Write-off of unamortized loan origination costs from tethparty deb
Deferred taxe
Amortization of loan fee
City of Watsonville loan cred
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Income taxes receivab
Prepaids and other current as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Deferred ren
Net cash provided by operating activit
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipm
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Acquisition of busines
Purchase of intangible ass
Net cash used in investing activiti
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repurchase of common sta
Payments for deferred offering costs of initial feibffering
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of undeiter fees
Proceeds from equity issuar
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock opti
Dividends paic
Proceeds from line of credit, net of originatioesenf $77¢
Payments on line of crec
Proceeds from related party line of cre
Payments on related party line of cre
Proceeds from issuance of related party
Repayment of related party de
Net cash used in financing activiti
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH BQYALENTS
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of perioc
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—ENnd of perioc

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the period fc
Income taxe:
Interest
Non-cash investing and financing activiti¢
Unpaid portion of cash consideration for acquisi

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofét@msolidated statements.
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For the years ended December 3

2013 2012 2011
$24,10. $14,21( $13,53¢
7,75¢ 7,20¢ 6,59¢
(74) 68 46
2,50( 2,14¢ 1,03(
— (5,755) —

@ 252 63
1,40¢ — —
(3,230  (3,18) (2,430
327 387 207
— 4 (32)
(8510 (7,029 (1,159
(7.447) (4,729 (1,476
502 7,84¢ 2,744
(405) (474) (762)
3,61« 2,981 63€
2,291 2,75¢ 2,06(
(201) 681 (31)
22,61¢ 17,367  21,03¢
(3,93) (4,929 (3,067
7 2 11
(1,117) — —
— (838) —
(5049 (5,76 (3,056
(3,73Y) — —
39,85; — —
_ 7,20¢ _

— 5,75¢ —

— (67,000 —
27,72: — —
(20,500) — —
31,85¢ 32,38t  20,79¢
(32,609 (33,085 (28,480
— 58,40« —
(58,500 (15,339 (10,689
(15,90) (11,709 (18,370
2 —
1,66¢ (99) (38¢)
15 114 502

$ 168 $ 15 $ 114
$10,77¢ $ 351C $ 6,73¢
$ 2,568 $ 2,787 $ 1,80¢
$ 1401 $ — $ —
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Fox Factory Holding Corp.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Amunting Policies

Fox Factory Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a dgs&r, manufacturer and marketer of high end suspepsoducts for mountain bikes and
powered vehicles, which includes all-terrain veddgisnowmobiles and other off-road vehicles. The@any acts both as a tier one supplier tc
leading action sports original equipment manufaat(*OEM”) and provides aftermarket products tiaiters and distributors (“AM”).

On August 13, 2013, the Company completed theaimtiiblic offering (“IPO”) of its common stock pui@nt to a registration statement on
Form S-1. In the IPO, the Company sold 2,857,148eshof common stock and the selling stockholdaidatotal of 7,000,000 shares of
common stock (including the shares sold pursuatiteé@xercise of the option granted to the undéeva] at an initial public offering price to
the public of $15.00 per share. The Company redenet proceeds from the IPO of approximately $36illion from its sale of 2,857,143
shares of common stock after deducting underwritiisgounts and commissions and offering expendes Company did not receive any
proceeds from the sale of shares by the sellingkbtdders. The Company used the net proceedsdivest to pay down related party debt. (see
Note 8— Debt).

The Company is subject to those risks common inufzeture-driven markets, including, but not limited competitive forces, dependence on
key personnel, customer demand for its productsstitcessful protection of its proprietary techgi@s, compliance with government
regulations, and the possibility of not being abl®btain additional financing when needed.

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying consolidated financial statemieat® been prepared in accordance with accountingiples
generally accepted in the United States of Amgi@AAP).

In July 2013, the Company’s board of directors appd a 46.45 for 1 stock split of the Company’siéggband outstanding common stock
which became effective on July 25, 2013. Accordingll share and per share amounts for all pengwdsented in these consolidated financial
statements and notes have been adjusted retrdgdtveflect this stock split.

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements include tbmgany and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All isanpany
transactions and balances have been eliminatezhisotidation.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of consolidated financial stateménticcordance with GAAP requires management teereatimates ar
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etsid&bilities, and disclosures of contingenetsand liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the rep@medunts of sales and expenses during the repgréingd. Such estimates include the useful
lives of fixed assets and intangible assets, alfm®a for doubtful accounts, warranty reserve, stiaded compensation, income taxes and
inventory write-downs. Actual results could diffeom those estimates.

Foreign Currency Translation —The functional currency of the Company’s ndrs. entities is the local currency of the respectiperations
The Company translates the financial statemenits obn-U.S. entities into U.S. dollars each reipgrperiod for purposes of consolidation.

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign sidiaries are translated at the per@wi currency exchange rates while sales, expegaies,
and losses are translated at the average currenbgmge rates in effect for the period, the effetthese translation adjustments are reported
in the statements of comprehensive income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash consists of cash maintained in a checkinguatc All highly liquid investments purchased with
original maturity date of 90 days or less at theedd purchase are considered to be cash equigalent

Accounts Receivable—Accounts receivable are unsecured customer olbiggtivhich generally require payment within variterss from th
invoice date. The receivables are stated at th@idevamount. Financing terms vary by customer. Raysof accounts receivable are applie
the specific invoices identified on the customegmittance advice or if unspecified, generallytte earliest unpaid invoices.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is redury a valuation allowance that reflects managé&msbast estimate of amounts that may
not be collected. All accounts or portions ther@eémed to be uncollectible or that may requirexaessive collection cost are written off to
the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Concentration of Credit Risk —Financial instruments, which potentially subjéet Company to significant concentrations of cradk,
consist primarily of cash and accounts receivablsignificant portion of the Company’s cash is hatdne large financial institution. The
Company has not experienced any losses in sucluaisco
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The Company mitigates its credit risk with resgeciccounts receivable by performing ongoing cred#luations and monitoring of its
customers’ accounts receivable balances. The follpwustomers accounted for 10% or more of the Gamis accounts receivable balance:

As of December 31

2013 2012
Customer A 16% 13%
Customer E 11% 11%
Customer C * 12%

* Represents less than 1(

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 20122@hdl, Customer A from table above represented 18%, and 12%, of sales,
respectively.

The Company depends on a limited number of ventosspply component parts for its products. The Gamy purchased 48%, 43%, and £
of its product components for the years ended Deeend1, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively, fremviendors. As of December 31, 2013
and 2012, amounts due to these vendors represeBitednd 43% of accounts payable, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—The Company records a provision for doubtful actsiased on historical experience and a detailed
assessment of the collectability of its accounteirable. In estimating the allowance for doub#otounts, management considers, among
other factors, the aging of the accounts receivdiitorical write-offs, and the credit-worthinesfseach customer. If circumstances change,
such as higher-than-expected defaults or an unéegbetaterial adverse change in a major custombifityato meet its financial obligations,
the Company'’s estimate of the recoverability oféih@ounts due could be reduced by a material amount.

The following table presents the activity in thivadance for doubtful accounts (in thousands):

For the years endec
December 31

2013 2012 2011

Allowance for doubtful account
Balance, beginning of peric $44( $372 $32¢€
Add: bad debt expense (bene (45) 87 104
Less: write-offs, net of recoverie (29 (19 (58)
Balance, end of peric $36€ $44C $372

Inventories —Inventories are stated at the lower of standasd @hich generally approximates actual costs firstin first-out basis) or
market. Cost includes raw materials, direct labad manufacturing overhead. Market value is basetliorent replacement cost for raw
materials and on a net realizable value for finisheods. Adjustments to reduce the cost of inveriits net realizable value are made, if
required, for estimated excess, obsolescence aiiggpbalances.

Property and Equipment—Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation. Depreciation is computedgutie
straight-line method over the estimated usefuklivéthe related assets. Maintenance and repa&irsharged to expense as incurred, and
improvements and betterments are capitalized. Vdkeats are retired or otherwise disposed of, theazw accumulated depreciation and
amortization are removed from the balance sheetagdesulting gain or loss is reflected in operagiin the period realized.

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a stréiightasis over the terms of the lease, or theulifigés of the assets, whichever is shorter.
Depreciation and amortization periods for the Conyfsmproperty and equipment are as follows:

Estimated
Asset Classificatiol useful life
Machine shop equipment 15 year
Manufacturing equipmer 5-7 year:
Office equipment and furnitui 5-7 year:
Transportation equipme 5 year
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Impairment of Long-lived Assets—The Company periodically reviews property and emqépt for impairment whenever events or changs
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouminoéisset is impaired or the estimated useful Bwesio longer appropriate. If indicators of
impairment exist and the undiscounted projecteti 8asvs associated with such assets are less beacarrying amount of the asset, an
impairment loss is recorded to write the asset dimatheir estimated fair values. Fair value israated based on discounted future cash flows
No impairment charges were recorded during thesyeaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2

Business Combinations—The Company accounts for acquisitions of entitiies include inputs and processes and have thigyabilcreate
outputs as business combinations. The Companyadlsthe purchase price of the acquisition toahgible assets acquired, liabilities assu
and identifiable intangible assets acquired basettheir estimated fair values. The excess of thretse price over those fair values is recc
as goodwill. Acquisition-related expenses and uestiring costs are expensed as incurred. Duringibesurement period, the Company
records adjustments to provisional amounts recofoledssets acquired and liabilities assumed wvighcorresponding offset to goodwill. After
the measurement period, which could be up to one gier the transaction date, subsequent adjussraem recorded to the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets—Goodwill represents the excess of purchase priee the fair value of the net assets of busineasgsired.
Annually the Company either makes a qualitativesssient prior to proceeding to step 1 of the angoadlwill impairment test or performs a
two-step impairment test. If the Company makesaitgive assessment and it determines that thevétie of the reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, the Company would perform step the® annual goodwill impairment test and, if nexzeg, proceed to step 2. Otherwise, no
further evaluation is necessary. For the step impairment test, in the first step, the Comypaompares the fair value of the reporting units
carrying value, including goodwill. The Companyetatines the fair value of the reporting unit based weighting of income and market
approaches. If the fair value of the reporting emiteeds the carrying value of the net assetsressig that unit, goodwill is not impaired and
no further testing is performed. If the carryindueof the net assets assigned to the reportirtgeMneeds the fair value of the reporting unit,
then the Company performs the second step of thairment test in order to determine the implied ¥ailue of the reporting unit's goodwill.
Impairments, if any, are charged directly to eaggiriThe Company has a single reporting unit foppses of assessing goodwill impairment.
No impairment charges have been incurred to

Intangible assets include customer relationshipsth@ Company’s core technology, are subject toremation over their respective useful
lives, and are classified in intangibles, net ia #fccompanying consolidated balance sheet. Thisggibles are evaluated for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value of the assets may ndulberecoverable. If facts and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value tigit be recoverable, projected undiscounted re#t laws associated with the related asset
or group of assets over their estimated remainggjull lives is compared against their respectiveytey amounts. Trademarks are considered
to be indefinite life intangibles, and are not atized but are subject to testing for impairmentuaily. No impairments of intangible assets
were identified in the years ended December 31320012 and 2011.

Revenue Recognition—The Company recognizes sales when persuasiver®dadd an arrangement exists, title has transfethedsales price
is fixed or determinable, and collectability of trezeivable is reasonably assured. Provisionsifmodnts, rebates, sales incentives, returns
other adjustments are provided for in the peri@rtiated sales are recorded based on an assesdrhiorical trends and current projection
of future results. Sales are recorded net of gales

Cost of Sales—Cost of sales primarily consists of materials kimbr expense in the manufacturing of the Compapsoslucts. Cost of sales
also includes provisions for excess and obsoletenitory, warranty costs, certain allocated cost$&ailities, depreciation and other expenses
associated with logistics and quality control. Aduially, it includes stock-based compensationgersonnel directly involved with
manufacturing the Company’s product offerings.

Sales and Marketing—Sales and marketing expenses include costs rdlatmles, customer service and marketing perspime@ilding their
wages, employee benefits and related stock basagarsation, and occupancy related expenses. Ggmiicant sales and marketing
expenses include race support and sponsorship@nfseand athletes, advertising and promotionse@f® trade shows, travel and
entertainment, and promotional materials, prodantssales offices costs.

Research and Development—Research and development expenses consist pyneéshlaries and personnel costs, including wages,
employee benefits and related stock based compemndat the Company’s engineering, research aneldewment teams, occupancy related
expenses, fees for third party consultants, sefeies, and expenses for prototype tooling and naddetravel, and supplies. The Company
expenses research and development costs as incurred

General and Administrative —General and administrative expenses include cektted to executive, finance, information techng|dgumar
resources and administrative personnel, includiageg, employee benefits and related stock basegesmation expenses. The Company
records professional and contract service expensespancy related expenses associated with caeploations and equipment, and legal
expenses in general and administrative expensesCbmpany paid annual management fees of $0.2mifi0.5 million and $0.5 million to
an affiliate of the Company’s majority stockhold€éompass Group Diversified Holdings LLC (“Compassihich fees are included as part of
general and administrative expenses. The Compamyjriated the management services agreement withp@ssrupon the consummation of
the initial public offering (IPO) in August 2013.
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Stock-Based Compensationr—The Company measures stock-based compensatiafi ftock-based awards, including stock options and
restricted stock units (“RSUs”), based on theimeated fair values on the date of the grant andgeizes the stockased compensation cost
a straight-line basis over the requisite serviagope The fair value of each stock option grantedstimated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, net of estimated forfeitures. Theddure rate is based on an analysis of the Coripattual historical forfeitures. The fair
value of the RSU’s is equal to the fair value & @ompany’s common stock on the grant date of wesrdh

Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs-The Company includes shipping and handling felksdoio customers in sales. Shipping costs
associated with inbound freight are capitalizegas of inventory and included in cost of salepamiucts are sold.

Income Taxes—The Company accounts for income taxes using art asddiability approach. Deferred income taxesetfthe net tax effec

of temporary differences between the carrying arntahassets and liabilities for financial repogtipurposes and the amounts used for incorr
tax purposes. Operating loss and tax credit canmdiods are measured by applying currently enaetedaivs. Valuation allowances are
provided when necessary to reduce net deferredssets to an amount that is more likely than nbeteealized.

The Company recognizes the tax effects of an uaicetdx position only if it is more likely than ntit be sustained based solely on its technic:
merits as of the reporting date and then only iamount more likely than not to be sustained ugarew by the tax authorities. The Company
considers many factors when evaluating and estimétis tax positions and tax benefits, which mayuree periodic adjustments and which r
not accurately anticipate actual outcomes.

Advertising —Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Gostsred for advertising totaled $0.4 million, $@rfllion, and $0.4 million for
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Warranties —The Company offers limited warranties on its pradifor one to two years. The Company recogniziéated costs related to
warranty activities as a component of cost of safm product shipment. The estimates are based hiptorical product failure rates and
historical costs incurred in correcting productuiegs. The recorded amount is adjusted from tinténe for specifically identified warranty
exposures. Actual warranty expenses are chargedsaglae Company’s estimated warranty liability whecurred. Factors that affect the
Company’s liability include the number of unitsstarical and anticipated rates of warranty claiam] the cost per claim.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments —The carrying value of the Company’s financial ingtents, including cash, accounts receivable and
accounts payable approximate their fair value. Dot an estimated fair value of $8.0 million an8.45million compared to a carrying value
of $8.0 million and $59.3 million as of December, 2013 and 2012. The fair value is based on inteatss that are currently available to the
Company for issuance of debt with similar terms sardaining maturities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Comprehensive Income: Reclassificationsin February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013*&&porting of Amounts Reclassified Ou
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income,” or ASU3202, to supersede and replace the presentatioireetents for reclassifications out
of accumulated other comprehensive income in ASLLATG, which were deferred indefinitely under AS0.12011-12, “Deferral of the
Effective Date for Amendments to the PresentatioRexlassifications of ltems Out of Accumulated &tomprehensive Income in
Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05,” or ASW12@2, issued in December 2011. The amendmentSih 2013-02 would require an
entity to provide additional information about rEssifications out of accumulated other comprehenisivome by the respective line items of
net income. For public entities, the amendmente#eetive for fiscal years, and interim periodshin those years, beginning after
December 15, 2012. The adoption of ASU 2013-0hdichave an impact on the Company’s financial jpmsior results of operations.

Release of Cumulative Translation Adjustme—In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05rént’'s Accounting for the
Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Derecognitd Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets withiForeign Entity or of an Investment
in a Foreign Entity,” or ASU 20185, which resolves diversity in practice regarding release of the cumulative translation adjustrim¢a net
income when a parent either sells a part or alisahvestment in a foreign entity or no longerdsh controlling financial interest in a
subsidiary or group of assets within a foreigntgnfihe amendments in ASU 2013-05 are effectivespectively for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those years, beginning after Decambe 2013. Early adoption is permitted. The adoptf ASU 2013-05 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial positiwrresults of operations.

Comprehensive Income: Presentationtq June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting stdedgrdate that requires an entity to present the
total of comprehensive income, the components binteme, and the components of other comprehenmsdzane either in a single continuous
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdmait consecutive statements. This guidance eliadrthe option to present the
components of other comprehensive income as péeddtatement of equity. The Company retrospdgtadopted these new standards in the
first quarter of 2012 and has presented a sepepatolidated statement of comprehensive incomthéoyears ended December 31, 2013, :
and 2011.
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2. Inventory

Inventory consisted of the following (in thousands)

As of December 31

2013 2012
Raw materials $30,29¢ $25,82:
Work-in-process 1,15¢ 1,46(
Finished good 11,32¢ 6,97:
Total inventory $42,78: $34,25¢

3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the followingl{ousands):

As of December 31

2013 2012
Machinery and manufacturing equipment $ 13,744 $11,09¢
Office equipment and furnitui 4,24: 4,09t
Transportation equipme 1,49t 1,31¢
Leasehold improvemen 5,52¢ 4,72¢
Total 25,007 21,23¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (11,589 (9,449
Net property and equipme $ 13,41¢ $11,78¢

Depreciation and amortization expense was $2.4amjl51.9 million and $1.4 million for the yearsded December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011
respectively.

4. Acquisition

On October 31, 2013, the Company completed theisitign of certain assets of its Germany basedibisior and service center, Toxoholics
GmbH. The strategic acquisition of the German itistor and service center will build infrastructuned provide an accelerated path for better
serving the Company’s customers and understantsm@tropean market. The Company accounted fotrrisaction as a business
combination. The total consideration transferredfie acquisition was $2.3 million and consistedash paid at closing of $1.1 million and
$1.4 million of cash was paid in 2014. The totatgideration was reduced by the effective settlerokattrade payables and receivables in the
amount of $0.2 million, which represented the rdedramount and as a result, no gain or loss wasded upon settlement. The $1.4 million
of cash paid in 2014 is included in accounts payahblthe accompanying consolidated balance shedétecember 31, 2013. In allocating the
purchase consideration based on fair values, tinep@oy recorded approximately $0.5 million of acgdimtangible assets with a useful life of
six years, $0.6 million to goodwill and $1.2 miltido net assets acquired. The goodwill balancedctible for tax purposes.
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5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, excluding goodwill, are compriskthe following (in thousands):

Weighted
Gross Accumulated Net average life
carrying carrying
amount amortization amount (years)
December 31, 2013
Customer relationships OE $ 7,40( $ (3,700 $ 3,70( 11
Customer relationships Al 4,80¢ (3,239 1,57C 7
Core technolog 32,50( (24,379 8,12¢ 7
Patents 83t (24€) 58¢ 5
Total $45,54- $ (31,56() 13,98
Trademarks, not subject to amortizat 13,30(
Total $27,28:¢
December 31, 2012
Customer relationships OE $ 7,40( $ (3,087 $ 4,317 11
Customer relationships Al 4,30( (2,68¢) 1,612 7
Core technolog 32,50( (20,319 12,187 7
Patent: 83E (98) 737 5
Total $45,03¢ $ (26,18) 18,85:
Trademarks, not subject to amortizat 13,30(
Total $32,15:
Gooduwill activity consisted of the following (indisands):
Balance as of December 31, 2( $31,37:
Acquisition of distributol 55¢
Effect of currency translatia (6)
Balance as of December 31, 2( $31,92¢

The Company did not have any goodwill impairmenimtu2013, 2012 or 2011.

Amortization of intangibles was approximately $&#lion, $5.3 million and $5.2 million for the yemended December 31, 2013, 2012, and
2011, respectively

Future amortization expense for finite-lived intdotgs as of December 31, 2013 is as follows (iruamds):

Year
2014 $ 5,44¢
2015 5,44¢
2016 837
2017 77E
2018 77E
Thereaftel 69¢
Total $13,98¢
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6. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consisted of the following (iruznds):

As of December 31

2013 2012
Payroll and related expenses $ 6,007 $ 5,25¢
Warranty 3,851 4,582
Related part-Compass (1 — 292
Income tax payabl 2,46¢ 9
Other accrued expens 11¢€ 17
Total $12,45: $10,15¢

(1) The amount relates to interest and managemenpégedle to Compas

The Company’s warranty liability is included asagmponent of accrued liabilities in the consolidatetance sheets. Activity related to
warranties is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 1,69t
Charge to cost of sali 3,317
Costs incurres 2,217

Balance at December 31, 20 2,79¢
Charge to cost of sali 5,18(
Costs incurret (3,399

Balance at December 31, 20 4,58:
Charge to cost of sali 4,36
Costs incurres (5,092

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 3,851

7. Related Party Transactions

During fiscal year 2008, the Company entered irdous loans with its majority stockholder, Compasgsich provided a revolving line of
credit facility and a term loan facility (“Prior €dit Facility”). Amounts outstanding under the Prior Credit Faciigre $0 and $59.3 million
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Isteagpense on the Prior Credit Facility was appnately $2.2 million, $2.8 million and
$1.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2@032 and 2011, respectively. In addition, thereavamnual management fees of $0.3
million, $0.5 million and $0.5 million paid to afffiiate of Compass for the years ended DecembefB813, 2012, and 2011, respectively.

Fox Factory, Inc. has a triple-net building leaseifs manufacturing and office facilities in Watsdlle, California. The building is owned by
Robert Fox, a founder and minority stockholderh& €Company. The term of the lease ends June 38, @#6th monthly rental payments, whi
are adjusted annually for a cost-of-living increbased upon the consumer price index. Payments oratier this lease were $1.2 million, $1.1
million and $1.1 million for the years ended DecemB1, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. See 8lfde a summary of the future minimum
lease payments under this operating lease.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011,ddmpany utilized Staffmark, a provider of tempgrstaffing, temp to hire and perman
placement services. Compass was an investor ifn&tds, up to October 2011, when the investment sedd. During the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011, Staffmark provided $7.1 miliimtemporary staffing services, of which $0.6 noifliwas included in accounts payable as
of December 31, 2011.

8. Debt
2013 Credit Facility

In August 2013, in connection with its IPO, the Qmany entered into a new revolving credit facilitgtwSunTrust Bank and the
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other lenders named therein (2013 Credit Faciéityd borrowed $28.5 million thereunder. Of such @emgs, $21.6 million was used to pay
off the Company’s remaining indebtedness that Was tue under the Prior Credit Facility, and thmaiming amount of such borrowings was
used to pay IPO related fees and expenses anddpraditional working capital.

The 2013 Credit Facility provides for interest atite based on the London Interbank Offered RatelROR, plus a margin ranging from
1.50% to 2.50%, or based on the prime rate offeye8unTrust Bank plus a margin ranging from 0.50%.50%. The 2013 Credit Facility is
secured, subject to permitted liens and other algupen exceptions, by a first-priority lien on gretfected security interest in substantially all
of the Company’s and its subsidiary’s assets inolyidccounts receivable and a pledge of the equitg operating subsidiary. In addition, the
2013 Credit Facility requires that the Companys$ath maximum total leverage ratio and a fixed gharoverage ratio. The 2013 Credit
Facility contains customary representations andamdies and customary events of default, as wedksasin affirmative and negative
covenants, including restrictions on: indebtednksss; mergers, consolidations and acquisitioakessof assets; engaging in business other
than the Company’s current business and thosenmabborelated thereto; investments; dividends; mgat@ns and distributions; affiliate
transactions; and other restrictions. The Compaay w compliance with the covenants of the 2013liCFfeacility as of December 31, 2013.
The balance at December 31, 2013 was classifiad@sg-term liability based on the maturity datate 2013 Credit Facility.

The following table summarizes the 2013 Credit Rgqidollars in thousands):

As of December 31, 201

Amount outstanding $ 8,00(
Available borrowing capacit $ 52,00(
Maximum borrowing capacit $ 60,00(
Interest rate at period el 1.92%
Maturity date August 7, 201

Prior Credit Facility

During fiscal year 2008, the Company entered imténéercompany loan agreement, the (“Prior Creditikty”) with its majority stockholder,
Compass. On June 18, 2012, as part of the redaptiah, the Company amended the Prior Credit FpciThe Prior Credit Facility was
amended to (i) provide for Term A loan borrowing$60.0 million and an increase to the revolvingd@ommitment of $2.0 million,
increasing the total available under the Line agditrto $30.0 million, (ii) extend the maturity datof the term loans under the Loan Agreel
to June 18, 2018, and (iii) modify borrowing ratesler the Loan Agreement to a fluctuating rate betw3.50% and 5.50% above either
LIBOR or the Prime Rate, respectively, whichevanisre favorable for the Company. The Company’sgaitibns under the Prior Credit
Facility with Compass were collateralized by thex@pany'’s right, title and interest in the Company&t assets except for certain excluded
intangible assets as defined in the collateralexgent with Compass.

In August 2013, in connection with its IPO and einigg into the 2013 Credit Facility, the Companyatpall indebtedness due under the Prior
Credit Facility and the Prior Credit Facility wasrinated. In connection with terminating the P@oedit Facility, the Company recognized in
the third quarter of 2013 a non-cash expense afappately $1.4 million related to unamortized loangination costs.

Amounts outstanding under the Prior Credit Faciibpsisted of the following (in thousands):

As of December 31
2013 2012

Line of credit $ — $ 75C
Term A Loan $ — $58,50(
$

Less current portio — (3,000
Long-term debt less current portit — $55,50(

The Prior Credit Facility contained financial coaais, with which the Company was in compliancefamjoeement termination in August 2(
and at December 31, 2012. The line of credit cdraie interest rate of 6.75% as of December 31, 202 balance under the line of credit at
December 31, 2012 was classified as a long tetniitiaas the maturity date was June 18, 2018.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases—The Company has operating lease agreements foepfésearch and development, and sales and rimarket
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space that expire at various dates. The Compamgnées rent expense on a straight-line basis threclease term and records the difference
between cash rent payments and the recognitioenbfaxpense as a deferred rent liability. Rent egpevas $3.0 million, $2.8 million, and
$2.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2@032 and 2011, respectively. See Note 7 for aafditiinformation on related party
operating leases.

Approximate remaining future minimum lease paymemider these operating leases as of December 33, afe as follows (in thousands):

Total future

Third party Related party

Year future payments future payments payments
2014 $ 1,86( $ 1,17( $ 3,03(
2015 1,64¢ 1,17 2,81t
2016 1,33( 1,17( 2,50(
2017 84¢ 1,17( 2,01¢
2018 51 58t 63€
Thereaftel — — —

$ 5,73¢ $ 5,26¢ $ 10,99¢

The Company has entered into licensing and conguétgreements with various third parties, of whiadn-cancelable future minimum
payments under such agreements total $0.1 milkoof ®ecember 31, 2013.

Indemnification Agreements—In the ordinary course of business, the Company pnayide indemnifications of varying scope and tetm
customers, vendors, lessors, business partnerathadparties with respect to certain matterdutiing, but not limited to, losses arising out
breach of such agreements, services to be probigidide Company or from intellectual property inffl@ment claims made by third parties. In
addition, the Company has entered into indemnificaagreements with directors and certain offigerd employees that will require the
Company, among other things, to indemnify them regjaiertain liabilities that may arise by reasothefr status or service as directors,
officers or employees. While the outcome of thesétens cannot be predicted with certainty, the Camypdoes not believe that the outcome o
any claims under indemnification arrangements halfe a material effect on the Company’s consolilatdance sheet, consolidated
statements of income, consolidated statementsropoehensive income, or consolidated statementagif fiows.

10. Stock-Based Compensation

Equity Incentive Plans—The Company has outstanding awards under theAfisipequity incentive plans: the 2008 Stock Opfidan (the
“2008 Plan”), the 2008 Non-Statutory Stock OptidarP(the “2008 Non Statutory Plan”) and the 2013ris Plan, (the “2013 Plan”). All
outstanding stock awards under the 2008 Plan a8 R@n Statutory Plan will continue to be goverbgdheir existing terms. No further
awards will be granted pursuant to the 2008 Plahe@2008 Non Statutory Plan. Under the 2013 RlenCompany has the ability to issue
incentive stock options, non-statutory stock omimstock appreciation rights, restricted stock aaarestricted stock units (“RSUs”),
performance units and/or performance shares.

The equity incentive plans are administered bybiberd of directors (“Board”) of the Company orefftablished by the Board, the
Compensation Committee of the Board, which hasthbority to determine the type of incentive awaslywell as the terms and conditions of
the awards, including (i) the number of sharesomfiimon stock subject to the award; (i) when theravieecomes exercisable; (iii) the award’s
exercise price (if applicable); and (iv) the duratof the award. Awards have various vesting sclesd®ptions granted under the plans have
vesting periods ranging from one to five years exyire no later than 10 years from the date oftgRR8Us generally vest over a four-year
period with 25% vesting at the end of one yeartaedemaining vesting annually thereafter. As o€&uaber 31, 2013, 3,115,140 shares were
available for grant under the 2013 Plan.

Restricted Stock Units—The Company began granting RSUs to its employedsiaectors in August 2013. The cost of the R3Us i
determined using the fair value of the Companyisicmn stock on the date of grant. Stock-based cosgtiem expense is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the requisite serviceqakri

The Company granted 516,269 RSUs during the yaededebBecember 31, 2013. The Company recorded stasebcompensation expense
related to RSUs of approximately $0.9 million ie tyear ended December 31, 2013. As of Decemb&@®B, the Company had
approximately $8.2 million of unrecognized stoclséd compensation expense related to RSUs, whitheviecognized over the remaining
weighted-average vesting period of approximatebyy@ars.
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The following table summarizes the activities floe Company’s unvested RSUs for the year ended Deeredd, 2013:

Unvested RSU:

Weighted-
average
Number of grant date
shares
outstanding fair value
Unvested at December 31, 2012 — $ —
Grantec 516,26¢ $ 17.5:
Vested — $ —
Forfeited — $ —
Unvested at December 31, 2C 516,26! $ 17.5:
Stock option activity under the Plans was as foiow
Weighted
average
Weighted- remaining
contractual Aggregate
Number of average intrinsic value
shares exercise life
outstanding price (years) (in thousands’
Balance at December 31, 2011 4,546,611 $ 2.6z 6 $ 16,21¢
Options granted (weighted average fair value 05$1.
per share 1,891,53 $ 5.3t
Options exercise (3,763,51) $ 2.4:
Options forfeitec (172,75) $ 5.94
Balance at December 31, 20 2,501,88! $ 4.8¢ 9 $ 6,82¢
Options granted (weighted average fair value 05$2.
per share 9,29( $ 7.5¢
Balance at December 31, 20 2,511,17! $ 4.8¢ 8 $ 32,00:
Options vested and expected to —December 31, 201 2,511,17! $ 4.8¢ 8 $ 32,00:
Options exercisab—December 31, 201 1,470,97 $ 4.4 7 $ 19,35(

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the differdmetveen the closing price of the Company’s comstook on the Nasdaq Stock Exchange
and the exercise price of outstanding, in-the-mam@ions. The total intrinsic value of options eoised was approximately $11.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012. There were nk sptions exercised for the year ended Decemhe2(Bl13.
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A summary of options outstanding and exercisablef @ecember 31, 2013, is as follows:

Options Outstanding
Weighted-average

remainin

Number contractualglife Number
Exercise price: outstanding (years) exercisable
$1.08 149,56¢ 4 149,56
$2.16 149,56 4 149,56
$3.84 92,90( 7 55,74(
$5.16 1,536,65 8 952,59¢
$5.20 125,41! 7 50,16¢
$5.95 92,90( 7 37,16(
$6.19 6,50: 8 6,50:
$6.20 348,37 9 69,67¢

$7.59 9,29( 9 —
2,511,17 8 1,470,97

Employee Stock-Based Compensation-The fair value of options on the date of grardsimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model using the single-option award approach withweighted average assumptions set forth beloe.Cdmpany estimates the expected
term of options granted by taking the average efviiisting term and the contractual term of theooptEstimated volatilities are based on an
analysis of comparable companies and the Compé#awesage. The Company bases the risk-free intesigsion the implied yield currently
available on U.S. Treasury strips maturing at tkgeeted option term. Although the Company paidvédénd in 2012 as part of the
recapitalization, the Company does not intend toqaesh dividends in the future, as such, expedtédehds are zero. Expected forfeitures are
based on the Company’s historical experience.

In conjunction with the Company’s 2012 recapitdi@a, discussed in Note 8, modifications were miadeertain employee stock option
agreements. These modifications included the aateda of vesting of options exercisable for thegmase of 902,105 shares of common stoc
and adding a net share settlement feature to tlee@ggnts. Additionally, certain stock option agreata were cancelled and replacement
options were issued with a lower exercise pricespant to the grants anti-dilution provisions ia tmderlying agreements. The lower exercise
price of the replacement options reflects the cbangalue of the underlying stock, which resulfiexn the recapitalization. Modification
accounting was applied to the replacement optiodsaay excess fair value of the replacement awaed the fair value of the cancelled award
will be recorded as compensation cost over the ilntavesting period of the grants. The vestedaysiwere exercised through a cashless ne
share settlement, and the resulting shares werediately repurchased by Compass. Settlement adogumés applied to these options and
stock-based compensation expense was recordeddgnige expense for the previously unvested partion

The assumptions used to value stock-based awaadtegrwere as follows:

For the years ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011
Expected term (years) 5.2 5.5-6.5 6.5
Volatility 36% 36% 25%
Risk-free interest rat 0.7%% 0.6(-1.4(% 3.31-3.41%

Dividend yield — — —
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The following table summarizes the allocation aicktbased compensation in the accompanying cordetidstatements of income (in
thousands):

For the years ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011

Cost of sales $ 23 $ — $ —
Sales and marketir 15¢ 16C 78
Research and developmt 58 29 12
General and administrati 2,26¢ 1,95¢ 94C
Total $ 2,50( $ 2,14¢ $ 1,03(

As of December 31, 2013 unamortized stock-basecpeosation expense related to unvested common spiias was $1.5 million. The
weighted average period over which such stock-basetpensation expense will be recognized is appratély 2.7 years.

11. Earnings Per Share

Earnings Per Share—Basic earnings per share is computed by dividietgmcome for the period by the weighted averagabar of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted egiper share is computed by dividing net incometfe period by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock and potentiallstide common stock outstanding during the perPatentially dilutive common shares
include shares issuable upon the exercise of aulistg stock options, which are reflected in dilugzanings per share by application of the
treasury stock method.

The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted earnings per share (in thousandspgb&arnings per share):

For the years ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011
Net income $24,10: $14,21( $13,53¢
Weighted average shares used to compute basiaganér shar 34,57 32,05¢ 30,03(
Dilutive effect of employee stock pla 1,13¢ 45€ 2,26¢
Weighted average shares used to compute diluteihgarper shar 35,70¢ 32,51! 32,29¢
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 0.7C $ 0.4 $ 0.4
Diluted $ 0.6¢ $ 0.4¢ $ 0.4z

The Company did not exclude any potentially dilatshares from the calculation of diluted earningisghare for the years ended Decembe
2013, 2012 and 2011 as none of these shares wauéieen antidilutive.
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12. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense are as follmabousands):

For the years ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federa $10,28: $ 8,95¢ $ 7,80:
State 3,13¢ 2,40¢ 1,682
Foreign 38t — —
Total 13,80: 11,36¢ 9,48¢
Deferred:
Federa (2,917) (2,679 (2,025
State (329 (510 (405)
Total (3,230 (3,189 (2,430
Total provision $10,56¢ $ 8,181 $ 7,054

The following table presents a reconciliation af giatutory federal rate and the Company’s effedtix rate for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011
Tax at federal statutory rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State taxes, net of federal ben 4.7 4.8 3.1
Manufacturing deductio (2.9 (1.3 (3.9
Stock based compensati 0.1 (2.5 1.7
Research and development tax cr 2.7 — (1.6)
Change in liability for unrecognized tax bene (3.9 — —
Other — 0.5 (0.2)

Total provision 30.5% 36.5% 34.2%
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The following table presents the significant compats of the Company’s deferred tax assets anditiabifor the periods presented (in
thousands):

As of December 31

2013 2012
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 72 $ 17¢
Other reserves and prepaid as: 3,46¢ 2,71¢
Inventory 46¢€ 64(
State income taxe 1,16t 58
Total deferred tax ass 5,167 4,06¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible asset (10,587 (12,767
Property and equipme (4049) (529
Prepaid expenst (110 —
Depreciatior (2,58)) (2,537
Total deferred tax liabilit (13,687 (15,819
Net deferred tax assets (liabilitie $ (8,515 $ (11,750()

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inubands):

For the years ended December 3

2013 2012
Balance—beginning of period $ 7,29 $ 5,41(
Gross increas—current year tax positior 1,89¢ 1,88
Gross decreas—expiration of statute of limitatior (1,397) —

Balanc—end of perioc $ 7,79¢ $ 7,292

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, a portion oftrecognized tax benefits would impact the effectax rate if recognized. The Company
expects approximately $1.6 million of unrecognitaxdbenefits to be recognized during the fiscar & 4, based on the expiration of statute
of limitations.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company hadappately $0.2 million of cumulative interest aneinalties related to the uncertain tax
positions, and has elected to treat interest andlfies as a component of income tax expense.

The Company’s tax returns remain open to examina®follows: U.S. federal, 2010 through 2013; Wt&tes, generally 2009 through 2013.

13. Retirement Plan

The Company established a 401(K) plan to providel&éderred salary deductions for all eligible enygles. Participants may make voluntary
contributions to the 401(k) plan, limited by centéiternal Revenue Service restrictions. The Commpaade matching contributions of $0.2
million for each of the fiscal years ended Decengir2013, 2012, and 2011.

14. Segment and Geographic Areas

The Company has determined that it has a singleatipg and reportable segment. The Company corsamarating segments to be
components of the Company in which separate firghaiormation is available that is evaluated regiyl by the Company’s chief operating
decision maker in deciding how to allocate resosiar®d in assessing performance. The chief operdénigion maker for the Company is the
Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Offiaeviews financial information presented on a otidsited basis for purposes of allocating
resources and evaluating financial performance.
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The following table summarizes total sales gendrbtegeographic location of the customer (in thods:

For the years ended December 3:

2013 2012 2011
United States $ 96,11 $ 84,28: $ 65,76«
Internationa 176,63: 151,58t 131,97!

Total Sales $272, 74t $235,86¢ $197,73¢

The Company’s long-lived assets by geographic ionare as follows:

As of December 31

2013 2012
United States $12,25¢ $11,42¢
Internationa 1,15¢ 36(
Total lon¢-lived asset: $13,41¢ $11,78¢

15. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Selected summarized quarterly financial informaf@n?2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Quarter Ended
Dec 31, Sep 30, Jun 30, Mar 31, Dec 31, Sep 30. Jun 30, Mar 31,

2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012
(dollars in thousands, except per share date

Sales $65,25¢ $82,29! $70,31t $54,87¢ $56,61! $72,86¢ $60,72: $45,67:
Gross profit 18,71¢ 25,33¢ 20,36¢ 15,71¢ 13,16 20,11¢ 16,44¢ 13,09¢
Income from operation 7,80 14,77¢ 10,14 6,06 4,017 10,97¢ 6,86¢ 4,291
Net income 4,907 9,92¢ 5,721 3,54¢ 1,78¢ 5,46¢ 4,317 2,63¢
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 014 $ 028 $ 017 $ 011 $ 00t $ 0.1€ $ 014 $ 0.0¢

Diluted $ 01 $ 027 $ 017 $ 01C $ 0.0t $ 0.1€ $ 014 $ 0.0¢

16. Subsequent Event
Acquisition

On March 5, 2014, we entered into a definitive agrent to acquire the business of Sport Truck USPp@It Truck”) a full service, globally
recognized distributor, primarily of its own brandaftermarket suspension solutions and reselleupproducts. Sport Truck also designs,
markets, and distributes high quality lift kit sttuns through their wholly owned subsidiaries BD&@ension and Zone Offroad Products. The
acquisition of Sport Truck is well-aligned with amission of improving vehicle performance, delimgrthe best in-class service, and entering
into strategic adjacent markets. We will acquirerdpruck in an asset purchase transaction forag@mately $44 million due at closing. The
transaction is being financed with debt and inctud@otential earn-out opportunity of up to a maximof $29.3 million payable over the next
three years contingent upon the achievement adicgperformance based financial targets. The t@itsais subject to approval by the
employee stock ownership plan shareholders of Spadk and is also subject to customary closingd@ns. The transaction is expected to
close by the end of March 2014.

F-21



Company Name

FOX FACTORY HOLDING CORP.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

State or Other Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or Organization

Name Under Business is Conducte

Exhibit 21.1

Fox Factory, Inc
Fox Factory Gmbt

California
Germany

Fox Factory, Inc
Fox Factory Gmbl



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated March 11, 2014, re&pect to the consolidated financial statemieataded in the Annual Report of Fox
Factory Holding Corp. and subsidiaries on Form 1fixkthe year ended December 31, 2013. We herehsgert to the incorporation by
reference of said report in the Registration Statamf Fox Factory Holding Corp. and subsidiaries=orm S-8 (File No. 333-192238).
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California

March 11, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Larry L. Enterline, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Factory Holding Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e), for tlggsteant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

/sl Larry L. Enterline
Larry L. Enterline
Chief Executive Office
Date: March 11, 201




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Zvi Glasman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Factory Holding Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e), for tlggsteant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

/sl Zvi Glasmatr

Zvi Glasmar

Chief Financial Office
Date: March 11, 201




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 of Fatdfy Holding Corp. (the
“Company”) as filed with the Securities and Exchai@pmmission on the date hereof (the “Reportlalry L. Enterline, Chief Executive

Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICSSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Secti6roBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Larry L. Enterline

Larry L. Enterline

Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer
Date: March 11, 201

This certification accompanies the FormHK@e which it relates, is not deemed filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission and is r
be incorporated by reference into any filing of Factory Holding Corp. under the Securities AcL®83, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether madedefafter the date of the Report), irrespectivany general incorporation language
contained in such filing.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 of Fatdfy Holding Corp. (the
“Company”) as filed with the Securities and Exchai@pmmission on the date hereof (the “RepottZvi Glasman, Chief Financial Officer
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®®0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaSas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

s/ Zvi Glasmar

Zvi Glasmar

Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer
Date: March 11, 201

This certification accompanies the FormHK@e which it relates, is not deemed filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission and is r
be incorporated by reference into any filing of Factory Holding Corp. under the Securities AcL®83, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether madedefafter the date of the Report), irrespectivany general incorporation language
contained in such filing



